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about this report

REPORTING FRAMEWORK REPORTING PERIOD

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines for Publicly Listed Companies Janto Dec 2018

DATE OF MOST RECENT REPORT REPORTING CYCLE

May 2017 Annual

Though Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (PCPPI) has long published Annual Reports, “Win as
One” is our first Annual and Sustainability Report. The scope of the report covers our operations in
all our plants and offices, nationwide. Itis structured in compliance with the Sustainability Reporting

Guidelines for Publicly Listed Companies of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) .

We follow the good example set by PepsiCo, Inc., which started sustainability reporting in 2016 to
mark their progress on the group’s Performance with a Purpose 2025 Agenda. For some time now,
we at PCPPI have also been focused on local initiatives that would redound to our long-term growth
and sustainability. This inaugural report marks the next level in our disciplined approach toward

triple bottom-line performance.

“Win as One” serves both as a playbook and a scorecard, as we outline our policies and strategies
at PCPPI, and at the same time monitor and evaluate how we implement them in our day-to-day
practices, in pursuit of our goal to become a more profitable and sustainable company.

For any general inquiry or feedback, please contact:
Ma. Monique G. Castro Atty. Lope R. Manuel, Jr.
Senior Manager, VP & Chief Compliance Officer,
Corporate Affairs and Communications Legal, Labor, and Corporate Affairs
(632) 88-PEPSI (88-73774) loc. 5325 (632) 88-PEPSI (88-73774) loc. 5323
monique.castro@pcppi.com.ph jun.manuel@pcppi.com.ph
PCPPI Head Office: Km. 29 National Road,

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City, Metro Manila 1773,

Republic of the Philippines



this is us
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Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines Inc.
(PCPPI) is the exclusive manufacturer
of PepsiCo food and beverage products
in the Philippines, with a relationship

spanning for more than 70 years.

_ OUR BRAND PORTFOLIO INCLUDES:
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Pepsi has operated since 1946 in the country.

In 1989, we were named Pepsi-Cola Products carbonated drinks non-carbonated drinks snack
Philippines Inc. (PCPPI). 2018 marks our 10th year as

a listed company in the Philippine Stock Exchange. pepsi gatorade @ cheetos
We are co-managed by our two biggest shareholders: mountain dew sting
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» Lotte Chilsung Beverage Company Ltd.,
with a 42.45% stake, and

» PepsiCo (Quaker Global Investments B.V.),
with a 25% stake.
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We employ

3,290 individuals,

primarily working

at 13 manufacturing plants
across the country:

TUNASAN
Muntinlupa

STO. TOMAS
Batangas
ROSARIO

La Union
CABUYAO
Laguna

SAN FERNANDO
Pampanga

NAGA CITY
Camarines Sur
MINGLANILLA
Cebu

TANAUAN

Leyte
MANDALAGAN
Bacolod

SAN MIGUEL
Iloilo

TALOMO DISTRICT
Davao

TIN-AO AGUSAN
Cagayan de Oro
CULIANAN
Zamboanga

...to serve the needs of
more than 700,000 retail
and distribution

outlets nationwide.




what we believe

Our VISION is to be the premier food and
beverage company in the Philippines.

Our MISSION, as a responsible company,
is stated thus:

We will continue to market a portfolio of international

and homegrown branded quality products at

prices that provide good value to our consumers in

key food and beverage companies.

We are committed to expand the business and provide healthy
financial returns to our shareholders, and opportunities for
growth and enrichment of our employees, business partners
and the communities where we operate.

The consistency of our performance
is anchored on our VALUES:
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We believe in synergy, and so we partner with
industry peers in the following associations:

American Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines (AmCham)
Association of Safety Practitioners of the Philippines, Inc. (ASPPI)
Beverage Industry Association of the Philippines (BIAP)
European Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines (ECCP)
International Association of Business Communicators (IABC)
Management Association of the Philippines (MAP)

Philippine Alliance for Recycling and Materials Sustainability (PARMS)
People Management Association of the Philippines (PMAP)
Philippine Chamber of Commerce, Inc. (PCCI)

Philippine Disaster Resilience Foundation (PDRF)

Pollution Control Association of the Philippines (PCAPI)
Procurement and Supply Institute of Asia (PSIA)

Public Relations Society of the Philippines (PRSP)



AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

PCPPI is committed to the sustainability mission of doing business
without compromising the environment and the community where
we operate. While we do not work for the accolades,

we are nonetheless heartened by the following recognitions
received in 2018:

PCPPI received a Commendation from the Department of Energy
in recognition rites held at Mindanao State University-
@ Marawi for initiatives that helped reinstall electricity to
A% <cveral communities in Marawi City.
The company was also honored by the City of Muntinlupa and the
\’ Department of Education in the Gawad Pampahalaga
O for participating in the Brigada Eskwela 2018.

Finally, PCPPI also received a Gold Reward from the South Korean
government at the 2018 Corporate Social Responsibility
Awards for Korean Companies in the Philippines. The
award highlights South Korean companies’ CSR initiatives
that aid in fostering stronger ties between South Korea
and the Philippines.
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Zamboanga plant received three major awards from the
Department of Labor and Employment during
o the 2nd Industry Tripartite Councils Summit, namely:

» Most Outstanding Company
with Zero Accident
Most Outstanding Company for
Regularly Submitting Occupational Safety
and Health (OSH) Reports
Most Outstanding Unionized Company
for Sustainable Livelihood Program

San Fernando plant was recognized by the local government of
San Fernando City as the Healthiest Workplace

@ for promoting the health, safety, and welfare of

A% Fernandinos under the City Health Promotions Program.

Modern Trade Unit won three Excellence Awards from
7-Eleven, and was nominated for Best Supplier
by Robinson’s Supermarket and Ministop.




Php 38.4
billion

gross sales

Php 5.7
billion

gross profit

Php 2

billion
CAPEX

Php 2.5

billion
EBITDA

Php 23
million

cost savings from
packaging innovations

Php 108

(] (]
million
savings in power cost

due to internal and supplier
energy initiatives

approximately

10 million

safe man-hours
across our plants, nationwide

zero accidents

in 7 out of 13 plants:

Southern Tagalog Region Operations, Naga,
Rosario, Cebu, lloilo, Zamboanga, and
Cabuyao

37 hours

average training hours
per employee

1,776 hours

of community service
rendered by 437 employees



FROM 2017-2018

Q 10.7% reduction

66 in water consumption

in electricity yield

_‘O'_ 11.3% improvement

6 12.9% improvement

in fuel yield

#y 14% improvement

c 0 in recycling

‘ ' 3803 MT
— . less plastic resin
) due to packaging innovations

ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED
in Php billion

NET SALES 33.6

ECONOMIC VALUE DISTRIBUTED
in Php billion

OPERATING COSTS
Cost of Sales, Operating Expenses 23 .7

(Net of Personnel Expenses and

Government Payments)

EMPLOYEE WAGES & BENEFITS 1 9
)

(Personnel Expenses)

GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS
(Excise Taxes, Real Property Taxes,

Local Business Taxes)

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS
in Php million

TOTAL
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2018 marks a year spent in the pursuit of greater
efficiency at Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
We had been progressively implementing changes
in our resource management for the past several
years, but we have become more targeted in our
efforts this year.

Group-wide, we are continuing with our Reuse,
Reduce, and Recycle programs. We are meeting,
and even surpassing, most of our targets under
the Luntiang Yaman program. Our improved
water efficiency has allowed us to lower our
non-revenue water by 40%. Our energy efficiency,
meanwhile, has provided us with cost savings.
We have also optimized our use of plastic, paper,
and glass by innovating on our packaging design.
Our use of fewer materials results in fewer waste
sent to landfill; it also means less electricity

and fuel are used in processing these materials.
Finally, we are currently recycling 81% of our
materials, and we are confident that we will soon
meet our recycling target of 85%.

From the start, we have been doing business with
due observance of environmental laws. In 2018,
an issue was raised over our use of deepwells at
our Muntinlupa plant—as a result, we needed to
pivot quickly and instead source from the water
concessionaire serving our district. It has been

a challenging time, no doubt, but I am happy

to report that we faced it head-on and have
gone past the hurdle. Our relationship with our
regulators has remained amicable throughout.
Apart from the quick resolution, the year 2018
also ended with Muntinlupa being one of our top
three best-performing plants in terms of water
conservation.

We invested more than Php 202 million in
strengthening our Environment, Health & Safety
compliance initiatives in 2018. We tapped SGS
Philippines, one of country’s leading auditors for
International Organization for Standardization
(1S0), to conduct a compliance audit in our plant
facilities nationwide. This is an ongoing project
that we expect will provide insight on how to
further improve our operations.

It only proves that PCPPI is not only committed

to remaining a strong, viable company—we are
also seeking to create positive change for the
Philippines. Our commitment extends to acting
as a responsible corporate citizen, contributing to
nation-building, and finding ways to empower the
communities where we operate.

“PCPPI is not only
committed to
remaining a strong,
viable company—
we are also seeking
to create positive
change for

the Philippines.”




Ours is a business with a long reach. Across our value chain, we
support thousands of Filipinos, and not just our employees and
direct hires. We have suppliers, distributors, and retailers that

rely on our business, among them micro-, small, and medium
enterprises (MSMEs). We impact not just the giants of industry, but
also the mom-and-pop eateries and sari-sari stores that carry our
products. What we do affects them as well.

We are looking more closely at our impact by embracing
sustainability reporting. We are even more determined to achieve
a circular economy, especially in our use of water, energy, and
packaging materials. We hope that by discussing our best
practices, we could contribute to—or even lead—the conversation
on sustainability. Documenting our sustainability efforts will also
encourage our people to continue their good work.

| am therefore quite proud to be able to share with you their
accomplishments in this inaugural sustainability report. Until now,
our environmental and social initiatives have been relegated to the
background. | am grateful that our people, who strongly emulate
the P.E.P.S.I. values of passion, excellence, professionalism, and
integrity, have been tirelessly finding ways to improve our ways of
working, without seeking reward or recognition. They have also
reached out to the community through various initiatives, from
coastal cleanups to school rehabilitation to relief efforts in war-
torn Marawi City. PCPPI as a company wholeheartedly supports
their initiative and drive.

We will continue to work together to realize our vision of being a
premier food and beverage company, while being protective of the
environment and society.




At PCPPI, we act on our responsibility to our
stakeholders by creating value in the present,
even as we continue to position the company
for future growth. Success is often defined by
how one stays relevant to the people whom
one serves. Our business is highly dependent
on continuing relationships—in our case,

we cultivate lasting partnerships with our
wholesalers, distributors, and resellers, even
as we retain the loyalty of our customers. Their
satisfaction in our service is the gauge by which
we measure our progress.

The year 2018 was fraught with challenge,
beginning with the higher excise taxes, at

Php 6 per liter on beverages containing caloric
or non-caloric sweetener and Php 12 per liter on
beverages with high fructose corn syrup (HFCS),
following the implementation of the Tax reform
for Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN) law.

PCPPI stayed its course despite the
unprecedented headwinds, focused on finding
and acting on opportunities: affordable pack-
price offerings and sustained distribution
expansion helped temper the impact on our
topline while unrelenting drive for productivity

beating the odds

and sustainability across functions and locations
partially offset the impact of the excise tax on
our costs.

With the above, we delivered Gross Profit at
Php 5.7 billion and EBITDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization)
of Php 2.5 billion during the year. Total
comprehensive loss for the year is

Php 124 million.

We continued to invest for future growth

and efficiencies with Php 2 billion of capital
expenditures in 2018. Our committed investment
in the implementation of an automated and fully
integrated IT system for increased productivity
and efficiency in our business is on track to meet
scheduled go-live in 2019.

We continue to transform the company in
strategic ways to ensure long-term growth
and sustainability. This year, we renewed our
commitment to sustainability through our
new policy framework, with our mantra being:
“Engage. Lead. Transform.” Our sustainability
practice is centered on the people behind our
brand and who share in the P.E.P.S.I. values.



We have intensified our training programs to make sure that our employees and brand ambassadors
stay engaged with the company and the community, that they lead in the conversation on sustainability,
and continue to transform lives through their work.

We do our part by crafting a safe and productive environment where our employees can thrive.

This year, PCPPI achieved 100% compliance in the wearing of personal protection equipment (PPE).
This is a definite return on our EHS awareness campaigns from the previous year, and instrumental in
the attainment of a low overall lost time incident rate (LTIR).

Ours is an inclusive business, fostering a culture of sharing blessings. To this end, our employees have
been active proponents of community initiatives. Through the employee-driven Bukluran, for example,
PCPPI employees have supported the Brigada Eskwela program and Earth Hour. They are also our

staunchest advocates for Water for Peace in Marawi.

Seeing the dedication, spirit, and sheer passion of our PCPPI employees and our partners gives us
hope—because whatever we may face in the future, we do not face it alone.

We WMWM
. : g-&%wa,tbam.

YONGSANG YOU SAMUD ACHARYA
Chief Executive Officer President




our sustainability play

In response to the global effort to achieve the

United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), in 2018, we began to craft our own approach
to sustainability. In developing the sustainability
framework, we took our cue not only from
developments on the global front, but from the
specific, local context within which we operate. In this
way, PCPPI hopes to develop even more strategic and
focused sustainability initiatives that respond to the
needs and concerns of stakeholders.

Understanding the country’s development context and
focus, as well as the government’s vision for a more
sustainable and prosperous future, was the first step in
the development of a framework for our

sustainability efforts.

The National Economic and Development Authority
(NEDA) formulated a roadmap for the country

until 2040. Ambisyon Na! details the features and
characteristics of “The Life We Want.” It outlines

the Philippines’ overall vision of a future where
Filipinos are prosperous and healthy, and live in a
smart, innovative, and high-trust society. This vision
is aligned with the Philippine Development Plan
(PDP2022), a document that lays down the foundation
and ways forward for inclusive national growth,

a high-trust and resilient society, and a globally
competitive knowledge economy.

The Philippines is faced with significant environmental
challenges, not the least of which being the country’s
vulnerability to climate change and high risk to natural
disaster. Our population is also challenged by the

limitations of basic services, particularly the lack

of access to water and sanitation facilities. In terms

of demographics, the Philippines is predominantly a
young country, and this presents both an opportunity
as well as a challenge. While this means that the country
will have the potential to grow and develop its people
to meet the needs of the labor market, significant
investments are still needed to advance the country’s
human capital.

The PDP2022 priorities are echoed in the global

SDGs. Cross-checking these three sets of documents
against each other, PCPPI determined that the
immediate and most urgent steps in this process are

to accelerate human capital development and reduce
the vulnerability of individuals. These are the two areas
where we feel we can meaningfully contribute the most
to the country’s development.




From framework to action

Armed with a better understanding of the country’s
situation, we turned to the challenge of setting up
our own framework and model for implementation.
In order to contribute to nation-building, and to
address the country’s most pressing development
concerns, we understood that we had to leverage on
our business’ footprint. Being present nationwide,
with 13 facilities across the country, we are able to
implement our activities on a larger scale.

We are able to tap our active and engaged
workforce and channel their spirit of volunteerism
to participate in these activities, particularly in

information, education, and communication campaigns.

PCPPI works together with other organizations,
and benefits from the experience and expertise

of professionals and practitioners in sustainable
development. With our employee-volunteers’
valuable input, PCPPI is able to make informed
decisions about CSR activities, and through our
partnerships and strategic alliances with other
organizations in the private sector and civil society,
engage in more effective evidence-based advocacy.

We also aligned our sustainability focus areas to
PepsiCo’s Performance with Purpose framework. We
have not adopted this framework in full, rather, we
have taken direction from PepsiCo’s global goals and
localized these to the Philippine context.

PCPPI has a three-pronged approach to addressing our key sustainability priorities:

Engage: To strengthen engagement with internal and external stakeholders

Transform: To define key priority areas and establish associated programs
across all plants in a concerted manner

Lead: To be a thought leader in priority areas with sufficient
national/ASEAN visibility

With these objectives in mind, we pursue PCPPI’s main sustainability priorities:

WATER
+ Integrated watershed management
«  Access to safe water, sanitation, and hygiene

We utilize significant amounts of water in our beverage manufacturing. We acknowledge that
we share this resource with others. Therefore, not only do we aim for efficient water in our
operations, but we also promote resource management at the watershed level. We contribute
to SDGs and to local human development efforts by implementing programs that will facilitate
greater access to water and sanitation, particularly in our areas of operation.

14



CIRCULAR ECONOMY
«  Circular supplies
+  Resource efficiency across
the value chain

We recognize that our products contribute to waste
generation, and as such, we are focusing on initiatives
that can help us manage our waste at source and achieve
greater efficiency across our value chain. We aim to

move away from the traditional make-use-dispose cycle,
and instead establish a process where we extract the
maximum value from the resources we use, and then
recover and regenerate where possible. PCPPI is working in
partnership with other organizations in the sector to make
improvements in the way we use plastic, as well as with
how we recover and recycle waste from our products.

PY INCLUSIVE BUSINESS
' «  Women entrepreneurship

Education for children
Integrate MSME and
underserved communities

Through our focus on inclusive business, we seek to share
the benefits of our business with others, particularly those
in the SME sector. We also facilitate access to basic services,
with an emphasis on education for young girls.

We consider the framework and priorities as initial steps on
our sustainability journey in the Philippines. While we may
not have specific goals and targets in mind for all aspects of
our sustainability practice, this first attempt at reporting on
our initiatives will guide how we monitor and manage our
performance on material metrics in the future.

OUR FIRST SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Securities and Exchange Commission released guidelines on sustainability
reporting for publicly listed companies in 2018. This is a big step forward for
sustainability in the Philippines and will provide the much-needed impetus

for businesses to take greater responsibility for managing their operations

and impact and promote more collaboration in support of the Sustainable
Development Goals.

PCPPI was already in the process of defining its framework and sustainability
priorities in 2017, and the guidelines serve to confirm that we are on the right
path. While sustainability reporting is not mandatory yet in 2018, this report
marks our first effort to comply with the new reporting requirement. We commit
to full compliance with the guidelines by 2020, and in the meantime, will be
establishing our internal systems and processes to enable us to monitor and
capture the relevant data on our sustainability performance.

OUR STAKEHOLDER AND MATERIALITY REVIEW

Our stakeholders include our investors/shareholders, regulators, employees,
suppliers, wholesale distributors, retailers, and resellers. We engage with our
stakeholders regularly, through business dealings and scheduled meetings,
and when warranted, through focus group discussions (FGDs), interviews, and
surveys. We also keep communication lines open, and as an independently
listed company, make transparent disclosures via the Philippine Stock
Exchange, our company website, and various press releases. We ensure that the
pertinent information about the company reaches the intended audience.

What is important to our stakeholders is important to us. We owe it to them to
address these concerns and communicate how we manage our operations and
theirimpact. In an FGD with key representatives from our different business
units, we surfaced the top concerns of our stakeholders in 2018. Taking guidance
from the SEC Sustainability Reporting Guidelines for Publicly Listed Companies,
with cross-reference checks on the GRI Standards 2016, we also did a scan of the



critical impact of our operations on the economy, environment,
and society.

The SEC guidelines dictate that publicly listed companies should only
report on their material topics. To apply the materiality principle, PCPPI’s
technical working group (TWG) reviewed the top stakeholder issues and
concerns, and then asked the following questions:

v Does our business create impacts for which we can be
held accountable?

v Do these issues/impacts affect or influence how we run
our business?

v Do theseissues/impacts affect or influence our stakeholders’
decision-making?

We determined topics as material if they present as a key risk or
opportunity to PCPPI’s business; our key business activities impact on
this topic or issue; our supply chain has significant impact on this topic or
issue, or, there is evidence that this topic will be relevant to the sector or
to our business in the future.

Given these questions and analysis, the following are the topics that we
have deemed material for this reporting year:

MATERIAL TOPICS

MATERIAL TOPICS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Strong drive for EHS and compliance with PLC
Suppliers’ Code of Conduct (i.e., development of the policy,
accreditation, and onboarding of suppliers in keeping with the Code)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Water use
» Water sourcing
« Water-related problems in the community
Energy use
Waste management
« Proper waste disposal
» Packaging materials use (initiatives to reduce and recycle)

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Profitability
Impacts of regulation (TRAIN law, sugar tax, single-use plastics ban)
Partnerships

vV v.v Yy

Maximizing resources and improvements in efficiency across the
supply chain

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

Community

« Local employment

« Health projects

« Partnerships with government, barangays
Employees

« Career path, talent management, training and development

(Navigating your Career)

« Diversity and inclusion

+ Wages and benefits

« Workplace safety

« Labor-management relations (collective bargaining)
Customers

» Food quality and safety

« Product design improvements

16



PCPPI seeks to be the preferred partner of our retailer and distributors.

Our team is passionate to meet and exceed their expectations, with the
mindset of providing solutions that will keep our customers satisfied.
Recognizing that we work in a highly competitive environment, we
ensure that we continue to offer the best value proposition

to our partners.

PRODUCT DESIGN

PCPPI intends to stay in touch with the needs of the market.

We develop and market products that our customers crave.

Catering to the consumer’s tastes and wants, we launched several
products in 2018: the 8-0z. Mountain Dew Idol, the Cheetos Balls and
Cheetos Mustache, and Pepsi in Lime and Vanilla flavors.

With the strong trend toward health and wellness (now going strong

creating
better

for over five years) we know that our customers are seeking healthier
options, and this will be part of our strategy in the mid- to long-term.
As part of this effort, we have launched products such as reduced
sugar carbonated drinks. We also expanded our hydration categories
to include water and value-added water.

We cater to varying tastes and preferences. To help people indulge
while still managing their calories, we also offered smaller snack
packs of Cheetos. But, for customers who want “family-size,” we also
introduced bigger sizes for some of our product variants in 2018.

choices




@
SERVICE DESIGN a

We have a wide range of products with well-known brands
in both the food and beverage categories, but we realize
we must also provide the best in service. Our team works
to continuously strengthen our partnerships with key

customers in order to provide better service levels, more

collaborative business planning, as well as innovations in

the kinds of products we provide.

+ Best value proposition. Our Sales and Distribution
+ + team is set up to ensure that we continue to offer the
best value proposition to our partners. PCPPI has
0 two main channels for distribution: traditional trade
and modern trade (e.g., food service, hypermarkets,
modern wholesalers, and schools).

Total account management. Our business grows and
succeeds when our partners succeed. Therefore, we seek
to provide total account management, that includes
regular business reviews, insight and syndicated studies
sharing, sharing of best practices, top-to-top meetings,
and joint business planning.

Business reviews. Our exclusivity partnerships for
food service are usually for a period of two to five
years, and we conduct regular business reviews with
our customers to ensure that we are able to meet our
business objectives. The business reviews allow us to
check on volume commitments, as well as to assess the
performance of marketing programs. To properly manage
our accounts and ensure a successful partnership,

our teams conduct weekly or monthly calls, as well as
business reviews, on a monthly or quarterly basis.

We also have a business development group that is
tasked to look for new customers.

Support services. Key to managing our accounts is to
maximize the sales and distribution structure for our
partners. We have sales managers and key account
managers who work closely with our customers—from
top-level management down to the store-level servicing.
We have a technical services team that is tasked to ensure
that we serve quality beverages in our food service
channels. We provide an in-house team to manage our
machines to maintain the top-quality standards of our
products. To further strengthen our service, our team is
cross-functional. We wire our teams based on functions
in order to address all the needs of our customers.

Our strength is in our team and our ability to meet the
needs of our customers, whether these are in terms of
sales, operations, technical services, and logistics.

18



Customized contracts. We offer a range of KEY WINS FOR OUR GROUP IN 2018

contracts and can customize our partnership

in order to meet the needs of our customers.

Our teams can also design product packages N, Securedinew partnerships with:
\ Fast-food & QSR: S&R Food Service, LC Big Mak

Fine dining: Barcino, Meat Depot, Lorenzo Group, and Blue Smith

that can be bundled with food (food pairing).

We innovate on the products and services
we provide to our customers. We develop
unique beverages through our partnership Renewed partnerships with:

with leading companies who specialize in IIHII Fast-food & QSR: Amici Pizza and Pasta, Chicken Deli, Cabalen

developing special beverage flavors. We also Malls, supermarkets, department stores: Liberty Commercial Center (Bicol)

collaborate with our customers on account- Amusement and recreational center: Tom’s World

specific promotions.

compared certain performance metrics (service levels, business category

* PCPPI ranked 9 out of 19 FMCG companies in a trade survey that
o
— management, product portfolio, trade marketing and others)

PCPPI Modern Trade Operations (MTO) won three Excellence Awards

PCPPI RANKS 9TH
AMONG 19 FMCGs IN SURVEY

from 7-Eleven for Innovation, Account Management, and Brand
Partnership Activation.

PCPPI MTO was nominated as Supplier of the Year in Robinsons

4
[
In 2018, Canadian insights company Advantage Group
International, Inc. conducted a survey among large fast- @

LA,

Supermarket and convenience stores (Ministop).
moving consumer goods (FMCG) companies in order to
compare certain performance metrics, namely: Strategic
Alignment, People, Category Development, Consumer
Marketing, Trade and Shopper Marketing, Supply Chain and
Customer Service. PCPPI ranked 9th overall out of

19 FMCGs. One of our directions is to ensure that we
continue improving on these performance metrics

moving forward.

The Advantage Group International regularly publishes

the Advantage Report, which covers programs in over

40 countries and over 60 markets worldwide. The Group
focuses on what drives higher business performance for
retailers and suppliers alike and uncover better practices
for both parties in order to show the pathways to improved
business outcomes.
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PEPSI PHILIPPINES WINS BIG AT
7-ELEVEN SUPPLIERS’ NIGHT 2019

PCPPI bagged three Excellence Awards during the 7-Eleven Suppliers’ Night
for having implemented various creative, customer-intuitive sales and
marketing initiatives, which contributed to 7-Eleven’s business growth

in 2018.

The company won an Innovation Award for its initiative in developing
activities and projects tailor-made for 7-Eleven, in particular the exclusive
launch of Pepsi Vanilla 500ml in stores. The award also acknowledged the
company’s consistent run of price promotions for summer and Christmas
which helped maximize sales of the Softdrinks category.

PCPPI also received the Brand Activation Partnership Award for its

strong support of 7-Eleven’s marketing activities. For 2018, the company
contributed to campaigns for Gulp (co-branded with Deadpool and
Pokémon), and Slurpee activations (Slurpee Summer Hit Song, and Slurpee
Build Your Own Concert). As a result of the latter, PCPPI helped regain sales
for Slurpee, in spite of TRAIN and subsequent price increase. In addition,
PCPPI also supported 7-Eleven’s other events (the annual Run 2018 and Trail
2018) and promotions (New Year New Ride Promotion).

Finally, PCPPI also won the Account Management Award which recognizes
the sales team’s dedication in client-servicing. The company maintained
excellent service through continuous weekly coordination with CDI and
PSC Marketing on requirements and system improvements, and by sending
Quality Service Assistants on daily store visits to assess product assortment
quality and execution.

“Crn with manket oﬂwﬂwﬁ«b‘w oun SATTE

, - +h T-Cten can till
urm»/u/rpﬁ, Pamwijf” w u
MHMW%VLMMWMV"’WB wiks

said Maricel Guro, PCPPI AVP/General Manager for Modern Trade Operations.
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Through strategic investments in its workforce, PCPPI helps support the goals and
objectives of the business. The main drivers of PCPPI’s people management are
the P.E.P.S.I. values: PASSION, EXCELLENCE, PROFESSIONALISM, SERVICE,

AND INTEGRITY.

These values were further demonstrated and more effectively communicated through “Great to Be Pepsi,” PCPPI’s
employee brand. Great to be Pepsi embraces everything positive about the culture of PCPPI and its competitive
advantage. PCPPI stands apart from the rest because of this values-driven culture that is seen in every aspect of the
business: in its ways of working, in the teamwork and collaboration within the company, and the focus on helping
people grow.

BUILDING A WINNING TEAM

In 2018, PCPPI’'s approach to managing its people focused on three main themes,
with corresponding key messages:

CAPABILITY AND CAPACITY CULTURE AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITMENT TO LEARNING
PCPPI drives a high-performing and PCPPI has a robust people PCPPI encourages growth.
high-integrity work culture. engagement program that makes it a

great place to bond.

Bukluran-led activities . P.E.P.S.I. Values . Leadership and Technical
Talakayan and Pulung-pulong . Long-term industrial peace Capability Programs

Annual Summit . Corporate Social Responsibility . Trainings and Learning Sessions
Plant Summits . Rewards and Recognition

Pepsi University

PCPPI implements programs to respond to these themes and promote the

Hreat to be Pa,w,'. brand among its employees.



WOMEN MOST WELCOME

Gender diversity is not considered an issue at PCPPI as the company’s policy is zero
tolerance for discrimination based on gender, age, ethnicity, religion, or background.
Leadership trainings are provided to qualified members of the team, and learning
opportunities are open to all. Initiatives for gender mainstreaming and inclusion are also
regular features in the annual calendar.

MEET OUR NEW GM

After 17 years of working for PCPPI,

Maricel “Mayette” Guro has not felt the
need to “lean in”—the action being entirely
unnecessary in an environment where
women’s voices are not just heard but
heeded. If there had ever been a glass
ceiling, Mayette already smashed it, being
an assistant vice-president and the first
female General Manager (GM)

of the company.

“According to most, | made history for being
the first female GM in PCPPI. Having been
trusted the position is a great privilege for
me,” said Mayette, explaining that of the
many considerations tied to her acceptance
of the job, entering into a leadership role
dominated by men was never a factor.

“I'am not concerned at all in entering a
‘man’s world.” That confidence is coming
from my core, my faith in God...My
husband’s support is also a big factor.”

Mayette earned her position through
sheer hard work. She joined PCPPI after
seven years as external auditor for SGV

& Co. Initially, she worked as PCPPI’s
Internal Audit Manager before becoming
the Finance Manager of Modern Trade
Operations (MTO), and then Director, until
finally being promoted as GM for MTO.

Promotion is based on merit and the
confidence of top management, said
Mayette. In her case, she was selected
among the other shortlisted candidates—




incidentally, all male—regardless of her
gender. Nor was age an issue.

“I am younger than most of our
ManCom members. Yet, we have mutual
respect for each other,” she said.

Mayette does not expect special
treatment, nor will she give it. “l believe
the expectations from us (GMs) are the
same,” she said. If there is any “special
favor” she is willing to grant, it would
be to prioritize internal candidates for
promotion. “This, | believe, brought
high morale to the team because
people are now seeing that their
career can grow within PCPPI. This
high morale resulted in MTO delivering
excellent results in 2018,” she said.

As far as her own unit is concerned,
gender or sexual preference is never a
consideration in hiring. Around 35% of
regular employees are currently female.
Employees are acknowledged for doing
a good job and counseled if they falter,
equally. “What makes you stay in PCPPI
is its family-like work environment

and having an ‘open-door’ policy that
makes you easily reach even the top
executives of this company. | believe
this is true for both men and women.

There are no gender biases in PCPPI.”

our workforce

Regular Employees

3,290

Rank & File

1,168

2,488 Outsourced

Specialist

1,780

Managerial

332

Executive

10

Employees by gender

@ Male ® Female

We have a
divtrer wonkfonct.

29%
71%
Specialist
24%
76%
Managerial
28%
72%
Total PCPPI




Employees by age group
MW&@%UWLW*’”&W'

Baby Boomer @ GenX @ Millennial

5.8%
36.7% 57.5%
Baby Boomer Gen X Millennial

(born 1964 & below)  (born 1965-1980) (born 1981-2001)

Generation Definition Source: Pitt-Catsouphes, Marcie, Christina Matz-Costa, and Elyssa Besen. "Age
& Generations: Understanding Experiences at the Workplace". Research Highlight, Chestnut
Hill, Mass.: Sloan Center on Aging & Work at Boston College, 2009.

Attrition Rate
2016-2018
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12.65% 12.63%
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Internal Promotion Benchmark

2016-2018
Oun prometion rott
Lo betten than induetry-
6.55%
6.25%
PCPPI
5.34%

2016 2017 2018
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Average Tenure
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12

Rank & File Specialist Managerial Executive
Average Age

41
Rank & File Specialist Managerial Executive

Employee satisfaction rate
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than the Philippine industry norm

*

Learning & Development (L&ED)

3|7

man hours per employee

Despite the decrease in L&D
expenses, HR was able to keep up
with the industry-standard training
hours per employee.

Employee Volunteerism

2018
COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER
VOLUNTEERS
PROJECT HOURS
Marawi Water for Peace 30 200
Brigada Eskwela 392 1,568
National Teachers’ Month 15 8

TOTAL 437 1,776

*People Engagement Survey (PES) through Willis Towers Watson surpassed all
high performing company benchmarks, foremost of which: Higher by +2% than the
Philippine national norm.



IT’S GREAT TO BE PEPSI!

In 2018, the Human Resources team launched the Great to be Pepsi
employee brand that sustains the positive work culture in PCPPI. It further
highlights the company as a great place to work, bond, and grow.

Aside from the traditional internal communications channels such as
emails, newsletters, and cascades used for promoting this initiative, the
Human Resources team activated the Great to be Pepsi Facebook group.
It aimed to give the Bravehearts another platform where they can share
their celebrations and successes across the PCPPI network.

The Facebook group gathered more than 1,000 employee-members within
three months of its activation. It brought in positive feedback from
the employees.

BUILDING SUPERIOR TALENT

Operations Leadership Development Program (OLDP)

The Operations Leadership Development Program (OLDP) was launched to
develop the skills of Operations associates and train them to become
line leaders.

The OLDP is a structured capability-building program covering both
functional/ technical and leadership skills. Launched on July 11, 2018, the
intensive 12-week training program covered five main modules, namely;
Environment, Health and Safety (EHS), Manufacturing, Maintenance, Quality,
and Logistics. A business case from each candidate was required so they
could graduate from the program.

YTD TRAINING REPORT
CORE FUNCTIONAL LEADERSHIP
Programs that Function-specific skill- Programs that will
will address non- up programs that will boost leadership
negotiables in the deliver business goals capability of
strategy house incumbents and

incoming leaders as
they grow in the role

e.g., Basic Occupational e.g., SLDP, OLDP, e.g., Pepsimula 2
Safety and Health, Finance Refresher
First-Aid, Earthquake Course, National
and Fire Drill, Values Logistics Roadshow,
Workshop National Quality

Assurance Training

52runs 73 runs 1run
35,478 hours 14,971 hours 240 hours
561 participants 999 participants 10 participants

NATIONAL TRAINING DATA

126 runs 18.759 hours 1,570 participants

Ten candidates across all plants and BUs were carefully selected to get into
the program. Apart from the learned skills and abilities, the candidates’
key takeaways were the lessons and experiences they had as a team. Upon
graduation, the 10 participants were deployed as line leaders.
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Developing the Coaching Culture

Meanwhile, Developing the Coaching Culture (DCC) is a program designed

by the National Sales Team to push capability development as an enabler to
achieve PCPPI’s business objectives. DCC starts with Training the Trainers/
Coaches, which entails refreshing the Coaches regarding the established
principles, processes, and best practices, and enabling them to cascade

to and facilitate the learning of their respective teams. Sales coaches

include the General Managers, Sales & Distribution Systems Manager, Sales
Managers, Trade Marketing Managers, HR Managers, and Territory Managers.

However, developing the functional capability of sales front-liners is very
critical in driving growth strategies; what matters is that the coaches are able
to teach the players what they know and ensure that these front-liners are
able to implement what they’ve learned in their actions.

In addition, the DCC program highlights the importance of having the
discipline to use the different monitoring tools: Territory University (TU) Tools
such as the HealthCheck, Work-Withs, One-With-One, etc. As stressed during
the DCC runs, at PCPPI, our monitoring tool is our coaching tool.

For 2018, there were a total of 22 DCC runs, covering 487 Sales Coaches, in
8,208 learning hours.

Alearning culture is not just having a classroom-training nor a one-session affair;

duuetoping copohility i+ o joUrny

and DCC intends to make coaching a way of life.

TEAM LOYALTY

In June 2018, Willis Towers Watson (WTW) administered the

People Engagement Survey (PES), to measure PCPPI’s employee
engagement. Proof that the P.E.P.S.I. values are embodied by PCPPI’s
workforce is the overwhelming 99.9% response/return rate—the
highest ever recorded by WTW in the Philippines. Ultimately, the

PES showed that PCPPI succeeded in its aim to have above-industry
people engagement.

PEOPLE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY RESULTS

89% overall sustainable engagement score
2% points above Philippine industry norm
7% higher than Global Fast-Moving Consumer Group norm
2% higher than Global High-Performing Companies norm

The 2018 PES results also showed where PCPPI’s strengths lay:

v Values. Employees champion the P.E.P.S.I. values.

v Communication. Employees are aware of their objectives and
knowledgeable about their department’s performance.

v Image. Employees have a high regard for the company.

v Leadership. The top management are visible to the employees;
they are perceived to act on matters related to the company



PEPSI’S POSITIVE WORK CULTURE

As part of culture and engagement, the Human Resources team drives
a positive work culture in PCPPI through its engagement programs
anchored on innovation, culture-building, people initiatives, and
community-building projects.

BUKLURAN

The success of PCPPI’s high level of engagement is fueled by the Bukluran
Council, composed of men and women of PCPPI, taking active roles in
promoting the four pillars of people engagement.

Led by the Bukluran Council, our employees participated in several
community initiatives, including coastal clean-up drives, a medical
mission in partnership with the Department of Health in Iloilo, and
Brigada Eskwela activities nationwide. In the latter activity alone,

392 employee-volunteers rendered 1,568 hours of service, refurbishing
school facilities, including cleaning and repainting classroom walls, and
personally donating plants, school supplies, and the company-
sponsored printers.

Fellowship activities, meanwhile, included a fun run (proceeds of which
funded Brigada Eskwela) and bowling day. To promote the value of family,
a number of business units (BUs) also took part in trick-or-treat activities
for the children of the employees.

VALUES CHAMPIONS

As PCPPI promotes a values-based culture, the company observes the
month of November as P.E.P.S.1. Values Month. Values Month activities
include national and plant-wide values recognition programs and
employees’ renewal of certificate of compliance (COC). This November
2018, in another landmark achievement, 100% of employees signed off
on the COC.

INDUSTRIAL PEACE AT THE PEPSI PLANTS

PCPPI respects the freedom of association and bargaining.
Currently, PCPPI has 13 unions with 1,111 members.

Management and union members enjoy positive relations backed
by mutually accepted agreements through Collective Bargaining
Agreements (CBA), Labor Management Discussions (LMDs), and
constant issues management and resolution.

This relationship fosters the continuing industrial peace enjoyed in
the company.
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH (OSH)

Recognizing that occupational safety and health are critical to our operations,
PCPPI’s top management are committed to providing both resources and
management direction to ensure the safety of our workplace, and promote the
health and well-being of our employees. Our goal is to achieve compliance with
all relevant regulations and standards in all our PCPPI plants. We understand
that this will help us reduce the risk of incidents, as well as any potential
regulatory action.

A major milestone for PCPPI is the continuous upgrading of resources to comply
with all structural requirements. The company invested in the following:

© v 8

Fire Detection and Fire Protection Rehabilitation of
Alarm System (FDAS) System Drainage System

*) 8

Materials Recovery Hazardous Waste
Facility Storage

This commitment to OSH means that PCPPI must fill the necessary positions to
enable the implementation of environment, health, and safety programs and
guarantee regulatory compliance. PCPPI hires the required EHS personnel safety
practitioners, Pollution Control Officers (PCO), Registered Electrical Engineers
(REE), Professional Mechanical Engineers (PME)/Registered Mechanical
Engineers (RME), Licensed Chemists, and Chemical Technologists. Required
medical professionals, such as Occupational Physicians, Dentists, and Nurses
also form part of our staff complement.

To further cement PCPP/I’s safety culture, all 13 plants also celebrate
Fire Prevention Month and the World Day for Safety and Health at Work.
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Sustainability is not new to PCPPI insofar as our employees have always acted out of genuine
concern for the environment. In line with PepsiCo’s Performance with a Purpose 2025 Agenda,
we at PCPPI have been enforcing limits on our consumption and wastage in a bid to minimize
our environmental footprint.

As part of our commitment to excellence and adopting environment-friendly ways of working,
PCPPI has invested in significant resources in programs to improve resource use

and efficiency.

We implement the following environmental programs:

Luntiang Yaman

PCPPI’s overall program for
water, electricity,

and material sustainability
spearheaded by Operations and
supported by Corporate Affairs

& Communications L U N T | AN G

Coastal Clean-Up

and Adopt-A-Creek
All the plants participate in

SUSTAINABILITY VISION
To be a Prime Advocate for a

clean-up activities on a quarterly Greener Earth
or annual basis, in partnership
with local Department of Energy SUSTAINABILITY MISSION

and Natural Resources (DENR)- Roingwhatsiightforthe

Environmental Management
Bureau (DENR-EMB) and

business without compromising
the environment and the

communities where we operate

respective local government
units (LGUs)
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WATER

Water is essential to our operations. As such, we make sure that we
consume 100% of our freshwater, which we source primarily from
deepwells and/or local water concessionaires. We make sure to
withdraw only what we need.

Historically, we have reduced the amount of water contained in
our products:

o . i aten
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We also apply, under the Luntiang Yaman program, the principle
of the 3Rs:

Reduce optimize water consumption through
improved operations and maintenance
Reuse instead of discharging to drain the final rinse of

the clean-in-place (CIP) process, it was collected
and re-used in the first stage of rinsing
Recycle ongoing development of recycling process

We have invested Php 125 million in Muntinlupa Plant as the pilot
plant for the recycling project “Bottle Washers Water Recovery”
and reusing project “Final Rinse Water Recovery” in collaboration
with PepsiCo India.

Under Luntiang Yaman, PCPPI has set standards for electricity and
water use, as well as fuel efficiency, that are applicable across all
its plants. These standards guide employees to conserve these
valuable resources, from monitoring their usage to practicing
eco-friendly personal habits, such as turning off the light and
air-conditioning units when not in use, and practicing wise water
use in the pantries and restrooms. By promoting these behaviors
among the employees, PCPPI creates a culture of environmental
awareness and responsibility in the workplace.

We have also instituted assessment and evaluation of our water-
savings programs. We started our Resource Conservation Program
in 2015 to account for water use in our nationwide network.

This 2018, we consumed 32.1% less water, which is more than
triple the expected reduction goal. Our best-performing plants for
the year have been Muntinlupa, Zamboanga, and Cagayan de Oro.

In total, PCPPI’s water withdrawal nationwide amounts to
5.79 million cubic meters, of which 1.11 million cubic meters come
from Muntinlupa alone.




LUNTIANG YAMAN CHALLENGE

The Luntiang Yaman program focuses on five critical areas for
environmental conservation and development—water, electricity, fuel,
solid waste, and community responsibility. The target is to accomplish
these goals by 2020.

Performance Targets 2014-2017 2014 to 2018
Water Use 10% reduction 24% 32.1%
Electricity Use 5% improvement 53% 36.2%
Fuel Consumption 5% improvement 28% 6.5%
Solid Waste g
Improve recycling by 85%
Management
Community- Conduct social responsibility initiatives through management
Building systems and community volunteerism projects

PEPSI JOINS ADOPT-AN-ESTERO PROGRAM

As part of PCPPI’s commitment and compliance to the Effluent
Standards of the Philippine Clean Water Act, the company ensures
that all its discharged wastewater is treated according to the limits
set by law as far as biochemical oxygen demand, oil and grease,

total suspended solids, acidity, and alkalinity are concerned.

In fact, our Sto. Tomas plant goes the extra mile by cultivating a
small pond, where our wastewater is first treated and “tested”
before being discharged into Laguna de Bay. The pond experiment
attempts to discover whether the wastewater will be capable of
supporting life—in fact, the pond is flourishing, with plants,

and fingerlings.

PCPPI is also participating in the Adopt-an-Estero program of

the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)-
Environment Management Bureau (EMB), which encourages
alliances between private companies, the local community, and
the local government unit to address the deteriorating conditions

of water bodies.
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PACKAGING MATERIALS

PCPPI is also conscious of the need to lessen the
amount of solid waste that ends up in the landfill,
or worse, pollutes bodies of water. Solid waste
management is a critical concern in the Philippines;
the country ranks third in terms of waste, globally.
Given that the FMCG sector is a major waste
generator, PCPPI joined PARMS, a coalition of
companies seeking a solution to the problem of
PCPPI adopted the one-kilometer stretch of Maimpis Creek, near the San Fernando plant, waste, particularly plastic waste.

on March 22,2017, and the Wee Sin Yen Creek, near the Davao plant, on June 23, 2017.
Since 2014, in collaboration with PepsiCo and Lotte,

PCPPI has implemented a packaging innovations
program with the objective of optimizing packaging
materials used in our products. This involves

Since then, clean-up activities have been conducted regularly, with volunteers from
the respective plants as active participants. These volunteers support the progress

monitoring together with partners, and with PCPPI offering funding for the activities and

“material lightweighting” or reducing the amount of
equipment used in geo-tagging the clean-ups. The plants also take the lead, alongside material that goes into packaging, from the bottle
the DENR-EMB in information and education campaigns promoting conservation and itself to the plastic wrapping used.

discouraging pollution of the water bodies.
The packaging innovations we adopted resulted in

smaller amounts of plastic resin in our packaging
every year:

This past year, the residual waste collected at the sites have been markedly minimized.
Trash is now being collected from the trimmed grasses along the creek, rather than from
the creek itself. Post-cleanup, visibly there are fewer water lilies in the creek. In particular,
in Maimpis Creek, one sees fingerlings instead, during the rainy season. Children are also

starting to fish in the area, and sometimes catch tilapia.

:
and. adopt additional watth bodite in the putunts 2016 2017
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In 2018, PCPPI was able to deliver the intended
volumes to consumers but with a sizeable reduction
in packaging materials usage:

Plastic resin used
in our PET containers by

38.3 MT

Glass material reduction
in our glass bottles by

1,040k MT

Carton material

°I usage reduction by
- 6895 MT

The program is aligned with PCPPI’'s commitment

to reduce our waste footprint. The lightweighting
program has resulted in both economic and
environmental benefits, not the least being diverting
tons of solid waste from landfills by minimizing the
use of glass, PET, and paper.

ELECTRICITY

We encourage our business units to collaborate and find solutions with widespread benefits.
Under our energy management system roadmap, we are already using energy-efficient lighting and
machinery in our plants; we also encourage our distributors to do the same.

In the interests of energy reduction, we shut down our CO2 plant and increased the capacity of our
third-party provider to produce what we need for our carbonated drinks. Given that this supplier is
using biomass, we have further minimized our emissions. Down the line, we expect that most of our
operations will be powered by a cogeneration plant.

Similar to our water-savings initiatives, we have also initiated a more stringent process of monitoring
our energy usage, as a crucial step in limiting our use. Efficient use of steam has improved
maintenance implementations, particularly in bottle washers. In 2018, the need for steam and fuel
meters was identified, for investment and full implementation in 2019.

2019 CAPEX BUDGET

Boiler meter: Php 20 million
Boiler control: Php 23 million
Steam meter: Php 1.5 million

Luntiang Yaman aims to improve the electricity utilization by 5% year-on-year by implementing
improvements in practices such as use of skylights to reduce dependency in electronic lighting, and
replacement of high bay lamps with LED bulbs to reduce consumptions.

Electricity Yield

6
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The implementation of EPIRA law in 2016 enabled PCPPI to attain financial savings
of at least Php 63 million in 17 billing periods by shifting the five mandatory
contestable plants to Retail Electricity Supply. In 2018, PCPPI saved 7.7 million kWh
of direct electricity from manufacturing operations and 9.1 million kWh indirect
electricity from packaging initiatives.

WITH OUR SUPPLIERS:

Our packaging innovations program also has the added benefit of using less energy
to process less material.

In 2018, we helped our suppliers save on energy* that would have been used to

produce our packaging materials:

N B

Plastic resin Glass Paper
940,927 kWh 426447 kWh 718,803 kWh

Did you know?

The energy saved through packaging innovations is
enough to light up 40,745 households**

* Computation based on the following factors, itemizing the amount of energy it takes to produce a kilogram
per material type:
Paper: 25-50 MJ (6,950 to 13,9000 watt-hours)
Plastics: 62-108 MJ (17,200 to 31,950 watt-hours)
Glass: 18-35 MJ (5,000 to 9,700 watt-hours)
Source of computation: https://www.lowtechmagazine.com/what-is-the-embodied-energy-of-materials.
html

** Computation based on Philippine household consumption of electricity per capita of 248.1 kilowatts per

hour, from the years 2000-2016 from www.statista.com.

CLEANER FUEL FOR FORKLIFTS

Our Talas Kaisipan (“Sharp Intellect”) initiative encourages our
people to be problem-solvers by looking for smarter ways to
improve on productivity and efficiency. In 2018, our Supply Chain
and Operations personnel plotted our delivery truck routes and
delivery times to find the most expedient, least-traffic-hitting ways
to reach our consumers, thus saving on our fuel needs. They also
made sure to increase the capacity of our trucks so that we are
able to load and distribute more product, minimizing the number
of return trips. [Please see related story on Supply

Chain Management.]

The company has also started transitioning from diesel fuel to
cleaner-burning liquid petroleum gas (LPG). This continues an
earlier initiative of transitioning to clean and/or renewable energy,
when PCPPI shifted its energy source from bunker fuel to steam for
its plant production facilities in 2010.

Forklifts, now running on LPG, move the raw and packaging
materials, and finished products from production area to delivery
trucks up to the receiving plants and sales offices. As of 2018, all
our forklifts are using LPG as fuel. Not only did this shift entail cost
savings, it also resulted in fewer gaseous emissions, such as NOx
and SOx, as well as particulate matter, than if diesel

had been used.

Fuel Yield
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

PCPPI Supply Chain Group performs three primary functions that
contribute a great deal to product manufacturing and availability. These
functions include planning, procurement and, finally, the distribution of
the items going to the various Business Units that manufacture them.

The planning process starts with the demand outlook provided by the
sales team. From there, the Inventory Planning and Control (IPC) team
determines the required Raw Materials, Packaging Materials over the
next three to 12 months and completes a supply plan for the items that
will be used by the various manufacturing plants.

Once the plan is determined, the procurement team collaborates

with various vendors in order to acquire the materials/items that are
necessary for the company’s operations at best value. Within that scope,
the team works to negotiate the best price, and at times, together with
the manufacturing team, drive the innovation of the materials in order to
reduce the amount needed by the company for its operations generating
less usage and better cost of operations.

After procuring the items and once the imported items start to arrive,
the importation team collaborates with various brokers in order to
release our imported items from the bureau of customs. Once released,
the central warehousing team steps in to manage the receiving of

the items as well as the distribution of the items going to the various
manufacturing plants in alignment with the plan that was determined
by the IPC team. The central warehousing team is also responsible for
the locally procured RMPM that will be directly delivered to the central
warehouse before being distributed to the various manufacturing sites.

Due to the setup of our manufacturing plants nationwide, the
manufacturing of the finished goods (FGs) are either centralized or
de-centralized: controlled either centrally or de-centrally. For the
de-centrally controlled FGs, the affected FGs are the returnable glass
bottles (RGB) stock keeping units (SKUs) as the quantity to be produced

at each RGB manufacturing line is determined independently by the
Business Unit that operates the RGB manufacturing line. For the Non-
returnable SKUs, the manufacturing of these are controlled centrally by
the National Logistics Services (NLS) based in HO Operations.

Decentralized Manufacturing: RGB SKUs (quantities to

be produced at each manufacturing line is determined
independently by the Business Unit operating the RGB
manufacturing line.)

Centralized Manufacturing: Non-Returnable SKUs (managed by
NLS, based in HO operations)

NLS provides support solutions to plant logistics, as well as for the raw
materials and packaging. National logistics handles the national planning,
production and distribution of non-returnable stocks, including beverage
in bottle (returnable and non-returnable). Within NLS, there are two
teams, the Product Availability Management (PAM) Team and Logistics &
Transport Solutions Team. Additionally, all the Logistics Service Managers
of the Business Units report functionally to the NLS.

The PAM Team manages the planning and production of the Non-
returnable SKUs at the national level. While the Logistics & Transport
Solutions Team provide support services related to warehousing and
storage of products, storage capacity planning, and volumes. They also
check the actual capacity of the warehouses to see how these can be
improved. The Logistics & Transport Solutions Team also provide support
in relation to Inbound Logistics (sourcing, storage and distribution of raw

and packaging materials) and Outbound Logistics (end-of-line storage,

transfer to warehouses, storage and distribution of finished products)

For third-party warehouses at the sales offices, these are contract
warehousing operations and are handled by finance. At the business unit
level, Inbound Logistics handles raw materials and packaging materials,
while Outbound Logistics handles FGs which is majority of the operations
at the business unit level.
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SUPPLY CHAIN IMPROVEMENTS AND ENHANCEMENTS

Enhanced sales and operation planning (S&OP)

PCPPI implemented a more rigorous sales and operation planning process which
encompass the processes involved in sales, operations, supply chain, and finance.

This process was formalized in October 2018.

The main objective is to align the functions in terms of the direction of the company;
establish the demand for the product we are selling; establish the supply plan (which
includes evaluating the risks that we foresee in terms of our direction), and then, together
with finance, look at the commercial impact of our planned activities. This is then
elevated to the executive committee for approval.

The S&OP serves as a venue where the functions can discuss and communicate the overall
direction, demand outlook, supply risks, and commercial viability on a monthly basis.
This allows PCPPI to make the necessary preparations and adjustments within each
function with a common objective.

The main risks that the S&OP process is trying to reduce significantly, if not eliminate

completely, are shortfall to customer (service level) and wastages.

SKU Streamlining

v

One major project of National logistics was SKU streamlining. This project had major
financial impact, in terms of minimizing losses and wastage due to expiration both for
RMPM and FG. The SKU streamlining was a collaboration between national logistics, sales
and marketing, and production and the supply chain. This was a comprehensive project

that went all the way up to the president.

Warehouse Streamlining Project

Two years ago, PCPPI implemented a warehouse streamlining project, undertaken by
National Logistics. We were able to expand our warehouse capacity, which directly
benefited our operations.

National Logistics services also spearheaded a warehouse streamlining project. Part of
the effort included relocating our warehouses nearer to our plant sites, and to reduce or
compress the number of warehouses for greater efficiency.

Objectives of the project were to drive profitability by optimizing resources, and to

maximize efficiency by reducing costs. If, for instance, products can be shipped directly to
the retail site instead of transporting to another location, it is possible to reduce costs.

v The warehouse streamlining project also involved central storage and shipping, Modern
Trade Operations, and the Muntinlupa plant operation. With respect to raw materials and
distribution per se, the effort is to reduce or eliminate waste. PCPPI must manage anything
that is bought or procured to avoid wastage. One of the initiatives was to implement
efficiency reporting for the inventory and planning side.

v We also work with a network of partner truckers and haulers (PCPPI currently has five
partners), as well as over-water forwarding operations. Before, we used to only work with
only a few overwater partners, but we have since tried to diversify and have expanded our
network of partners in order to have better options, improved rates, and greater flexibility
in terms of the service required.

v Interms of transport, in 2018, we had a project for domestic freight over water. Effective
negotiations with shipping lines for better rates enable us to generate substantial savings
on shipping costs. We now have five partners for shipping.

v From a supplier management side, with more suppliers available, there is greater flexibility
of operations as dependency on to a single supplier is eliminated. Having more suppliers
also helps in managing the company’s cash flow as it provides greater flexibility in

managing the operating capital.

Streamlining Sales Offices

v Thereis a national project for the network redesign of sales office. Previously, PCPPI had
more than 90 sales offices across the Philippines.

v By streamlining our sales offices, PCPPI was able to reduce transport and inventory
carrying costs, which had significant impact on our bottom line.

v In 2018, PCPPI started merging selected sales offices. PCPPI distributors can go straight to
the plant instead of having to go to a sales office. Direct delivery is also possible from plant
to the customers (distributors or key accounts.) This lessens transport costs and handling.

v Inrelation to product handling, PCPPI also implemented initiatives to maximize and
optimize load/pallet capacity. Instead of 30 cases to a pallet, it is now possible for us to

achieve 40 to 50 cases to a pallet.
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PCPPI CSR INITIATIVES

PCPPI believes in more than being the best performer when it
comes to corporate processes and plant operations. Spurred by the
management’s vision of promoting innovation and creating positive
impact on communities, the company seizes the opportunity to be
a vital part of progress at the grassroots through its corporate social
responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

In line with PCPPI’s main sustainability priorities, the following
programs were implemented for 2018:

6 WATER STEWARDSHIP

Access to safe water, sanitation, and hygiene (WaSH) is of utmost importance to PCPPI.
Among the PCPPI initiatives which have greatly benefited communities across the country
is PCPPI’s Water for Peace in Marawi. Responding to the local community’s cry for help,
PCPPI committed to turning over 12 water tanks to the city with the goal of servicing more
than 140,000 individuals and providing more than 3,551 students access to clean water. [See
accompanying feature.]

PCPPI’'s employees uphold the company’s spirit of service by participating in the company’s
CSRinitiatives. For the Water for Peace in Marawi project, 30 volunteers devoted a total of

200 hours to bring the water tanks to the schools and temporary shelters and distribute water
to the city’s residents.

In line with PCPPI’s water stewardship, employees have also consistently participated in
estero and coastal clean-up activities, as well as watershed replenishment through tree-
planting, and World Water Day.
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CH circuLAR ECONOMY

Aside from the internal initiative of Luntiang Yaman,
PCPPI has embraced the concept of a circular
economy by being a regular participant in (and
sponsor of) seminars and summits that promote
responsible manufacturing. All 13 plants of PCPPI
also participate in Earth Hour, signifying the
company’s support to address plant emissions and
help combat climate change. This 2018, the plants
saved 621.60 kWh for Earth Hour, equivalent to
0.46 MT of CO2, or 52.1 gallons of gasoline, or

1,135 miles driven by an average passenger vehicle.

As a member of the Philippine Alliance for Recycling
and Materials Sustainability (PARMS), PCPPI has also
been addressing post-consumer waste through a
joint recycling facility. Together with PARMS partners,
and in coordination with the Lake Management Office
of Muntinlupa, PCPPI joined the International Coastal
Cleanup (ICC) 2018. Volunteers cleaned the waterway
system in Muntinlupa City, home to PCPPI’s largest
plant and home office. Simultaneous clean-ups were
also conducted along Batangas, Subic, and Cebu.

To further promote environmental awareness, PCPPI
is also a supporter of Miss Earth and Miss Econest
pageants. The latter’s inaugural competition in 2018,
for example, crowned the “ecoguardian” who will
serve as the ambassador for promoting proper solid
waste management.

«Ppepsi

As a partner in nation-building, PCPPI concentrates on capacity-building
activities in the localities where the company operates. This could be in the form
of livelihood or educational support. In some cases, PCPPI acts as helpmate to
the government in bringing basic services to the local communities.

INCLUSIVE PROSPERITY FOR MICRO-, SMALL,
AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES (MSMES)

PCPPI provides direct employment opportunities for startup entrepreneurs.
Started over 10 years ago, the company’s Entrepreneurial Distribution System
(EDS) offers enterprising individuals the opportunity to serve as distributors of
Pepsi products. EDS works by allowing independent contractors to service
one or more sales routes, usually by truck, to supply retail outlets.

These contractors also collect the empty returnable bottles (RGBs). EDS also
partners with sari-sari stores, which serve as points-of-sale.



INCLUSIVE PROSPERITY THROUGH EDUCATION

PCPPI is a long-time partner of the Department of Education (DepEd),
through the Adopt-a School program and the Brigada Eskwela program

or nationwide school maintenance week. The Adopt-A-School program
assists public schools by linking them with private institutions. Employee-
volunteers were active not just in the Brigada Eskwela but also in turning
over equipment to the Muntinlupa National High School and the Muntinlupa
Elementary School.

In addition, PCPPI supported DepEd’s culmination of National Teachers’
Month on October 5, 2018. Established in 2008, this year’s celebration—
which features a talent show, games, and other activities had over
6,000 teachers in attendance in its host city of Ormoc, its biggest

celebration by far.

INCLUSIVE GROWTH FOR UNDERSERVED AREAS

PCPPI employees have the heart to be of service to underserved
communities. In partnership with the Department of Health (DOH)
Philippine Centers for Specialized Health care internship program, post-
graduate interns and Pepsi employees hosted a two-day medical mission
in the underserved communities of Batad, lloilo. The “G sa Iloilo: Reach
the Unreachable” project provided locals with free consultation and
medicines, along with complimentary Pepsi products such as Aquafina
and Premier mineral water, Tropicana juice, and Gatorade. The project
provided hundreds of locals in the communities of Bulak Norte, Binon-an,
and Cabagohan with comprehensive, holistic medical service. PCPPI aims to
expand this initiative to reach more beneficiaries in rural Visayas.
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PEPSI AND PDRF: “WATER FOR PEACE IN MARAWYP’

Marawi City’s five-month siege from May to October 2017 had a costly toll:
millions in infrastructural damage and 72,000 families displaced. Given that
water facilities were destroyed, access to clean water has been limited.

Avyear has passed, and the region is still recovering.

PCPPI saw the need to bring aid to Marawi. Embodying the spirit of unity,
Pepsi teamed up with Philippine Disaster Resilience Foundation (PDRF)

and Task Force Bangon Marawi to provide the displaced communities, and
various elementary schools sheltering them, with water tanks. The company
believes that with a stable water source, the locals will have a renewed

determination to rebuild their city.

The goal to provide hope and a better standard of living for Marawi locals

became a part of Pepsi Philippines’ ‘Water for Peace in Marawi’ initiative.
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Rather than just providing water donations, the partner-organizations came
up with the solution of providing water tanks as a more sustainable solution
to the region’s problem. The project’s initial goal was to provide a total of
12 cylindrical stainless-steel water tanks with 20,000-liter capacity to
underserved shelter sites. Upon the beneficiaries’ request, these 12 tanks
have since been converted to seven 20,000-liter water tanks for camps,

10 3,200-liter tanks for schools, and one 50,000-liter tank for the new camp.

WE HAVE PROVIDED

140,000+

internally
displaced persons

3,551+

students
in Marawi City

ACCESS TO 222,000 LITERS OF WATER



7 20,000-liter water tanks

for 6 camps

1 o 3,200-liter water tanks

for 10 schools

1 50,000-liter water tank

for the new camp

On August 28, 2018, the first water tank was turned over to the
village of Bito Buadi Itowa. The 20,000-liter water tank serviced the
underserved shelter sites across Lanao del Sur. On November 23,
2018, two more 3,200-liter water tanks were turned over to various
elementary schools, with the first beneficiaries being Rorogagus

Elementary School and Abdulazis Elementary School.

Beyond providing a water source, PCPPI and PDRF also
conducted Water Sanitation and Hygiene (WaSH) activities for
the children at the Area 1 Sagonsongan Village. Proper hygiene
and waste management were taught through simple lessons,
games, and songs. Hygiene kits containing basic toiletries like
soap, toothpaste and toothbrush, and hand towel, were also
distributed. By the end of 2018, Pepsi and PDRF have been able
to provide seven 20,000-liter tanks and 10 3,200-liter water
tanks. Come 2019, a 50,000-liter tank is set for turnover to a new
camp in Marawi, and nine more WaSH training workshops will be

conducted for the community.
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MAPPING AGAINST THE UNITED NATIONS
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (UN SDGs) serve as a universal guide by
which governments, and now corporations, model
initiatives that would help solve shared challenges
confronting the world. Ever a team player, PCPPI
believes in aligning our own sustainability
priorities with the global community—through

the Performance with Purpose 2025 Agenda of
PepsiCo, but as well as the UN SDGs. At the very
least, we believe our contributions, however small,
will have a meaningful impact. In batting for the
same goals, our chances of winning the fight for a
safer, healthier, and more humane world become

much better.

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

Ensure availability and
sustainable management
of water and sanitation

for all

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

\ 4

Ensure healthy lives and
promote well-being for all

atall ages

Pepsi treats water as a precious
resource. Since 2014, we have been
able to practice conservation and to
reduce our water consumption
every year.

In the absence of a stable water
source in Marawi City, we contributed
water tanks to ensure that residents
have a reliable access to safe,
potable water.

We expanded our hydration
categories to include water and
have launched products such as
carbonated drinks with
reduced sugar.




CIRCULAR ECONOMY

Ensure sustainable consumption

and production patterns

1 CLIMATE
ACTIIN

*

Take urgent action to combat

climate change and its impacts

1 LIFE
BELOW WATER

Take urgent action to combat

climate change and its impacts

1 FOR THE COALS

Revitalize the global partnership

for sustainable development

All our manufacturing plants practice
materials conservation, resource
management, and recycling through
the Luntiang Yaman Program.

All our manufacturing plants
participate in Earth Hour
activities and practice solid waste
management, and energy-saving
and emissions reduction activities
through the Luntiang

Yaman Program.

All our manufacturing plants
participate in clean-up activities
through the Adopt-A-Creek program
and the annual International
Coastal Clean-Up.

PCPPI, as a member of the Philippine
Alliance for Recycling and Materials
Sustainability (PARMS), is directly
involved in recycling efforts and
coastal clean-ups to lessen

plastic pollution.

INCLUSIVE BUSINESS

DECENT WORK AND
ECOROMIC GROWTH

o

Ensure sustainable consumption

and production patterns

Achieve gender equality and

empower all women and girls

QUALITY
EDUCATION

|

Ensure inclusive and equitable

quality education

We have ramped up our Occupational
Safety and Health (OSH) campaigns.
In 2019, we will also be holding our
Environment, Health, and Safety
(EHS) Summit.

PCPPI practices gender parity in
employee hiring and promotions,
and calendars initiatives for gender
mainstreaming and inclusion yearly.

PCPPI regularly participates in the
Department of Education’s Brigada
Eskwela program and supports
National Teachers’ Month.

4l



’s a team effort

PCPPI’s approach to corporate governance enables our company to manage and
direct our operations, address risks to the business, and respond to the needs
and concerns of our stakeholders. Our commitment to integrity and our drive to
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance allow us to sustain our
business operations, serve our customers with the products that they love, and
adapt to the needs and preferences of a growing market.

Passion and excellence, two of our PEPSI values, shape our corporate culture,
and we believe that these are also what motivates our people to give their best.
We take responsibility for our people, in terms of giving them work that is both
challenging and rewarding, and we strive to give them opportunities to grow with
us. At the same time, we work closely with our service providers, suppliers, and
contractors and seek to build productive and mutually beneficial relationships
with them. As they are partners in our business, we share our commitment to
service and best practices with them.

OUR BOARD COMPOSITION

The PCPPI Board of Directors (BOD) holds the responsibility for establishing and developing standards
and strategies for the company, and to ensure that all activities are aligned with our mission and vision.
The board members are industry leaders in their own right and are well-positioned to contribute their
experience and expertise to our organization. Beyond their business acumen, they are also selected for
their commitment to social responsibility. The BOD is led by an independent, non-executive chairperson,
and includes two independent directors to facilitate conflict management and ensure affiliations do not
hamper governance.

The Executive Committee oversees financial and operating performance. This committee is also
responsible for formulating pricing, sales, and marketing strategies, as well as planning for capital



expenditures. Our senior general managers are accountable for our workforce,

as well as market strategies.

Nomination Committee. Led by an independent director, this committee
ensures that leaders are identified and selected based on their qualifications,

as well as their vision, and integrity.

Compensation and Remuneration. This committee is led by an independent
director, while another independent director also sits as a member of the
committee. It is tasked to ensure that the compensation of the BOD remains fair

and competitive.

Audit Committee. This is led by an independent director, with another sitting as
a committee member. The committee assists the BOD in executing its fiduciary

responsibilities and maintains oversight over the company’s financial reporting

and internal control. It also coordinates with external auditors and ensures the
integrity of the audited financial statements.

The internal audit group conducts regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management procedures; these are then submitted for the review of the Audit

Committee at the Board level. An external audit firm is tasked to conduct

annual risk audits, as well as matters relevant to financial reporting and internal

controls. These reports are submitted to the Audit Committee.

PCPPI also has a compliance officer, who reports directly to the BOD. This helps

establish a culture of integrity and transparency.

&

UPDATES ON OUR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Data Privacy Act

In compliance with the Data Privacy Act of 2012 (DPA),
PCPPI has established its Data Protection Office with the
appointment of Atty. Lope R. Manuel, Jr., PCPPI’s Vice-
President for Legal, Corporate and Government Affairs.

In 2018, PCPPI embarked on its Data Privacy Compliance
Project with the assistance of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
This project endeavours to evaluate the data processing
systems of the company, conduct privacy impact
assessment and increase the awareness and compliance of
the employees with the DPA.

Compliance with Regulatory Requirements

In furtherance of PCPPI’s efforts to build a culture of
compliance, PCPPI, with the assistance of its legal
consultant, conducted a company-wide review of the
availability of legal and regulatory requirements, and
implemented its plan of action on the observations.

Henceforth, regular monitoring and reporting of permits
and licenses of the head office, plants, and sales offices are
being conducted by the Compliance Team.




Policies and Guidelines for Employees

PCPPI has made effective and cascaded several policies
and guidelines mandated by the Department of Labor and
Employment (DOLE). These include policies and guidelines
on prolonged sitting and standing, prevention and control
of heat stress; awareness and prevention of HIV-AIDS,
severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS), tuberculosis,

and Hepatitis B; maintaining a drug-free, alcohol-free and

smoke-free workplace; breastfeeding; and anti-sexual
harassment.

The anti-graft and corruption policy was also enhanced,
particularly providing for the procedure for approval of
giving out products.

PCPPI also has a whistleblowing policy in place, entitled
Speak-Up Program, which provides for various channels,
i.e., sms, call, email for employees and third parties to
report on any possible infraction or violation of policies by
PCPPI employees.

Suppliers’ Code of Conduct

PCPPI has worked toward building a positive reputation in the fast-moving consumer
goods (FMCG) industry as a company driven by professionalism and integrity in pursuit
of being the premier beverage company in the Philippines. PCPPI’s commitment to
adhere to the highest legal and ethical standards of business conduct is fundamental to
that reputation. Adherence to these standards protects the consumers, as well as the
company and its business partners.

PCPPI has improved its current Compliance Guidelines for Suppliers and came up with
the Suppliers’ Code of Conduct in 2018 which will be completely rolled-out in 2019.

Aside from the anti-corruption/bribery principles which have been included in the
previous guidelines, PCPPI has specifically provided for in the Suppliers’ Code of Conduct
the compliance with Business Integrity and Ethical Standards, Human Rights and Labor
Standards, Health and Safety, and Quality and Food Safety, and Environmental Impact.

It also provides for the modes by which PCPPI can be contacted if there are complaints or
concerns to be addressed.

It is the responsibility of every supplier to be knowledgeable about and comply with this
Supplier Code. In addition to the standards described therein, the suppliers are expected
to comply with all applicable laws, regulations and contractual terms. The company
takes violations seriously, so it is important to know the applicable requirements, and
comply accordingly.

Respecting human rights, minimizing environmental impacts, providing safe places

to work, and ensuring the sustainability of business operations — these are highly
considered when we choose and work with suppliers. By working together on these
issues we can create strong business relationships and ensure we have a positive impact
on the people and communities we work with and depend upon. We believe it also
strengthens both PCPPI and our partners’ businesses.
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Ma. Vivian A. Cheong
SVP, Human Resources

Lyndon Ferdinand
J. Cuadra
VP, Senior General Manager
(Visayas)

Samuel M. Dalisay, Jr.
VP, Supply Chain

Aristedes H. Alindogan
VP, Senior General Manager
(Luzon)

Roberto E. Tongcua
VP, Senior General Manager
(Mindanao)

Lope R. Manuel, Jr.
VP, Legal and Government
Affairs/ Compliance Officer/
Data Protection Officer
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Director
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Mohammad Qasim Khan
Director
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Tae Hyeon Kim
Director

Rafael M. Alunan 1l
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FEPPI Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
K. 29, Maticnal Boad, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City, 1773 Philippines

Pmpesi-Cola Products Philippines. in Tel: (632) 83-PEPSITITT] + www,peasiphilipgines.com

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESFONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Ine. (the “Company ™) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached
therein, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2018, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated
therein, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ar efror

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company”s
ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going congern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same 1o the Stockholders.

R. G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the Stockholders, has audited the
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
its report to the Stockholders, has expressed its opinio faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audit.
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OSCARS ' YONGSANG YOU
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive OiTicer
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SAMUDRA BHATTACHARYA KHALED MAHMOUD MAHMOUD METWALLI
President™ Senior Vice-President,

Chief Financial Officer and

Chief Audit Executive

Signed this 28th day of March 2019

Los 79 & 4y B8 @ 2> IE wxs Bl @G o 12

50



51

R.G. Manabat & Co.
The KPMG Cenler, 3/F
B787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 TO00

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985
Internet whww_kpmg.com.ph

Emal ph-inguiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km. 28, National Road

Tunasan, Muntiniupa City

Opirion

Vil have audited the financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc

(the "Company”), which comprise the statements of inancial position as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statements of changes in aquity and statements of cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatery information.

In our opinicn, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs),
Clur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audiors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accourtants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled owr other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial staterments of the current period. These matters
weare addressed in the context of our audit of the financlal statemants as a whale, and I
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition is included in
Note 3, Significant Accounting Policies, to the financial statements,

The risk: The nature of the Company's selling and distribution system, the high
volume of products, its geographical locations, and various stakeholders’
expectations pose a risk that the Company may recognize certain revenus from sale
of goods at or near the year-end without meeting all the required recognition criteria
and conditions under Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 15, Revenue
from Conitracts with Cuslomers.

Our response: Our audit procadures included, among others: assessment of the
design and effectiveness of controls in respect of revenue; identifying and testing the
Company's key revenue controls in selected kocations with detailed testing of
transactions; assessment of whether the Company’s revenue recognition palicy in
place complies with PFRS515 and ensuring its consistent application; performing
sales cut-off procedures prior to and post year-and; and testing of credit memos
isswed after year-ond. In addition, we ovaluated the reasonableness of revenues by
developing an expectation of the current vear balance based on trend analysis,
taking into account histerical monthly sales data and crcumstances in the current
year. We also tested a sample of manual journal entries to identify unusual or
iregular Rems.

Frovisioning

The Company™s accounting palicics with respect to provisions is included in Note 3,
Significant Accounting Palcies, to the financial statemeants.

The rsk: The Company is subject of a disputed assessment for deficiency taxes for
the taxable pencds in 2010, The Company appealed this assessment to the Court
of Tax Appeals, for which on-going preceedings are being conducted. The
Company applied judgment when determining whether to provide, and how much to
provide for these tax matters. The magnitude of potential expesures and the
inharent uncertainty of the case and judgment involved in determining whather to
make additional provislons and disclosures pose a risk on the appropriate
recognition of provisions under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabiities and
Confingent Assels.

Cur response: Our audit procadures included assessment of the designand
implarmentation of contraks around the recognition and continuous re-assessment of
tax provisions. With the assistance of our tax specialists, we assessed the
Company's tax positions, its comespondance with the relevant tax authorfties and s
external tax advisors, assessed assumptions used to defermine tax provisions and
inspected relevant supporting documentaton through audit sampling. In addition, we
obtained formal confirmation from the Company's legal counsel. We also
considered the adequacy of the Company's disclosures in the financial staternents
with respect to these proceedings.



Cther Infarmation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infarmation comprises
the information included in the SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement),

SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the yvear ended December 21, 2018, but does not
include the financial staternents and our auditors' report thereon. The SEC Form 2015
(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors” report.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennaction with our audits of the financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information ide ntified above when i becomes available and, in doing 5o, consider
whether the other infermation is materially inconsistent with the financial staternents or
our knowledge obtained in the audits or othersise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemnal control as manage ment
determines i necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free
from matemal misstatermeant, whether due to fraud or arrar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concam basis of accounting unless
management either ntends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurancea
5 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Mizstatements can ansa from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influance the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the nsks of material misstaterment of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materal misstaternant resulting fron
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an undarstanding of internal control relevant to the aud®t in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contral.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pobcies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates and related disclosures by management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of managerment’s use of the going concemn basis
of accounting and, based on the aud# evidence obtained, whether a material
uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's abilty to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncerainty exisits, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements, or if such disclosures are inadequate,
te madify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors” repart. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents,
inchuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represant the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the aud®t and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we entfy during our audit.

We also provida those chargad with governance with a statement that we have compliec
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independencea, and communicate with tham
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and whore applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we dotermine
thase matters that ware of most significance in the audit of the financial statemants of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in
our auditars” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
ar when, in extramely rare circumstances, we determine that matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reascnably be expected to oubweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors® report is
Vernilo G. Yu.

RL.G. MANABAT & CO.

RN . YU

Partner
CPA License No, 108798
SEC Accrediation No. 1574-A, Group A, valid until August 11, 2019
Tax Kentfication Mo, 225-454-852
BIR Accreditation Mo. 08-001987-35-2018

Issued September 20, 2018; vakd untl September 19, 2021
PTR Mo. MKT 7333641

lgsued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

March 28, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES. INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4, 25 P548,598 P498 352
Recaivables - nel 5 23 25 2542413 2.404 681
I entones & 5,039,841 2,484 230
Due from relaled parties 22 25 567,308 580174
Propaid expenses and olher currenl assels 281,843 284,299
Total Current Assets 8,979,604 5,251,736
Noncurrent Assets
Invasimants in associales T 612,656 S96.07TT
Botles and cases - net g 4,440,968 4870119
Property, plan and equipment - nel 9 11,819,220 11,820,635
Dalerred lax assels 12 115,781 125387
CHht noncurrenl assels 204,411 280 407
Tatal Noncurrent Assets 17,193,038 17.892 635
P26,172,840 P24,144 371
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounis payable and acerued
erpenses 10, 13, 23, 25, 26 P3,221,397 P8, 132 493
Short-term dabt i1, 25 1,000,000 3,100,000
Current portion of long-lerm debl 11, 25 795,456 598,749
Income tax payable 8,861 42 343
Total Current Liabilities 11,025,714 11.873.585
Moncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current porfion 11, 25 4,626,874 1,147,783
Deferred tax Babilities 12 696,564 B70,002
Sher nencurrent liabililies 13, 25 36 664,423 BOT 545
Total Moncurrent Liabilities 5,987,861 2825330
Total Liabilities 17,013,676 14,698 915
Equity
Share eapltal 14 1,751,435 1,751,435
Remeasurement losses on net defined
benafil lability 13 {195,079) (270, 754)
Retained earings i1, 15 7,602,708 7064 775
Total Equity 9,159,065 9,445 456
P26,172,840 P24,144 3T

S Motes o the Financi Siolemenls



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Eamings Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2007 2016
GROSS SALES 24 P38437.515 PISEEE107  P35,751,405
LESS SALES DISCOUNTS,
RETURMNS AND
ALLOWAMNCES 24 4,843 087 5,560,538 5,431,027
NET SALES 33,594 418 30,305,568 30,320,488
COST OF GOODS S0LD 16 27 B8B83, 36T 23 032 550 23,406,143
GROSS PROFIT 5,711,051 T.2T72978 5,914,325
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and distribution 17 3,998 494 4,418,587 3.676,995
Genaral and administrativa i 1,190,181 1,055 267 870,232
Markeling 23 656,062 941,853 1,005,630
5,854,737 6,415,807 5,652,857
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (143,688) B5T,1T1 1,261,465
FINAMCE AND OTHER
INCOME (EXPENSES)
Equity in net earings of
associates 7 16,579 11,880 13,920
Interest income 4, 22 5,354 4,725 4,427
Imterast expanse 11, 26 (276,329) {136,837) (20, 7E8)
Other income - net 26 134,544 31,085 23,304
(118,852) (89,167) (49,117}
FROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (262,638) 768,004 121233
INCOME TAX BENEFIT
[EXPENSE) 12 62,998 {226 6T9) (359,229)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (199,540} 541,325 853,122
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME [LOSS)
Item that will not e
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuwamant gains (losses)
on delined benelll Bability -
nel of delerred lax 12 13 75,675 (3,602} 10,661
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) (P123,885) P537,723 P253,783
Basic/Diluted Earnings
Per Share 2 (P0.0E) PO.1S P0.23

See Moles to the Fuancial Stxements.

853,122
10,6861
BE3 TR
{243,789)
9,162,603
541,325
{(3.602)
537,723

Total Equity
(224.870)
0 445 456

Pg 542 G609

Years Ended December 31
Retained
Eamings

[see Mate 15)

853,122
A53,122
(243, TES)
7, 67e 320
541,325
541,325
(254,870}
7.064 775

P7 068,587

Remeasurement
Gains (Losses) on
Net Defined
Benefit Liability
(see Note 13)
(P77 813)
10,551
10 651
(267, 152)
(3,602)
(3.602)
(270, 754)

Tetal
1,751,435

1,751,435

1,751 435

Share Capital
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

(see Mole 14)
PH,157 369
1,197 369
1,167 368

(Amounts in Thousands)

Capital
Stock
(see Note 14)
954,068
554 068

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
P554,066

PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

15

Note

Company directly recarded in equity

Company directly recorded n equity
Cash dividends dunng the year

Cash dividends during the year

Balance as at December 31, 2045
Transaction with equity holders of the
Transaction with equity holdars of the

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the vear

Balance as al December 31, 2018
Balance as at December 31, 2017

Borward

Other comprehensve 1088 - nel
Total comprehensive income
Todal comprehensive incame
Profit for the year

Oither comprehensive gain - net
Total comprehensive incame




75675

{123,865

{P158,540)
(162.526)

PEP5I-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31

(159, 540)

(162,626)
P7,602708  P9,159,065

Eamings

(P153,540)

Years Ended December 31
Retained

P -
675
75,675
(P195,078)

(see Mote 13)  (see MNote 15)  Total Equity

Het Defined
Benefit Liability

Remeasurement

Gains (Losses) on

Total
P1,751,435

Additienal
Paid-in
Capital

[see Mole 14)

P1,187 369

Share Ca

Stock

Capital
[see Nate 14)

PEE4, 065

15

Note

Company directly recorded in equity

Cash dividends during the year

Total comprehensive income
Transaction with equity holders of the
Balance as at December 31, 2018

See Nofes o the Financia! Siatemen 2

Total comprehensive income
Other comprehensive loss - net

Profit (loss) for the year

Note 2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profil (loss) before fax [P262,538) P7E68,004 P1.212.351
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and
amartzalion 8 a9 19 2,632,271 2,852 727 2,738 382
Interes! expensa 11, 26 276329 136,837 90,768
Retirement cost i3, 20 123,879 116 684 112 462
Impairment losses on
(reversal of)
recaivables,
inventories, bottles and
cases, and machinery
and equipment 5 6,89 61,559 327,306 (3.292)
Less on disposal af
propery and equipment 9 14,566 24,516 5,243
Equity in nat earnings of
associates 7 {16,579) (11,280) (13.920)
Imtarast income 4 22 [5,354) {4,725 (4,427
Oparaling profil before working
capial changes 2823133 4,308 469 4139577
Changes in operaling assels
and liabilities:
Decrease (inerease) n:
Due from retated paries 12,885 2,000 8,904
Prepaid expanses and
ather current assats 2,656 (7, 791) (44,349)
Invantories (2,5983.478) (T73.110) (291,245)
Receivables {174,718) (485.270) (251,482
Increase in accounls payable
and accrued sxpenses 1,010,496 639,019 604 092
Cash genarated from operations 1,080,954 3818317 4,296 356
Interest received 6,278 4,718 4,432
Income laxes paid {168,T37) (173,443) (444 B48)
Contribudion to plan aszels 13 {124,000) (33,004) (50,000)
Relwamenl benalis paid
directly 1o employees 13 (35,038) (36,278) (47 5800
el cash provided by operating
activities 769,459 3380316 3,758,400
Forward



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tears Ended December 31 (Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data and
Note 2018 2047 2016 When Otherwise Indicated)
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from disposal of 3
property and equipment P2,667 P6,347 P267 1. Repaiking Sncky
'p"c::rdmuns' m:I d PapsicCola Producls Philippines, Inc. (the “"Company”) was incorporated as a slock
mp-lfiﬂ'f".l:n?nl an é (1,206,087) (2.215.112) (2.055.792) corporation in the Philippines on March 8, 19389, with a corporate Be of 50 years,
B:I?I-:.F' splt § '?.” 168 1'#2'332 1'502‘415 primsarily to engage in manaciuring, sales and dsfribution of carbonated soft-drinks
Doe i h (7n, J , 332} . A18) (CS0)., non-carbonated beverages (NCB) and confectionery products bo retaid
rease {Emms:;}" other 75,956 41 7% 14 765 wholesale, restawants and bar lrades. The regislered office address and principal
[ONCINTCTR Saat 5 (11,737) 1 place of business of the Company is al Km. 29, National Road, Tunasan, Munfinlupa
Met cash used in investing City.
activities (1,897,592) (3,692 834) (3,644,183)

On May 16, 2014 and May 30, 2014, the Company's Board of Directors (BOD) and
Stockholders approved (on the respective dates) the amendments to the Article of
Incorparation, particularly on its primary purpose to engage in, oparate, conduct and

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceads from: kR it i ) : 1 . : . .
mainlain fhe business of manufacturing, imporing, buying, selling, handling,
f"""}"""‘ ::D"[‘ 12?&3 50000 IRRahai distributing, frading or otherwise dealing in, at wholesale and (1o the extent allowed
Hﬁ:?;';r::;nts of: . i ) by law) retall, food and food products, snacks, confeclionery drinks and other
; beverages in bollles, cans and olher conlaingrs or despensers and other relaled
E;nrlfann:a;t “B':ﬁ‘ﬁl “B';gg'ﬁ} {g'gg‘g] goods of whalever nalure, and any and all malenals, supphers and olher goods wsed
Ca ﬁ’. E_:Im d: i 15 I1 ‘EZE] { EJIBTU} t?ﬂﬂ‘?'ﬂgl or employed in or related 1o the manfaciure of such finished products as well as the
Inr:remmpa"’ldn pa g 11 Ezﬁmi Efs-i'zm; 5155116-:& amendment of the Company's principal office address. The said amendments were
Disbd edtianion ol 1 E:D:'J:Eﬂ i ) approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 27, 2014,
Met cash provided by (used in) The Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and has been
financing activities 1,188,379 490,822 (258.953) included in the PSE composite index since February 1, 2008. Lofte Corparation, with
NET INCREASE a 42.22% slake in the Company, is the larges] shareholkder ol the Company. Quaker
Global Investments B.V. is the other major shareholder with a 25.00% stake. Lotie
(DECREASE) IN CASH 60,248 178,304 (144,738) Corporation was organized under the laws of South Korea. Quaker Global
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 498,362 320,048 464,786 Invesiments BV, was organized under the kv of the Nelherkands.
CASH AT END OF YEAR o4 P548,598 P498 352 F320,048

2. Basis of Preparation

oo Nobes o the Firmocial Slataments.

Statement of Compliance

Tha financial stalerments have been prepared in compliance wilh Philppine Financial
Reporing Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based om Inlernational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). PFRSs which are mswed by the Philipping Financial Reporling
Standards Council (FRSC), consisl of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PASs), and Philippine Interpretations.

The accompanying financial statements as al December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for
each of the three years period ended December 31, 2018 were approved and
authorized for issuwe by the Company’s BOD on March 28, 20189. The BOD has the
povsar lo amend Lhe linancial slalemenls aller ssuancea.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3 1o the financial
statements.
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This is the first sel of the Company's annual financial statements in which PFRS 15
Rewvenue from Confracts with Customers and PFRS 9 Financial Instruments have
been applied. Changes lo signilicant accounling pobicies are described in Note 3 lo
the flinancial slatement s,

Basis of Measurameant

The fnancial stalerments have been prepared on the hstoncal cost base of
accounting, except for the net defined benefit liabilty which is recognized at the
present value of the defined benefil obligation less fair value of plan assets.

Funclional and Presanlalion Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which iz the Company's
funclional currency. All amouwnis have been rounded-off o the nearest thousands,
excepl par share dala and when olherwise indicaled.

Use of Judgments and Estimates

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments,
eslimates and assumplions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assels, Eabiliies, income and expenses, Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewsed on an ongoing basks and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of fulure
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospecively,

s
Information about judgments made in applying accouwnting polcies thal have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statemenis are
included in the fobowing notes:

= MNole 24 - Determinalion of whether the Company = acling as a Principal or an
Agent

Mote 25 - Classifying financial instruments

MNote 26 - Determination of whether an arrangement conlaing a lease

Mole 26 - Lease classification

Mole 26 - Commiments, Conlingencees and Losses

Assurnpbons and Estirnalion Uncertainlies

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant
rizk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets, liabilities
and equity within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

= Nole3 - Eslimation ol allwance for impairmend losses on receivables
=  MNole 26 - Commitmenis, Conlingencies and Losses

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies gel oul below have been appled consistently to all years
presented in these fnancial slatements, except for the changes in accounting
policies explained below.

Adoplion of Mew or Revised Slandards, Amendments o Standards  and
Interpretations

The Company has adopled the following new standards, amendments to standards

and nterpretalions staring January 1, 2018 and accordingly, changed s accounting

policies. Exceptl as otherwise indicated, the adoplion did not have any significant

impact on the Company’s financial statements

« PFRS 15, Rewvenue from Contracts with Cusfomers, replaces PAS 11,
Construchion  Confracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC-13 Customer Loyally
Frogrammmeas, IFRIC-18 Transfer of Assals fom Custormers, and S1C-31,
Revenue - Barter Transachions Involving Advertising Senvices. The new standard
introduces a new revense recognilion model for contracts with customers which
specifies thal revenue should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers
control of goods or sarvices to a customer at the amount 1o which the company
expacls lo be enlilbed.

PFRS 15 requires a conlract with a customer to be legally enforceable and o
meel cerlain crilena (o be within the scope of the standard and Tor the general
medel to apply. It infroduces detadled guidance on ientifying perommance
obligations which requires entities o delermine whether promised goods or
sarvices are dsincl. I also inlroduces delailed guidance on determining
transaction price, including gudance on variable consideration and consideralion
payable to customers, The fransaction price will then be generally allocated 1o
each parformance obligation in proportion to its stand-alone selling price.

Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time
in a8 manner that best reflects the Company's performance, or at a point in time,
when control of the goods or services & (lransferred to the customer. Tha
standard dogs not apply to nsurance contracts, firancial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It alko does not apply i two
companies in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assels lo
facililale sales o other parlies. Furthermore, il a confracl wilh a customern is
parly in the scope of other PFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurament contained in other PFRS takes precedenca.

During the year ended Dacember 31, 2018, the Company carried ot a detailed
review of the revenue recognition crileria applying the requirements of PFRS 15
to ensure thal the same principles were being applied consislenily. This review in
parlicular examinad the liming of revenue recognilion and variable consideration
such as discounts, allowances and cerlain paymends o customers post the iniial
gale of goods.

Jiming of Revenue Recogmition

The Company concluded that PFRS 15 will not impact the fiming of revenus
recognilion as revenua from sale of goods is currently recognized when tha
goods are defivered to the customers' premises, which & faken to be point in
time at which conlrol over the goods is transfered,



Variahle Consideration

The revised accounling policy establishes that revenue is recognized to the
extent that it is highly probable thal a reversal in the amounl of revenue
recognized will nol occur when the uncerainly associaled wilh the variabde
consideration is subsequenlly setlled. This means that discounts, allowances,
l=ting and slofting fees/display allovances are deducted from revenue unless it
B highly probable that they will nol be moered. When these payments boe
cuslomers relatle 1o a distinet senvice or goods, they will be recorded as operating
expanses. Based on management's assessment, the applcation of PFRS 15 did
nol impact the current classfication of thesa variable consideration, ia. discounis
and allovances are recorded as a reduclion lo revenue and lsling and slolling
feesidisplay allowances are recorded as operaling expanses,

Consideration was also gven 1o the disclosure of revense inlo different
categories. It was delermined that all revenue would be disclosed as “sale of
goods’ as revenue from olher sources was immaterial.

The Company has adopted PFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method (without
practical expedients), with the effect of inilially applying this standard recognized
al the date of initial appBcation (Janwary 1, 2018). Accordingly, the information
presenled in 2017 has nol been reslaled. Il s presented as previously reported
under PAS 18 and related inlerpretations.  Additionally, the dsclosurne
requireaments in PFRS 15 have not generally been applied fo comparative
information,

PFRS 9, Financigl Instuments (2014}, PFRS 2 (2014) replaces PAS 30,
Financial instruments. R ion and Measurement, and supersedes the
previously published versions of PFRS 9 thal inroduced new classifications and
measuremeant requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
maodel {in 2013). PFRS 8 includes revised guidance on the classification and
maasurement of financial assets, including a new expocted credit loss (ECL)
model for calculaling impairment, guidance on own credit sk on financial
Eabibties measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge
accounting requirements published n 2013, PFRS 9 incorporates new hadge
pocounting requraments thal represenl a major overhaul of hedge accounting
and introduces significant mprovemenis by aligning the accounting mare closaly
with risk management,

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instrumenis

PFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets:
measured al amortized cosl, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive |ncome
(FVOCI) and Fair Valve through Proft or Loss (FVTPL). The classilication of
financial assels wnder PFRS 9 is generally based on business model in which a
financial asset is managed and s condraciual cash flow characleristics. PFRS @
eliminales the previous PAS 39 calegones of held lo maluily, lbans and
receivables and availabhe for sale.

PFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in PAS 39 for the classification
and measurament of financial liabilities.

The adoplion of PFRS 8 has nol had a significant effect on the Company's
accounling policies related 1o classification of financial assels and labilities.

All classes of financial assels and financial liabilties as at December 31, 2018,
had the sama carrying valuas under PFRS 9 as they had under PAS 39,

Impaimment of Financial Assed

PFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in PAS 39 with an ‘expected credil
loss (ECL) model’. The new impairmeni model applies to financial assels
measured al amorlized cosl. Under PFRS 9, credil losses are recognized earlier
than PAS 29,

The mpacl of expocled credd oss (ECL) model for e year ended
December 31, 2018 did not result in a restatement of Company's results as #t s
not material,

Fhillppine Interpretation IFRIG-22, Foreign Gumency Transaclions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies thal the transaction date fo be used for
transhation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance paymenl or
receipl s the dale on which the entity inilially recognizes the prepayment o
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactons
inmvalving muRiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise o a
separate {ransaclion date. The inferpretation applies when an enlily pays or
receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary
assel or liability before recognizing the related item.

The inlerprelaton is elleclive for annual penods begmning on of aller January 1,
2018, wath carly adoplion permitled.

Tha inferpretation was approved by the FRS5C on January 11, 2017 but is still
subject to the appraval by the BOA.

Annual Improvements fo PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle. This cycle of mprovements
conlains amendments lo three slandards. The following is lhe said improverments
or amendments lo PFRSs eflective for annueal periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, which has no significant effect on 1the financial slatemeanis of
the Company:

+ Measwing an associate or joint venture at far value (Amendments o
PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Jaind Venluras), The amendments
provide thal a venlwe capilal organization, or olher gqualifying enlily, may
elect 1o measure ils nvestments in an associale of joint venlure at fair value
through profit or kbss. This election can be made on an nvestment-by-
investment basis. The amendments also provide that a non-investiment entity
imvestor may elecl to retain the fair value accounling appled by an
investment enfity associate or invesiment enfity joint venture to its
subsidiaries. This eleclion can be made separately for each invesiment entity
associale or joind venlure. The armendments arg applied relrospeclively, wilh
eaily application permitbed.

Feiancial nstiumienls

Date of Recognifion. Fmancial mstruments are recognized in the statements of
financial position when the Company becomes a parly 1o the contractual provisions
of the instrumeni. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that requira
delivary of assats within the tima frame established by regulafion or comvention in tha
markelplace are recognized on the trade date,

Inilial Recagnifion of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair valee, Excepld for financial
instrumenis designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial
measurament of financial assels ncludas transaction costs that are directly
attributable o their acquisition cost or issue.
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.

Classification and Maasurermernt

Financial Assels - Policy Apphicabke from Janwary 1, 2018

Tha Company classies ils financial assels nlo the lollowang calegories:
amoriized cost, FVOCI - debt investment, FVOC! - equity investment, or FUTPL.
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into financial labilities at FVPL and
other financial labilites. The classification of financial assels depends on both
the business model in which the financial assel i managed and whether the
cash flows from the financial asset represent, on specified date, solely paymeant
of prncipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outslanding.
Managemen! determinas lhe classiicalion of its invesimenls al mitial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designalion al every
reporting date.

Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent 1o ther nitial recognilion unbess
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assels and
there i a change in the contraclual cash flow charactenstics of the fmanceal
agset, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the firsi reporling period following the change in business model.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company does nol have any financial assels and
financial liabities al FVPL and FWYOCI.

Financial Assels at Amortized Gost A financial assel s measured at amorized
cost if the asset i@ held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows and its contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on
gpecilied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferast on
the principal amount owstanding. Swch assels are recognized iniially at fair
valua ples any incremental iransaction cosl.

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in
which a financial asset is held at a portfolo level because this best reflects the
way the business i managed and information i provided fo management, The
infarmation considered includes:

= the siated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether managements sirategy focuses
on aarning contractual imerest income, maintaining a particular inferest rate
profe, matching the duration of the financial assels to the duration of any
relaled Eabilties or expected cash oufflows or realizing cash floves through
the sale of the assals;

v how the performance of the porfolio is evaluated and repored 1o the
Company's management; and

= the risks that affect the peformance of the business modeal {(and the financial
assels held wathin thal business model) and how those risks are managed.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely paymenis of principal
and interest, the Company considers the contractual lerms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset conaing a contractual term
that could change the liming or amoun! of confractual cash flows such that i
would nol meal this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
conskders:

=  contingent events that vwould change the amownt or timing of cash flows;

s tems thal may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

«  prepayment and extension features; and

* terme that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse fealures).

Aller inilial recognition, these flinancial assels are subsequenlly measwed al
amortized cost wsing the effective inferest method, less any allowance for
impairment losses. Amordced cost is calculaled by taking inlo account any
discount or premum on acquesition and fees thal are an integral parl of the
effective inlerest rate. Losses ane recognized in profll of kess and reflected in the
allowance account. When the Company conskders that there are no realistic
prospacts of recovery of the assel, the ralevant account is written-off. Gaines and
losses are recognized in profd or loss when lhese [inancial assels ara
derecognized or mpaired, as well as through amorization process. Financial
assels al amordized cost are classilied as current assels f maturity is within 12
months from the reporting date. Othenwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assels.

Financial Assets - Policy Applicable before January 1, 2018

The Company classifies its financial assets ino the following categories: financial
assels at FVPL, held-to-malurity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets and bans and receivables, The Company classifies its financial
liabililies inde fnancial Babililies al FWPL and olher financial habililies. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
and whethar they are quoled in an active markel. Managemeni determines tha
classification of s invesiments at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at avery reporting date.

The Company's cazh (excluding cash on hand), recelvables and due from
relaled parties are included in this calegory.

Cash includes cash in banks, which is staled at face value.

Other Finarcial Lizbilites. This category pertains 1o financeal labilitees thal are
net held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inceplion of the
liability. Thesa include liabiliies arising from opearalions or borrowings.

All kans and borrowing are inilially recognized al the fair value of the
congideration recetved less directly altrbulable debl issuance cosis, Debi
mssuance cosls are amorized using the effecdive nlerest method and the
unamonized portion of debl issuance cosls are offset against the related carrying
amount of the kban in the statements of financial position. Such amodization is
booked as part of “Interest expense” under “Finance and Ciher Income
(Expenses)” account in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income,

Afler nitial measuremenl, olher inancial liabillies are subsequently measured al
amortized cost using the effective imerest mothod. Amontized cost is calculated
by taking info account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest.

When ksan is paid, the related unamorized debt issuance costs at the date of
repaymanl are charged agains! curren! operalions. Gains and losses ara
recognized in profil or loss when the liabililies are derecognized or impaired, as
well az through the amortization process.



Included in this category are the Company's shofdemn and long-term debts,
accounts payable and accrued expenses and finance lease Bability (under “"Cther
noncurrent liabilities” account in the statements of fimancial posilion) that meat
the above definition (other than liabilties coverad by other PFRSs, such as
income lax payable, deferred lax liabiities and defined benefd Eability).

i, Derecogniffon of Financlal Instrumenis
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial assel or pan of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the nghts lo receive cash flows from (he financial assel have expired;

* the Company retaing the right to receive cash flows from the financial asse,
but has assumed an obligation 1o pay them in full without material delay 1o a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

+ the Company has Wanslered its righls lo receve cash flovs from the
fimancial asset and cither: (a) has transfemed substantially all the risks and
revsards of the financial asset; or (b) has neither transfemed nor refained
substantially all the rsks and rewards of the financial asset, bt has
transfermed control of the financial asset.

When the Company has fransferred ils righls lo receive cash flows from a
financial assel and has neither ranstermed nor relained subslantially all the rsks
and revards of the financial asset nor ransferred control of the financial assel,
the financial assel is recognized to the exient of the Company's continuing
imvolvement in the financial asset.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset i measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to pay.

A lnanci@l liabilily is derecognized when the obligalion s discharged, cancelled
of has expired. YWhen an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabiity
are subsianfially modifsed, such an exchange or modification is reated as a
derecognition of the carrying amaount of the original liability and the recognition of
@ newy liability at fair value, and any resulting difference in the respective carmying
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

‘Day 1' Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is diflerent from the
fair value of olher observable current market fransactions of the same instrument or
based on a valualion lechnigque whose variables include only dala from obsenvable
market, the Company recognizes the dfference between the ransaction prce and
fair valug (a ‘Day 1" profil) m profit or loss. In cases where no observable dala are
used, the difference between the fransaction price and model value B only
recognized in prof or boss when the inpuls become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each lransaction, the Company determines the
appropriaie method of recognizing the "Day 1" profit amount.

Oifsetfing Financlal Instruments. Financial assets and financial liabillies are offset
and the nel amount is presented in the slatements of financial position when, and
only whan, the Company has an enforceable legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to setlle on a nel basis or to realize the assel and seltle the labsty
simultaneously. Thiz is not generally the case wilh master nefling agreements and
the related assels and liabildies are presented gross in the statements of financial

posilion.

Fair Value urament

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the
measweameant of fair values, for bolh financial and non-financial assels and liabilites.
Fair value is the price thal would be received lo sell an assel or paid o ransler a
liabiMy in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageows) market at the
measweameant date under current market condiions (i.e. exit price), regardless of
whether that price s direclly observable or eslimaled wsing anolher valwaton
technique. Where applicable, the Company uses vaklmation technigues that are
appropriate in the cicumstances and for which sufficient data are available 1o
measwra fair value, maximizing the usa of relevani obsarvable inputs and minimizing
the wse of uncbservable inpuls.

Whean measuring the far values of an asset or a Eabilty, the Company uses markel
observable data as far as possible. Fair values are calegorized nto diferent levels of
the fair valee hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation techniques as
Tollows:

*  Level 1) quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilifies:

* Level2: inpuls other than quoted prces included within Level 1 that are
obsarvable for the assel o liabilily, eilher direclly (Le., as prices) o
indireetly (Le., derived from prices); and

= Level 3; inputs for the assel or liability ihal are not based on obsarvable market
data (unobsarvable inputs).

If the inputs used lo measure the fair value of an asset or a EabiEy might be
categorized in different levels of the fair walse hierarchy, then the fair value
measwemenl is calegorized in #s entirely in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowes! level input that is significant to the enfire measuremeant.

The Company recognizes iranslers botween levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the
end of the reporting pericd during which the change has oocimed.

Inventories

Invanlories ane valued al the lower of cosl and nel realizable value (NRV). The cosl
of mwenlories (finished goods, work in process, raw and packaging materials. and
spare parts and supplies), which is determined using weighted average and s valued
al standard cost method adjusted to approximate aclual costs theough the allocaton of
manufacturing variances on a periodic basis, includes expendilures incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other cosls incurred in
bringing these inventories to thair present localion and condition. In the case of
manufaciured inventories and work in process, cost includes an appropriate share of
production averheads based on normal operating capacity.

The MRV ol Imished goods is the estmaled selling price n lhe oidinary course of
busingss less eslimated cosls necessary 1o make the sale. The MRV of rave and
packaging materials, spare parts and supplies i the estimated current replacement
cosls.

When inventories are sokd, the camying amounts of those iventones are recognized
under “Cost of Goods Sold” account in the stalements of profit or loss and other
comprebansive income in the period whan the related revenue is recognized.
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Investments in Associates

Associales are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but nol
contral, over the financial and operating policies and which are naither subsidianes
nor joind venltures, The mancial slalements mclude The Company’s share of the lolal
recognized earmnings and losses of associates on an equily accounted basis, from the
date that significant inflsance commences until the date that significant influence
coases. The applicalion of the equily method of accounting s based on the
Company's beneficial inlerest in the net profils and net assels of the assocites.
Distributions received from he associates reduce the carmying amownt of the
ivastmants. Income and axpeansa rasulting from transactions bebweean the Company
and lhe associales are elminaled 1o the extenl of the inlereslt in he associales.
When the Companys share of losses exceeds the cost of the investment in an
associale, the camying amount of that interest is reduced lo nil and recognition of
further losses s discontinued, excepl o the exlent that the Company has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behall of the associate.

The Company’s invesiments in associales include an amount thal represents the
excess of acquisition cost of investment over the fair value of the net identifiable
assels of the investee companies at the dale of acquisition, net of impairment in
value, if amy.

The financial slatements of the associales are prepared for the same period as the
Company's financial stalements,

Baottles and Cases

Bottles and ¢oses include refumable glass bottles and ¢ases stated at deposil values
and the excess of the acquisition cosis of relurnable boltles and cases over their
deposil values. Bollles and cases akso include cerain pallels acquired under finance
lease, These assets are deferred and amorized using the straight-line method aver
their estimated useful lives (EUL) {5 years for relumable boltles and 7 years for
cases and pallels) determined principally by their aclual historical breakage and
trippage. Amodization of boltkes and cases commences once they are available for
use and is recognized in profit or loss, An allowance is provided for excess, unusable
and obsolele relurnable bollles and cases based on the specific identification
st bvad,

Property, Plant and Equipmeant
Property, plant and equipment are carmed al cost less accurmulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment lesses, i any.

Initially, an tem of property, plant and equipment is camied at cost, which comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable cost in bringing the asset 1o working
condition and location for s inlended use. Subsequent costs (including costs of
replacing a part of an iterm of property, plant and equipment) that can be measured
ieliably are added 1o the carrying amounl of The assel when il B probable thal Tulure
cconomic benefits associated wath the asset will flow 1o the Company. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All othar repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss as ncurned.

Construction in-progress represents assets under construction and is stated at cost
This includes costs of construction and other direct costs. Construclion in-progress is
nol deprecialed until such lime thal the relevant assels are completed and put inlo
operational usa but fested for impairment losses. Assels under construction are
fransferred to the relaled property, plant and equipment account when the
construction and installation and related activities necaessary to prepare the property,
ptant and equipment for the inlended use are compleled and the property, plant and
equipment are ready for services.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment items that the Company expects o usae
over more than one pericd and can be used only in connection with an flem of
properly, planl and equipmenl are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Deprecialtion and amorlization of these major spare parls and sland-by equipmenl
commence once these have become available for use (i.e., when they are in the
Ipcation and condition necessary for them to be capable of operaling in 8 manner
intended by the Company).

The EUL of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Mumber of Years

Machinary and olher eguipmenl 2-25

Buildings and leasehold improvements 15 - 40 or term of the lease,
whichever is shorler

Furnilure and fixtures 10

Depreciation and amorlization commences once the assels become available for
use, Deprecialion and amortization are computed on a siraight-line basis over the
EUL aof the assets, Leasehold improvements are amorized over the shoder of their
EUL and the corresponding lease ferms.,

The assets' residual values, EUL and depreciation and amonization methods are
reviewed al each reporling dale and adjusted, ¥ appropriate, fo ensura thal tha
periad and depreciation and amortization methods are consistenl wilh the expected
pattern of economic benefits from those assets, Any change in the expected residual
values, EUL and methods of depreciation and amordization are adjusted
prospactively from the time the change vas determined necessary,

When an item of propery, plant and equipment & disposed of, or is parmananily
withdrawn from use and no fulure economic banafils are expecled from s disposal,
the cosl and accumulated deprécialion, amodizalion and impairment lossas, if any,
are removed from the accounts and any resulling gain or loss arnising from the
retirement or disposal (cakeulated as the difference betwean the net disposal
proceads and the carrying amount of Lhe temn) is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment
Financial Assels

The Company measures loss allovances atl an amount equal to lfetime expected
credit loss (ECL), excepl for the following, which are measured as 12-month ECL:

= ¢ash in bank thal s delermined 1o have low credil reisk al the reporling dale; and

= due from related parties for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defaull ccourring over
the expected life of the financial inslrument) has nol increased significantly since
initial recognition,

Loss allovances for trade receivables and contracls assets are abvays maeasured at
an amount equal lo Hetime ECL.

When determining whelher credil sk of a financial assel has increased sgnificantly
since inilial recognition and when estimaling ECL, the Company considers
reasonable and supporlable information that & relevant and available wilhout undue
cost of effor. This includes both quantitatrve and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.



Lifetime ECLz are the ECLs thal result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrement while 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs
thal resull from defaull events that are possible defaull within the 12 months after the
raporting dale (or a shorler pariod i the expected de of the instrument s less than
12 months). Defaull is defined as financial assets for which contractual payments are
more than 60 days past due. However, the Company may also consider a financial
assels o be in defaull when inlernal or exiernal information indicates that the
Company iz unlikely 1o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into sccounts any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
assel is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
confractual cash flows. The maxmmwem period over which the Company exposed to
credi risk.

ECLs are probability-weig hted estimate of credil losses. Credit losses are measured
as (he present value of all cash shorfalls (Le. the diference between the cash Tows
dua fo the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects lo receive). ECLs are discounted al the effective interest rale of
the financial assal.

At each reporing date, the Company assesses whether the financial assels carried
at amorized cost are credit-mpared. A financial assel B ‘credit-impaired’ whean one
or more avenls thal have a delrimenlal impacl on the estimaled fulwe cash flloves of
ihe financial assels have ocsurred,

Evidence thal a financial assel is credil-impaied includes the foBowing obsenvable
dafta:

= signdficant financial difficulty of the borroveer or issuar,;

& a breach of contracl such as a default or being mode than 80 days past dua;

* the restructwring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the
Company would not consider otherwise;

* it is probable that the borrovser will enler bankruptcy or other financial
recrganizalion; o

* fhe disappearance of an aclive market for a securily because of financial
difficullies.,

The camying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Inferest mcome conlinues to be accrued on fhe reduced carrying amount
based on the original effective interest rate of the assal. The financial assel, together
with the associated allowance accoums, B written-off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral, # any, has been realized or has been
fransferred to the Company. Impairment koss s recognized in profil or loss.

If, in a subsequent perod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occwrring afler the impaimeant was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss 5 reversed. Any subsequent
reversal iz recognized in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed ils amorized cost at the reversal date had no impairment loss
bean recognized.

Non=financial Assets

The camying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, such as investments in
associalas, bollles and cases, propery, plant and equipment and olher noncurrent
assels, are reviewsad al each repoding dale fo determine whelher There s any
indication that an assel may be impaired, or whether there is any indication that an
impairmant loss previously recognized for an assat in prior perods may no longer
exisl or may have decreased. Il any sech indicalion exists and when the carrying
amount of an assel exceads is estimated recoverable amount, the asset or cash-
generating unit (CGU) lo which the assel belongs is written-down 1o its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or investimants or,
il it i5 nol possible, for the CGU 1o which the assal belongs.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial assel is the greater of the assel's faw
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair value less cosls of disposal is
the price thatl would be received to sell an assel or paid 1o transfer a Eability in an
orderly transaction between marked parlicipants al the measurement dale, less the
costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be delivered from an asset or CGL. In assessing value in use, the estimated
fulure cash flows are discounted to their present valee using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specilic lo the assel. For an assel lhal does mol generale cash fMows largely
independent of those from olther assets, the recoverable amount & determined for
the CGU to which the assel belongs.

An impairment bss is recognized only i the carrying amount of an asset exceads s
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss in the year in
which it arises. A previously recognized impairment koss is reversed only if there has
been a change in eslimales used to delerming the recoverable amount of an assel,
howeever, nol to an amount higher than the carrying amouwnt thal would have been
delermined (net of any accumulated depreciation and amodization for property, plant
and equipment and botlles and cases) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss s recognzed in prafit of
loss. After such reversal, the deprecialion and amonization expense is adjusted in
fulure years to allocale the assel's revised carrying amount, less any residual valua,
on a syslemalic bases over ils remaining life.

Broyki
A provision 15 a labikly of uncerlain timing or amount. | s recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of a past evenl;
it is probable that an outflows of resources embodying economic benefils will be
required to setlle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are revisited al each reporfing date and adjusted to reflect the current
bist estimale. If the effect of the me valee of money is maleial, provisons are
dotermined by discounting the cxpected future cash floves at a pre-lax rate thal
reflects the curremt market assessment of the time value of money, and, whera
appropriate, the risks specific 1o the kabiBy, Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense under
“Finance and Other Income (Expenses)” account in statements of profit or loss and
other comprahensive mcome (Sea MNola 26).

Share Capital
Capital stock is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under

a binding subscription agreament and is measured at par valua. Incremental costs
directly atirbutable fo the ksue of common shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.
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Tha amount of comtribution in excess of par value is accounted for as “Additional
paid-in capital,” Addiional paid-in capital also arses from addifional capital
contribwlions from the shareholdars.

Retained Earnings and Dividend Diglribution
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic profit (loss), dividend

distributions, prior period adjustments and effects of changes in accouning policy and
capital adjustments.

Dividands on commaon shares aré recognized as a liabilly and deducted from equily
whan approved by the BOD of lhe Company. Dwidends for the year lhal are
approved after the reporting date are deall with as a nonadjusting event after the
reporiing date.

Ciher Comprehensive | neome
Other comprehensive income are fems of income and expenses thal are not
recognized m profit or loss for the year in accordanca with PFRSs.

Revenue Recognilion
The Company has intially appled PFRS 15 from January 1, 2018,

Sake of Goods

Revente Recognition under PERS 15 (Applicable from January 1, 2018)
Revenus B recognized as of when performance obligalions are satisfied by
transferring control of goods to the custlomer. Conlrol is transferred al the lime of
delivery of the products 1o the customers, and under normal credit terms. Revenue i
recognized 1o the extent that il is highly probable thal a significant reversal will nol
occur, Therelore, sale of goods s measured af fransaction price or the amount fo
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods to
customer, nel of expected discounts, alowances, and certain payments to cuslomers
including but not Emited to listing/skotling fees and display allowvances for which no
distinct goods or service is received.

Revenue Recognition under PAS 18 (Applicable before January 1, 2018)

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured al the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, nel of discounts, refurns and allowances. Revenue is
recognized when persuashe evidence axisls that the significant risks and revards of
ovmership have been transfered to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probahble, the associated cosls and possible return of goods can be esfimated
rediably, and there is no conlinuing invohrement with the goods. If it is probable that
discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the
discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as (he sale is recognized. Transfer
of risks and rewards of owmership coincides wilh the delivery of the producis 1o the
customaers, and under normal credil terms.

Other Incorme

her income s recognized in profit or loss when carned.

Cost and Expense Recognilion

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting perod in the
form of outflows or decrease of assels or incurrence of liabilities that result in
decreases m aquly, olhar than those relaling o distribulions lo eguily paficipants.
Expenses are generally recognized when the expenses are incurred,

Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold includes direct material costs, labor and manulacluring oxpenses,
This is recognized when the goods are delivered or when the expenses are incurred.

Selling, Cistribution and Markeling Expensas

Selling, distribution and marketing expenses consist of cosls associated with the
development and execulion of markeling promolion aclivities and all expenses
connecled with selling, servicing and distribuling the Company's products. Selling,
destribition and markelng expenses are generally recognized when the seivice s
rendered or the expense s incurred,

General and Administrathve Expenses

Expenses incurred in the general adminetration of the day-lo-day operation of the
Company are generally recognized when the service is rendered or the expense is
incurred.,

Employes Benelils

Short-tevm Employee Benafits

Short-lerm employee benefils are expensed as lhe relaled service is provided.
A liabiity i recognized for the amownt expected 1o be paid i the Company has a
present begal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a resuli of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated rekably.

Defined Benealt Plan
The Company has a funded, nonconiributory, final salary defined benefit plan
covearing substantially all of s employeeas.

The Company's net cbligation in respect of the defined benefil plan is caloulated by
eslimating the amount of the fulure benefit thal employees have eamed in the
current and priof periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of
Han assets. The Company presents the amount of expected contribution to the plan
assels in the next fiscal year as a current liability, whila the remaining amount of the
nat dafined banafit liability is presented as noncurrant.

The caleulation of the defined benefil oblgation is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified acluary using the projected unil credd method. When the calculation resulls
in a polentsal assel for lhe Company, Ihe recognized assel s Bnfled lo the presant
value of economic benefits availlable in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reduclions in fulure confributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined benelil liablty, which comprize actuarial gains
and losses, the refurn on plan assets (excluding inferest) and the effect of the asset
celing (f any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in  other
comprehensive income. The Company delermines the nel interes! expense on the
net defined benefit Bability for the period by applying the discount rale used fo
measure the defined benald obligation at the beginning of the annual perod to the
opaning nel defimed benefil l@biBy, taking inlo account any changes in the nel
defined benelit Eability during the pericd as a resull of contributions and benefit
payments. Mel interest expense and other expenses related 1o defined benefit plans
are recognized in profit or loss.



When the benafits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtaiked, the resulting
change in beneid that relates fo past sevice or the gain or loss on curtailment is.
recognized immediately in profit or koss. The Company recognizes gains and losses
on The selllement of a defined beneldl plan when The selllemenl occurs,

The Company's plan assels that are held by enfities (lruslees) thal are legally separate
and independent from the Company and exisl solely lo pay o fund the defined bonefi
plan, are nol available to the Company's own creditors (even in bankiuptey), amd
cannot be returned to the Company, unless the rensaining assets of the fund are
sufficiant lo maat all the defined banefit obbgation of the plan or tha Company.

Fi { Fi E
Finance income comprises inferest income on bank deposit, net foreign currency
gams on assel and labiles and dividend income. Interest meome s recognized in
prodit or loss as il accrees, using the effective interest method and ks presented net of
final tax. Dividend income, il any, is recognized in profit or loss on the date thal the
Company's right fo receive payment is established,

Finance expense comprises interest expense on bomowings and net foreign
currency koss on financial assels and Babilities.  All finance expense ang recogmzed
in profil of loss as lhay accioe.

Leases

Datermination of whether an Arrangement Containg a Lease

The datermination of whether an arrangement i, or contains a lease iz, based on the
substance of the arrangement at inceplion date and requires an assessment of
whether the fullilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specilic asset
or assels and the arrangement comveys a right 1o use the assal.

A reassesament is made after inceplion of the lease only ¥ one of the following

applies:

a, there is a change in confractual terms, other than a reneval or extension of the
arrangameant;

b. a renewal oplion is exercised or an exlension granted, unbkess thal term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

. there m a change in the determinalion of whether fullilment is dependent on a
specilied assel; or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Wheare a reassessment i made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances give rise 1o the reassessment for
scenarios & ¢ of J above, and al the date of remewal or extension perod for
scenano b,

Operating Leases
Leases wheara the lessor retains subslandially all the risks and benefits of ovmarship

of the assel are classified as operating leases. Rental income and expense from
aperating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of 1he lease,

Finance Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benelils
incidantal to owmership of the leasad ilem, are capitalized al tha kower of fair value of
lhe wased properly and the presend valuee of the minimum lease payments al the
inception of the lease. Lease paymenis are apportioned between the finance cost
and reduclion of the oulstanding lease liabilly so as fo achieve a constant rale of
interest on the remaining balance of the Eabilily. Fnance cost & recognized in profi
of loss.

Capilalized leased assels are depreciated over the shorter of the EUL of ihe assels
and the respective lease larms, unless f 5 wath reasonable cerlamty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the asset
is depreciated over its EUL.

Barravang Cosls

Interest and other finance costs incurred on borowings vsed to finance property
development are capitaized if they are direclly altribulable to the acquisilion or
construction of a qualifying assel. The capilalzation of borrowdng costs:
(a) commences when the aclivities to prepare the assets are in progress amd
expendilures and bomowing cosis are being incurred; (b) is suspended during
axtanded periods in which active development, improvemant and construection of the
assals are inlerrupled; and (c) ceasas when subslantially all the aclivilies necessary
to prepare the assels are completed, These costs are amortized using the straight-
line method over the EUL of the relaled propery, plant and equipment to which & is
capidalized. Borrowang cosls thal are nol direclly altribulable to the acguisiion,
construction or production of a qualifying assot ane recognized in profit or loss using
the effective interest method. Other borrowing costs are generally expensed in the
parniod in which these are incurmed.

Foreign Currency Transaclions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded n Philippine peso based on the
pravaiding exchange rates at the dates of the transachons. Foreign currency
denominaled monelary assels and Babilities are ranskled m Philippine peso esing
the exchange rales prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising
from translation of foreign currency denominated Rems al rates different from those
al which they were previously recorded are recognized In profil of loss,

MNonmonetary tems in foreign currencies that are measwed in terms of historical cost
ara transkated uvsing the exchange rate al the date of fransachon.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reporied on a nel basis as eilher finance
income or finance cost depending on whether foresgn currency movemenls are in a
nel gain of nel loss posdion,

Tawes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Income fax expense is
recognized in profil or loss, excepl to the extent that it relales to dems recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehansive income, in which case it is recognized in
aquily of in olher comprehensive income, respecinvely.

Current Tax

Current tax assels and Eabilties for the current and prios periods are maasurad at the
amount expected lo be recovered from or paid (o the tax authority, The tax rales and
tax laws used to compule the amount are those that are enacled or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporiing period.
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Daferrad Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilies are recognized in respect of temporary differences
betvean the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts wsed for laxation purposes and the carrylonsvard tax
benaflite of unused net operating loss camyover (NOLCOY), if any, and unused tax
credits from excess minimum corporale income fax (MCIT) over the regular
corporate income lax. Defermed tax is nod recognized for lemporary differences on
the initial recognilion of assets or labiliies in a transaction that is nol a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profil or loss; temparary
differances related lo ilvesimenis in subsidiaries and jomnlly controlled entiies lo the
axlent that il is probable thal they will nod reverse in the loreseeable Tulure, and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Dederred lax assels are recognized for camyfomvrard tax benelils of unused NOLCO,
unused lax credits from excess MCIT and deductible temporary differences lo the
extent that it i probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profils are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amowmnt of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient o recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable
profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans of the Company. Defemed tax assels are reviewed al
each reporling date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are
reassessed al each reporing date and are recognized lo the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable incame will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recognized.

Deferred lax assels and kabiBies are measured al the lax rales thal are expecled to
apply to the year when the assel is realized or the liabilty i setiled, basaed on tax
rates thal have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporing
piricd .

In determining the amount of current and defemred tax, the Company lakes into
account the impact of uncerain tax posiions and whether addiional laxes and
inleres! may be due. The Company believes thal s accruals for lax [Ebilites are
adequale for all open years based on = assessment of many faclors, including
interpratation of tax lavs and prior experience. This assessment reles on estimates
ard assumplions and may imolve a sefles of judgments about fulure events. New
information may become availabke that causes the Company lo change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes fo tax liabilties will
impacl tax expensa in the period thal such delarmmalion is made.

Defermred tax assets and liabilties are offsel if there is a legally enforceable right to
affeat current tax liabilties and assefs, and thay relate to income taxes avied by the
same lax authorily on the same taxable enlily.

Valve-added Tax {VAT)
Rovenue, expenses and assels are recognized net of the amount of VAT excepl:

=  where the VAT incurred on purchase of assels or services are ol recoverable
fram the taxation authority, in which case, the VAT i recognized as par of the
cost of acquistion of the assel or as parl of the expense ilem as apphcable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable 1o, the taxation authority is
included as part of “Prepaid expenses and ofther cumeni assets” or “Accounts
payable and accrued expansas” accounts in the slalements of financial position.

Eamnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profil applicable o common stock by the
wighled average number of common shares outslanding during the persod, wilh
retrosctive adjustments for any stock dividends declaned.

Dhuted EPS & calculated by dividing the profil attributabla o commaon equity holdars
by the weghled average number of common shares oulslanding during the year,
adjusted for the effects of any potentially dilutive common shares,

Conlingencies

Contingent liabilities are nol recognized in the financial stalements. These are
digclosed in the notes to the firancial stalements unless the possibilty of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefils is remote. Contingent assets are nol
recognized in the financial statemems but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realization of
income B vilually cerdain, the related assel & not a conlingent assel and its
recognilion is approprzale,

When losses are expected o be reimbursed by another parly, the reimbursement
should be recognized when and only when, it is virllually cerfain that the
reimburgement will ba received. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate
asset, The expense relating to a provision is presented net of the amount recognized
for the reimbursement .

Segment Reporing
An operating segment is a componant of the Company thal engages in husiness

activilies from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses thal relate lo transaclions wilh any of the Compamys other
components, All operating segments’ operating resulls are reviewed regutarly by the
Companys Chief Executive Officer to make decisions aboul the resources o be
allecaled to the segmenl and lo assess s parformance, and for which discrele
financial information i avalable.

Events Afler The crling Date

Post year-end evenis that provide additional information about the Company's
financtal position at the reporting date (adjusting evenis) are reflected in the financial
slatements. Post year-end events thal are nol adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to he financial stalements when material.



Standards |sswed But Mot Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendmenis to standards are effeclive for annual
perods beginning after January 1, 2018. However, the Company has not applied the
Tollowiing new or ameanded slandards in preparing these linancial slatemenits. Unbess
olherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the

Company's financial statemeanis,

The Company will adop the followang new standards and amendments 1o standards
that are relevant fo the Company in the respective effective dales:

Effective January 1, 2013

FFRS5 16, Loases, supersedes PAS 17, Leases, and the related Philippine
Interpredations. The nev standard inlroduces a singbe lease accounting moded for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification tesl. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
bease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeled reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemplion for short-lerm leases (leases
wilh a lerm ol 12 months or less) and bove-value ilems, as well as the peimission
of portfolio-level accounting nstead of applying the requrements to individual
leases. Mew estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification,
classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements 1o
reassess cefain key estimates and judgmems at each reporting date were
introduced,

PFRS 18 is effeclive for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2019,
Earler application is permitted for entities thal apply PFRS 15 af or before the
date of iniial application of PFRS 16,

The Company has assessed lhe polential impact of the new standard. The actisal
impact of applying PFRS 16 on the financial stalements in the pericd of mnitial
application will depand on fulure economic conditions, including the Company's
borrowang rale al January 1, 2019, the composilion of the Companys lease
portfolio at that date, the Company’s latest assessment of whether it will exercise
any lease renevial oplions and the extent to which the Company chooses lo use
practical expedients and recognilion exemplons.

So far, the most significant impact identified is that the Company will recognize
right-of-use (ROU) assets and lmbililes for its operaling leases of land,
warehouse, facilities and vehicles amounting to PS95 milkon. In addition, the
nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as PFRS 16 replaces
the siraight-ine operaling lease expense with depreciation charge for the ROU
assels and inleres] expense on kease Rabililies.

Mo significant impact = expected on the Company’s finance leases.

The Company does nol expect the adoplion of PFRS 16 to impact its ability to
comply with its loan covemants

Fhilippine Interpretation IFRIG-23 Uncertainty ower lncome Tax Treatmens
clarifies hows to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12
Income Taxes whan there B uncertainty over income lax treatments. Under the
inlerpratalion, whether the amounts recorded in the financal slalements will
differ 1o that in the tax relurn, and whether the uncertainly is disclosed or
reflected in the measuremeant, depends on whether it is probabla that the tax
aulhorily will accept the Company™s chosen lax trealment. If s nol probable
that the tax authorty will accepl the Company's chosen la treatment, the
uncertainty i reflected using the measwe thal provides the belter prediclion of
the resolution of the uncerainly - either the masl likaly amount or the axpeacted
vakue,

The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgements and estimates
applied if facls and circumstances change - eg. as a resull of examination or
aclion by lax aulhorities, follovdng changes in tax rules or when a lax auhority's
right fo challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods begmning on or after January 1,
2019. Earler application is permitted. The interpretation can be inifially applied
retrogpeciively applying PAS 8, if possible without the wse of hindsight, or
relfespectively walh the cumulalive effect recognized al Ihe dale of inilial
appication vithoul restating comparative information.

Frepayment Feafures with Negatfve Compensation (Amendments to PFRS &
Financial Instruments). The amendments cover the following areas:

* Prepaymen! lealuras with negative compensation. Tha amendment clarifies
that @ financial asset with a prepayment fealure could be eligible for
measwament atl amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income irespective of the evenl or circumstance that cauwses the early
termination of the contract, which may be within or beyond the conlrol of the
parlies, and a parly may either pay or receive reazonable compensation for
that early lermmation.

The amendment is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
January 1, 2019 with early adoplion parmitted. Retrospective application is
required, subjact o relevant transitional reliefs.

«  Modiication of financial Kabilies, The amendment lo the Basis for
Conelesions on PFRS 9 clarfies thal the standard provide an adequale basis
far an entity to account for modifications and exchanges of financial labilities
that do nof resull in derecognition and the trealment i consistent with the
requirements for adjusting the gross canrying amound of a financial assel
when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the financial aszet
- i, the amorlized cost of the modified financial liab#ty is recalculated by
discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the original effectve
interest rate and any adjusiment is recognized in profit or loss.

If the mitial application of PFRS 9 resulls in a change in accounting pobocy for
these modifications or exchanges, then relrospeciive application s required,
subject to relevant transition rebefs,
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Long-term Inferests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments fo PAS 28
Invesiments in Assoclales and Joint Ventures). The amendment requires the
application of PFRS 8 lo other financial instrumenis in an associale or joind
vanlure 1o which the equily melhod is nol appled. These include long-lerm
interests (LTIs) that, in substance, form part of the enfity's net investment in an

associale or joint venture.

The amendment explaing the annual sequence in which PFRS 9 and PAS 28 are
oz be appbed. In effect, PFRS 9 is first applied ignoring any prior years' PAS 28
less absorplion. If necassary, prior years' PAS 28 loss allocation is trued-up in
the currenl year which may involve recognizing more priol years' |osses,
reversing these losses or re-allecating them between different LTI instruments.
Any current year PAS 28 losses are allocaled to the exient that the remaining LTI
bakance allows and any current year PAS 28 profils reverse any unrecognized
prior years' losses and then allocations against LTI

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afer January 1,
2019 with early adoption permitted. Retrospective application is required, subject
to relevant transitional reliefs.

Plan Amendment, Curtaiimeant or Sefttorment (Amendmeonts fo PAS 19 Employos
Benafits). The amendments clarily that on amendment, curlailment or setilemaent
of a defined benafit plan, an enfity now uses updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current sarvice cosl and net intarest for the period. The effect of the
asset coling iz disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlemant
of the plan and i deall with separately in other comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2020

Amendmernls lo References lo Conceplual Framework in PFRS Slandards sels
oul amendments to PFRS Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS
practice statements to reflect the Bsuance of the revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceplual Framework), The 2018
Concaptual Frameawork includes:

+ a new chapter on measurement;

*  guidance on reporting financial performance;

+ improved definfions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting
these definitions; and

+ clarificalions in important areas, such as the roles of slewardship, prudence
and measurement uncartainty in linancial reporting.

Some Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS practice statemenis
contain relerences lo, of quolations Tram, (ke Inlermaticnal Accounting Standards
Committes (|ASC)'s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASE) in
2001 or the Conceplual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The
amendments update some of those reflerences and quotations so thal they refer
o the 2018 Conceptual Framework, and makes olher amendments 1o clarify
which version of the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particular
documenls.

These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
afler January 1, 2020.

Definition of Material (Amendments fo FPAS 1 Presenfation of Financial
Statements and PAS § Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors). The amendments rafine the definifion of material. The amendead
definilion of maleral slates thal information is malerial i omilling, misslaling or
obscuring i could reasonably be expecled to influence the decisions that the
primary usars of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial stalements, which provide financial information abowl a specific
reporing entity. The amendments clarly the delintion of material and its
application by:

{a.) raising the threshold al which informalion becomes malerial by replacing the
term ‘could influence” with ‘could reasonably be expected to influence”;

{b.}including the concepl of ‘obscuring information’ alongside the concepl of
‘omilting’ and ‘missialing” mformation in the defintion;

{c.) clarifying that the users to which the definition refers are the primary users of
general purpose financial statements referred 1o in the Conceplual
Framework;

{d.) charifying the explanalory paragraphs accormpanying the definition; and

{e.) aligning the wording of the definition of material acress PFRS Standards and
other publications.

The amerdments are expected lo help entities make better materality
judgemenis without substantively changing existing requirements.

The amendmants apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020, Earler application is permitbed.

4.

Cash
Cash consists of:
Note 2018 2017
Cash on hand P253,.088 P34T.124
Cash in banks 25 295,510 151,228
P54E 598 P498 352

Cash in banks cams annual interest al the respective bank deposil rales,

Interest income earmed from cash in banks amounted to P1.5 millon, P0.9 milkon
and PO.6 millien in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respactively.

The Company's exposures lo credil risk and inleresl rale risk are disclosed n
Mote 25 to the financial slatements.



5. Receivables

Recevables congsist of:

Note 2018 2017
Trade receivables - third parlies 25 P2,050,002 P1, 744,447
Others 23 25 714,344 875,189
2,764,348 2,619,536

Less allowance for impaiment
losses and others 221,933 214,855
25 P2,642413 P2, 404,681

Trade receivables are all currend, noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 15 fo
60 days” lerm. Ol receivables consksl mainly of recevables from employess,
freight and markeling rebated reimbursements (see Mote 23), which are normally
cobacted in cash.

Impaiment

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequale lo povide for expected credit losses. The Company performs regukar
review of lhe age and slalus of lhese accounts, designed lo denlifly accounts wilh
expecled credd losses and provides these with the appropriate allowance for
impairment losses. Tha review is accomplished using lfetime expected credit losses,
with the impairment losses being determined for each risk grouping identified by the
Company. The amount and liming of recarded expenses for amy penod would differ if
the Company made different judgments. An increase in the allowance for impairmant
losses would increase the recorded operaling expansas and decreasa currenl assat.

The movements in the allowance for impairment logses on receivables are as
Tolloves:

28 217
Noe Trade Ciilhers Todal Trade Chers Total

Balance at

st ignniin iy ol year PH%9,572 35413 PH4,955 PTR.ZTY P54.335 P22 51
Irpammenct lotses

recognized during

the year i 19,268 17,74 37,062 6.687 1,145 7.E12
Wirkt e-offs during

the year [E8, 3FE) 11,688} [0 0B8) (25, 418] (50 (25,468
Balance al and of year P50 352 P 51 Pr 3 P158.51 P55.434 P214.5955

Imparment kosses recognized during the penod are included as pant of “Salling and
dislribulion expenses™ accounl in the slalemenls of prolil or loss and olher
comprehensive income.

The Company's exposure to credit risk related 1o receivables is disclosed in Note 25
1o the financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories consist of:

2018 2017

Raw and packaging materials P3,720,082 P1.803387
Finished goods 1,104,781 80,072
Spare paris and supplies 214,634 195,129
Work in process 3,144 5,642
P5,039,641 P2,484,230

Raw and packaging materials, finished goods and work in process included in "Cosl
of Goods Sold” account in the stalements of prafil and loss and olber comprahensive
income amounted o P14.1 billion in 2018, P16.2 billien in 2017 and P16.9 billion in
2016 {see Note 18).

In determining the HNRV of imventores, the Company considers inventory
ohsolescence based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventones estimaled to be unsaleable in the fulure. The Company adjusts the cosl
of irventories lo MRV al a level considered adequale o rellect any markel decBne n
the value of the recorded inventories. The Company reviews, on a continuous basis,
the product movement, changes in consumer demands and infroduction of new
products o dentdfy inventones which are to be witlen-down o NRY. The amount
and timing of recorded expense for any penod would differ ¥ different judgments
were made or different estimales were uliized. The increase i inventory
obsolescence and market decline would increase the recorded cosl of goods sold
and decrease curren assels. The cost ol invenlores staled al NRV are as lollows:

2018 2017

Raw and packaging malenals P3,919,513 F2.007.210
Finished goods 1,159,392 748514
Spare pars and supplies 182,073 176,471
P&, 260,978 P2.932.195

Met waite-down of inventories 1o MRY amounted to P38.0 milion, P35T7.9 million and
P91.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The wrte-dowm of inventories to MRV which is directly relaled to produchon is
included as part of “Cost of Goods Sold™ account, othenwise it is recognized as par
of “Operating Expenses” account in the sialements of profi and loss and olher
comprehensive income.
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7.

Investments in Associates

Invesiments in associates comsist of westmenis in other companies, which are
incorporated under Philippine Laws, as follows:

Percentage (%) of

Ownership Amount
2018 2017 2018 2017
Acquesition eost:
Madeco Really Corporation
(NRC) 40% 40%: P231,450 P231.4590
Madeco Holdings Corporation
(MHC) 40% 40% 132 132

231,622 231622

Accumulated equity In nel

eamings:

Balance al beginning of year 364 455 382 575
Equity in nat eamings for the year 16,673 11,880
Balance al end of year 381,034 JE4 455

P612,656  P396,077

The financial stalements of the assoclales are prepared for the same reporting
penod as the Company's financial statements. The financial statemenis used for the
purpose of applying equily method are the most recent management accounis of the
associales as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

MNone of the Company's equily-accounted assocates are publicly Ested entifies and
consequently, do not have published price quolations,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the undistribuled earnings of the associales
included in the Company's retained eamings amounting to P381.0 million and
F364.5 milion respectively, is nol availabbe for distribution to stockholders unbess
declared by the associales. Equily in nef eamings from invesiments in associates
amounted o P16.6 milion, P11.9 milkon and P13.9 milion for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectivaly.

Summarized below is the financial information pertaming to the Company's
associales:

As il and For the Ve Endsd D B 1, 20id

ProfiTotal

Earrend Moncarrent Corred Honcuran Compretmmive

Assets Basets Liahdlithes Liahilities  Revernes e st

NRE PIILATY P, ITEATS PTAT. B4 Pi28,058 P, 1S 403

HHE {eent okt 243,977 1,374 708 TR 10058 31,141 15,823
Aa it and Faf the Yead Erded Décembes 51, 2017

Profiobal

Mencurmnt Cumert  Nencurrms Erignshisih

Cormant disibs Ainpi LinkiBied Liskihes  Recenues Incame

NEL P 320 PLITRAMS PITEITE P37 O P 30 P11,780

HMHL { ookl el parg il ] 1,275 405 TH1 78 137,058 i 12 087

The associales do nol have contingent Eabilities mcurred jointly with other investaors,
Also, the Company B nol severally lable for all or pant of the Ebilities of the
associales.

8. Bottles and Cases

Botikes and cases consist of:
2018 2017
Deposit values of returnable bottles and cases
on hand - net of allowance for unusable
containers of P39,146 as al
December 31, 2016 PB50 42T P563,985
Excess ol cosl over deposil values of relurnable
bollhes and cases - nel of aceumulaled
amorzalion® 3,687,021 4,195,306
4,337 448 4,758,295
Bottles and cases in-iransil 103,520 210,824
P4, 440,968 P4.970,11%

“Tris includes pallets wilh nel book value of P313.4 millan and P25 2 million a4 at Decembes 31, 2018 and
207, respeciively.

The rolforvand of excess of cost over deposit values of returmable botiles and cases
is as Tollows:

Nate 2018 2017
Gross Carrying Amount”
Bakance al beginning of year P11.088,606 P2.565.438
Additions 805,602 1,523,067
Balance at end of year 11,884,108 11,088 505
Accumulated Amortization’
Balance at beginning of year 6,893,199 5,284,768
Amaortization far the year 16, 17 1,343,002 1.648,021
Odher movemaenls (29,114} (49,590)
Balance at end of year 8,207,087 5,893,159
Carrying Amount’
Balance at end of year P3.687.021 P4.195,306

"iras incluces pallels with gross camying amount of FA90.7 and FAES 8 milkon a5 al December 31, 2018 and
01T, respectively, with related sccumulated amodizalion smounting o PEST 3 and PA00.E million as o
December 31, 2018 and 217, respectively, and net book wvalue of P3334 and PIB5S2 millon as o
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respecinmely

Amartization
Amortization was charged fo:
Note 2018 2017 2016
Cost of goods sold 16 P1,291,021 P1.495 879 P1.262,209
Saling and dislribulion 17 51,981 152,142 108,770
P1,343,002 F1.6458,021 P1.371.9T9

The Company annually reviews the EUL of relwnable bottkes and cases based on
the period over which the assels are expected to be available for wse, principally
delermined by their historical breakage and irippage. H = possible that fulure
financil performance could be materally affected by changes in these eslimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the EUL of bottles
and cases would increase the recorded amoddization expense and decrease
noncurrent assats.



Furchase Cormmitments

The Company has culstanding purchase commitment for the boitles and cases
amounting 1o P470.1 million and P137.8 milion as al December 31, 2018 and 2017,
resspacively.

Impairment

The Company provides an allowance for unusable comainers al circulalion thal failed
to meel the Company’s quality standards and excess bollkes as determined by
management based on the containers profile and oplimal float analyses conducted

The movemanls in lhe allovwance for unusable conainers are o5 Tolows:

Note 2018 2017
Balance al beginning of year P - P38 146
Impairment {reversal of impasment)
losses during the year 17 13,570 (35,387)
Reversal of write-off (write-off)
during the year {7,012) (758)
Balance at end of year PE,658 P -

The Company assasses al each reporting dale whether there is an indicalion that the
bottles and cages may be mpared. Determining the amount of the assels, which
requires the determination of future cash flows expected 1o be generated from the
continued use and ullimate disposiion of such assels, requires the Company to
make eslimates and assumplions lhal can malerially affect lhe financial stalements.
Fulure events could cause the Company 1o conclude that these assets are impaired.
Any resulling impairment loss could have malerial impact on the financial position
and financial performance of the Company. The preparalion of the estimaled future
cash flovs involves estimations and assumpions. While the Company believes that
its assumplions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in lhese
assumplions may materially affect ihe Company’s assessment of the recoverable
amounls and may lead to fulwe additional impairment charges, An increase in the
allowance for unusable confainers would increase the recorded operating expenses
and decrease noncurrent assels,

Allowance for impairment losses for bottles and cases relates to excess botlles, as
well as those that failed o meet the prescribed quality standards prescribed, such as
chipped, faded logos and broken bollles and cases.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

Machinery Buildings and
and Sfher Leasehiol Furnifure Consinection

Equipmant  Isprovemenis  and Fidures  inProgieas Tastul
Groi Carying Amaunt
Ceoember 31, 2018 MBI NG FAI4AE P61, 004 PO TIS  PRO.G26.754
Adsitieny 1,600,308 88 087 £833 JSE B8 2241072
Dinpenahor beolfu adustmarts (MRS [7.083 (T4l h XM N5
Tewash i BE B (175 Bz [8T.371) s
Docember 31, 2017 17,872,181 387530 &7.TH 1138288 22541510
nciions B 86T 1638574 2,384 102862 1206087
Lrsposaicher beoffu squuimants 385 [0.968 s} - [ LR
Treniferureciaswlicatinn. L] 4083 st 1804 .
December 31, M8 15,2M,87 LIS M 16588 23400847
Accumulated Depreciation and

Amartization
Cecember 31, 2016 8,744,577 B8 Az Ap4 BE1 1,662
Tiaprac hen and amodrshen 1,462, 247 108,671 3,300 a 1,304,704
Crapirs ahubur be- ol fustmarita (290,182 4,785 525 . (206,453)
Translerweciaswhoan o [0 261 13
Cernber 31, 2017 B,545, 508 B30E25 A5 414 . 10,820.876
oo ebior N0 B iEaton 1,475,528 1o 3,706 . 1,280.298
Crapos it b offa sdusiments (2T 0,800 [ TH] . (XReT)
Trenafewacies sl g ony [E k] 278 i ] . .
December M, N8 18,881,390 LESLENE J0ATE . LIEE 1
Gamying Amount
Ceoember 31, 2017 PB.0D6, 228 PLTIAB0E PIZI0T  PYI3GI0E  PILO20836
December 31, M8 P7.T33.583 PLEAT A PRI PLMASS  P1B1GEN
Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amordizalion were charged o
MNote 2018 2017 2016

Cost of goods sold 16 PE38,TET P795,285 PT99, 163
Seling and distribution i7 396,286 454,771 485770
General and adminksirative 8 54,196 54 550 82 480

P1,289,.269 P1304,706 P1,367.413

The Company annually reviews the EUL of property, plant and equipment based on
the paniod over which the assels are expecled lo be avalable lor use and updales
those expectations if aclual resulls differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear and lechnical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible that future
financial performance coukd be materially affecled by changes in these estimales
brought abowt by changes in the factors mentioned. A redection in the EUL of
property, plant and equipment woulkd increase the recorded depreciation and
amorzation expenses and decrease noncurrent assels.

The Company has ongoing corporate expansion projects or programs approved by
the BOD. As a result of this expansion program, the Company spent for property,
plant and equipmenl, as well as bollles and cases (see Nole 8), amounling 1o
P20 billon, P3.7 billion and P3.T billlen for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively,
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ing Cost
In 2018 and 2017, the Company obitained bank lbans to partially fund its capital
expendiures and has capitalized borrowing costs amounling to nil in 2018 and P26.0
million, wilh a capilalizalion rate of 3.21% n 2017, These cosls are included as parl
of additions 1o "Property, plant and equipment” account in the statements of financial
posiion (see Mota 11},

Jrrnpairrment

The Company assesses ol each reporting date whether there is an indication that s
propery, plant and aquipment may be impaired. Delermining the amount of the
assels, which requires the delerminalion of Tulure cash floves expaecied o be
genaraled from the continued use and ullimale digposilion of such assets, requires
the Company fo make estimales and assumplions thal can maternally afiect the
financial statements. Fulure evenls could cause the Company to conclude that these
assels are impaired. Any resulling impairment loss could have material impact on the
financial position and financial peformance of the Company. The preparation of the
eslimated fulure cash flows involves estimations and assumplions. Whila the
Company believes that is assumplions are appropriate and reasonable, an increase
in impairment losses would decrease profil or loss and consequenily, decrease
equity, Mo impaimment indicators exists on the Company’s propedy, plant and
equEpment as al December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Dispozal
Loss on disposal of proparty and equipment amountad 1o P14.6 milion, P24.5 million
and PG.2 milion in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respactively.

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounis payable and accrued expenses consist of:

Naote 2018 2017
Trade payables - third parties 23 P&,057,175 P4,877,265
Accrued advertiising and markeling B13,019 935,846
Acerued conlracl services 711,678 T37.014
Non-frade payables 672,735 580,041
Acerued personnel cosl 13 235,194 271,563
Accrued rent 104,088 82,749
Accrued utillies 77,055 52,540
Accrued financing charges 26,141 20,157
Current porlion of finance lease Rability 26 = 3,728
Oiher accrued expenses 524,242 581,480

P9,221,397 P8,132,493

The Company's rade payables mostly pertain 1o ravy malerial purchases made by
the Company with a general paymend ferm of 20 1o 80 days.

Acerved contract services pefain to accrued freight charges, toling lees and other
SEMVices.

Men-trade payables mainly consist of withholding taxes, payables to other
government agencies and olher items thal are individually immalerial or ingignificant.

Accreed personnel cost mcledes current portion of defined benefil &bility, sabines
and olher employee benefiis.

The Company's other accrued expenses consist of various accruals for operating
expenses that are individually immaterial.

The Company’s axposwe bo liquidily resk relaled to accounts payable and acoreed
expanses is disclosed in Mote 25 1o the financial statements.

11. Short4erm and Long-term Debt

a. Short-term Debt
As al December 31, 2018, ths account represents unsecured, nterest-bearing
shor-term loans from local banks, with various malunty dales up fo
February 22, 2019. These shor-lemn loans were acquired o linence the
Companys working capital requirements. Interest rates on the said lbans ranged
from 4.8% 10 5.15% in 2018 and 2.20% 1o 3.00% in 2017.

Total proceeds from these shord-lerm loans amounted to P16.25 billion and
P18.2 bilkon in 2018 and 2017, respectively, while fotal payments lotaled
P18.35 bllion and P16.7 bdlion in 2018 and 2017, respecively. As al
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the balance of shod-tem debt amounted 1o
P1 billion and P3.1 billion, respectively.

b Long-term Debt
This account consists of:

218 2017

T yaar P1 billion lerm loan from Matropolilan

Bank & Trusl & Co. (MBTC) P300,000 F300,000
Two (2) 7 wear P1 billion term loan each

from Bank of the Philippine |slands (BPI) 850,000 1,250,000
7 year PE0Q milion term loan from Bank of

the Philppine Istands (BP1) 00,000 -
5 year P2.5 billion term loan from

Metropolitan Bank & Trusl & Co. (MBTC) 2,500,000 -

5 year P00 millkon lerm loan frarm Shinhan
Bank 500,000 &
3 year PS00 million lerm loan frorm Industnal

Bank of Korea (IBK) 500,000 .
5,450,000 1,750,000
Less debt ssuance cost 27670 3,468
P5,422,330 P1,746,532
Current PT95 458 P508.740
Moncurrent 4,526,874 1,147,783

5,422,330 P1,746,532

Term Loan from MBETC

In March 2013, the Company entered into a loan agreement with MBTC
amounting 1o P1 bilkon, to partially finance the Company's capital expanditure for
its C5D and NCE business. The loan is unsecured and with a term of seven (T)
years, payable in twenly (20) successive quarterly principal repayments lo
commence al lhe end of the Sth quarier from Ihe indial dravedovwn dale and with a
fived interest rale based on PDST-F at dravdown date plus cerain spread.
PDST-F rate is the average of the best sixly percent (80%) of the live bids of
paricipating fixing banks n the secondary market for the S-year Philipping poso-
denaminated Treasury bills and bonds.



In March 2018, the Company entered inlo a P2.5 bilkon loan agresment with
METC to refinance its shor-term debt and parially finance its cap#al
axpandiures. The lean is unsecured and a term frve (5) years payable in hweke
(12) svccessve gquarlerly principal repayments 1o commaence al the and of the

Sih quarter from the dravadown date.

Under the tenms of the leng-lerm loan agreement with MBTC, the Company may,
al its oplion, prepay the lban | full of In part without penally, tegether with
imerest dua. Prepayment shall be applied against the scheduled installment
payments in the inverse order of their malurity. The Company shall give a notice
of such prepayment not bess than therty (30) days prior to such proposed date of
prepayment.

The loan agreement akso provides for certan covenants, the more significant of
witiich are as lolloves:

*  Debi-fo-equity ratio shall not exceed 2:1 based on the financial statemenis;

v Current ratio of at least 0.40:1 based on the fimancial stalements; or

*  The Company shall not declare or pay any cash dividends or redeem or
repurchase any outstanding share or make any capital or asset distribution to
s stockholders withoul prior written consanl of the landear.

Term Loan from BP)

On Oclober 18, 2013 and March 31, 2014, the Company enlered info a loan
agreemenl with BPI lo refinance the Company's shor-lerm debl tolaling lo
P2 billion. The loans are unsecurcd and vith a term of seven (7) years, payable
in twenty (20) successive quarery principal repayments lo commence at the end
of the 8th quarter from the initial dravwdown date and with a fixed interest rale
wihich ghall be delermined using the base rale plus a cefain spread per annim
on the dravedown date

On December 28, 2018, the Company enlered into a PEDD milllion loan
agreernent vath BP1 o refinance or partially refinance s short-dlerm bank boans.
The koan is unsecured and with a term of seven (7) years, payable in bwenly (20)
equal guarterly principal repayments to commence at the end of the Sth quarter
fram the dravedown date.

Under the terms of the long-term loan agreement with BRI, the Company may, at
its option, prapay the lcan in full or in part without penalty, logather with intarest
due. Prepayment shall be applied against the scheduled instalment payments in
the inverse order of their malurity. The Company shall give a nolice of such
prapayment nol less than thidy (30) days prior to such proposed dale of
prapaymaenl.

The Inan agreement alko provides for certain covenants, tha mora significant of
which ara as follows:

Debl-to-equily ratio shall not exceed 2:1 based on the financial stalemenis;
Current ratio of at leas! 0.40:1 based on the financial statements;

Debl service coverage ratio of 1:1 based on the financial stalements; or

The Company shall not declare or pay any cash dividends or redeem or
repurchaze any outstanding share or make any capilal or asset disfribution o
s stockholders withoul prior vrillen consent of the lender,

Tarm Loan from Shinhan Bank

On March 23, 2018, the Company enlered into a loan agreement with Shinhan
Bank amouwnting to PSD0D milien, fo be used by the Company exclusively fo
refinance its short term koans, The loan is unsecured and with a term of five (5)
years, payable in bwelve (12) successive quarlerly principal repaymenls o
commence al the end of the Sth quarier from the dravedowm date and with a Txed
inleresi rale.

T n fi

On Mareh 16, 2018, the Company entered into a bban agreement with 1BK
amounting to PS00 millien, fo be used by the Company exclusively for financing
its capilal working loan. The loan is unsecured and wilh a term of threa (2) years,
payable in ten (10) successive quarlerly principal repayments fo commence at
the end of the Sth quarter from the dravedowen date and with a ficed interest rate,

As at December 21, 2018 and 2017, the Company is complant with all of the
financial covenants of its loan agreements.

Interest expensa on the above lbans recognized in the statements of profit or loss
and olher comprehensive income amounled o P269.3 millon, P135.5 milkon and
PET.3 million for the vears ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
Amortization of debt mswance cost amownied to PE.S9 milion in 2018, P2.4 million in

2017 and P2.9 million in 2016.

Total imerest capitalized in 2018 and 2017 relating to the abovementioned kong-term
debt amounted 1o nil and P2E.0 million, respactively (see Mola 8).

Information about the Company's exposures to interest rate risk and liquidity risk are
disclosed in Mote 25 1o the financial statements.

Repaymeant Schaeduls

Az of Decamber 31, 2018, the annual matwrities of long-term debt are as follows:

Amorization of

Gross Debt Issusance
Yaar Amount Cosl Mat
2019 P&00,000 P3.620 P796,320
2020 1,450,000 6,619 1,443,381
2021 1,310,000 5073 1,304 927
2022 1,160,000 2,454 1,157 506
2023 410,000 358 408 642
2024 160,000 548 159452
2025 160,000 217 159,783
PS5, 450,000 P18,989 P5.431.011

72



73

Reconcilliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Total Bank Dabt

Accrued
Bank Debt Interest Total
Balance, Decamber 31, 2007 P4,845,532 P30,157 P4 876 689
Proceeds - shorl term 16,250,000 - 16,250,000
Proceeds - long term 4 300,000 - 4,300,000
Interesl expense 5,048 269,281 275,329
Payment of:
Principal - short lem {18,350,000) - (18,350,000}
Principal - long term (&00,000) - (600,000
Interest - (279,345) (279,345)
Debl msuance cosl (30.250) - (30,2501
Balance, December 31, 2018 PE 422,330 P20,093 PE 442 423
12, Income Taxes
The componants of the income lax expanse are as follows:
2018 2017 2016
Current tax expense F133,266 P2G2,948 F317,348
Defarred tax expensa (benafil) from
origination and reversal of
temporary differences and olhers (196,254) (36.269) 41,881
(PE2,998) P226,679 F359,229

The details of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Recognired Balance & December 31, 2018
Balance at  Recognizesd In Other Defermed
Decembe 11 inProff or Cossgeehsnsive Deferred Tax
FLGE ] mv LO¥s s Nef  Tax Assete LislRks
H# dafined benel baldity P256,BE3 (P88, B4 PILEIY P2OTE0S P27, 605 [
ABosrance lor imparment

boage on borles and

CURAS. ireentones and

ather 84,358 {84, 3300 - 107,128 PR | T 0
Eltlean s cones (1238 Fall 62,109 . TSR . TET.0ZH
Proparty, plank and

wapment - el [ELTFral] 00 = [ra S111] . [Fz2 A1)
MCIT B #A800 “ 0800 580 P
Tau assets (Babiles)

bafore wat off [T, 805) T, 5 [Ersr Ry =] SON, 045 1,007,520
Eal olf o lasws - - - - A g
st Bax sty (Rakiltis] [PT44,805  PIDSI54 (P a2n (PSREOTEY)  PUISTED  (PEDS,S564)

Rccxpriin FLak i [ 312017
Balsnce st  Recopnieed [ Lo el
Decombar 37, nProfior  Comprshemmive Cferrad Ta
it il ] Losy Lol ) Mot TanAjpely  Lisodoes
Mt definad hanel Bablity PEAE AR 4,323 Pl 54Y  P2EO SRS P50 Y [
Alcwcancs fa impasment

leases o8 bomles and caved,

e e Bnd ol 158, B4 TZ472 241,358 544 143 (H2 T
Epltles ared oot B2 63 {36 571] 248,923} B 12
Proparty, plank ared

0 [263, 05 113064 QRTTR 1307730
Tax assets (habiities]

bafors dat ol [TRE41T) 36 260 1543 (T4 8085) 6 05 (1, 330 B30
Sl olf of tases = = = . (468 828 AESETE
Mw Bax avnay (Rabilben] a1 L] FLAS (PReAB00)  PISET [Lg LB e ral]

Deferred tax expense relating to remeasurements of net defined benefit liability
recognized in other comprehensive income amounted o P32.4 million, P1.5 million
and P4.8 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectivaly.

The Company has MCIT amounting to P9.6 milien, which could be available as
deduction againsi fulure RCIT liabilities until 2021.

Met defered tax Babiliies as sl December 31, 2018 are estimated to be recoversd as
follows:

Amount

To be recovered wilhin 12 months PB1,312
To be recovered afler mose than 12 months 489470
PSE0,TE2

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of defemed tax assels al each reporling
dale and reduces the deferred tax assets to the extent thal # is no longer probabla
that sufficient taxable profét will be available to allow all or par of the deferred tax
assets to be utilized. The Company akso reviews the expected timing and tax rates
upon reversal of temposary diferences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax
accordingly. The Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred lax assels is
basad on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This
forecast = based on the Company's pas! resulis and fulwe expectations on
revenues and expanses.,

The Company has no urecognized deferred tax assels as al December 31, 2018
and 2017,

The reconciliation of the income tax expense compuled at the stalwtory income tax
rate to the income tax espense shovn in the statements of profil or loss and ofher
comprehensive income is as followes:

2018 2017 2016
Profit (less) before tax (P262 538) PTG8,004  P1,212.351
Tax rate at 30% (P78,761)  P230,401 P363,705
Addition to (reductions in) incomea
lax resulling from the lax elfecls ol:
Mondeductible expenses and
albers 21,196 111 60
Equily in net earnings of associates (4,974) {3,564) {4,17G)
Interest income subjected to
final tax (458] (269) (360)
(P&2,558) P226.679 P359.229

13. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory, final salary defined benefdl plan
covering substantially all of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a
Retirement Committee, which is composed mainly of the Company’s employees, that
sals the policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as lrustees 1o
manage lhe relirement Tund purseant lo the plan. Annual cosl s delermined by a
qualfied actuary using the projected unit credit methad. The latest actuarial valuation
was made on December 31, 2018,



Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641, “The Retirement Pay
Law,” a company is required lo provide relirement pay to qualified private sector
amployees in lhe absence of any relirement plan in the enlily, provided, however,
thalt the employea’s relirement benelits undar coBeclive bargaining and other
agreamean ghall not be less than those provided for under the law. The law does not
require minimum funding of the plan.

The determination of the Company's net defined benefit Bability and refirement cost
is dependent on the seleclion of cerdain assumptions wsed by the acluary in
calculating such amounts. Remeasuraments of the nel defined benefit liabilly are
recognized in olher comprehensive income and comprise aduearial gains and losses
on the net defined baneflt liability, return on plan assets and any change in the effect
of assel ceiling, exchiding amounts included in the et interest on the net defined
benefit Ebiliy.

The folowing table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the cloging
balances for net defined benefit liability and is componems:

(Enplrs-l Baaniilin Fald Wl of Ml Defined Banelit
sl i POBAE) Paiy BaseE LIy
EIL] Folk FoLL a3 M 2017
alpnce o Januery | P 843 PUGHBD  (PISSIFY  (P1I2430  PEISFE [l )
Inchuded in prefit or loss
Cummend orabi e CoSE 205 TH, 186 0,50 T ARG
Interent sopenLe $1.430 4500 u - A A
Intereat income : . 0,053 L rd] ®,053 AT
e e 3,053 e g 1208 RRLTo ]
R evssasurements ks [ga):
Achonial lows (g}
- Braacial sssussptisngy (152,185 (3. &4T) s - {152, 105 [24.84T)
SR SRR B LI I 28 . E i ZE g
Rsturm on plan avses
euariuding niwest noome - RF il L1l 1338 -1 L]
(120, 58) [ 820l 2343 GG o DR, D5 G145
Other
Corintubony pesd ] . 1134,000 000 {4,000 33,000
Bpnafitn. pacd cir a8y Bry
e Company (36,025 (28,278 - 5 16,036 (38, 27€)
Eangfin puid 133 135 (41 BTy 1325135 41842 - -
(158179 i 1,85 e {8,098y 168,778
Balsnis o Dacsmber 31 PRI SR P 8L Pie048  (PI0EAT) PEAD SR PES 2R

The cumrent portion of defined benefil liability (included under "Accounts payable and
accrued expenses” account in the stalements of fimancial position) amounted 1o
P28.7 milllien as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, while the noncument portion
(included under “Other noncurrent Ebilties” account in the statements of financial
position) amounied fo PE54.2 millien and P20T.5 milion as al December 31, 2018
and 2017, respecively.

Retirement cost is allocated between “Cost of Goods Sold™ account in the statemenis
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which amounted 1o P7.8 million,
P75 milbon and P71 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016, rezpectively, and “Operating Expenzes” account in the slatements of profit or
loss and olher comprehensive income, which amounied to P116.0 milkon, P105.2
milicn and P105.4 milion for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respeciively (see MNotes 18, 17, 18 and 20).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the prasani value of defined banafit obBgation
amounting te PT95.0 milion and P941.7 million, respectively, perains to active
members.

Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement cost at reparting date
{expressed as weighled averages) are as follows:

2018 2017
Discound rale T.268% 5.50%
Rale of fulure salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Plan assets at December 31 comprised:
2018 2017
Cash and cash aquwvalenls P& 58T P3,743
Debt securities:
I nyestment in government Ssecuries 86,250 92,784
|nvestment in debl securilies 9,601 5,897
95,851 99,681
Investment in equily securilies”
Food and drink 145 14T
Holding Company 330 330
Real estate 132 118
611 595
Olhers 991 1,352
Total P103,040 105,371

tinchodes investiment in MEC amounting to P30 thousand

Debt and equity instruments have quoled prices in aclive markets. All government
bonds and securities are Bsued by the Philippine government, which are rated "BBB"
by Standard and Poor's Financial Servicas.,

Other financial assets held by the Plan are primarily receivables and payables.

Maturity analysis of lhe benefit payments:

Expected Banefi
During the Year Ending Dacember 31 Paymeants
2018 P3,141
2020 170,931
2021 42,901
2022 46,280
2023 35,761
2024 through December 31, 2028 368,498

Sensithity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumplions constant, veould have affected DBO by the
armounts shown below:

Sensitivity Effect on
2018 Analysis DBOD
Discount rate B.26% 1.00% increase -B.67%
Discount rate 6.25% 1.00% decrease 10.23%
Rale of salary increase 6.00% 1.00% increase 10.36%
Rale of salary increase 4.00% 1.00% decrease =8.92%
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Senzitivity Effect on
207 Analysis DEO
Discount rate 6.50% 1.00% increase -8.34%
Discount rale 4.50% 1.00% decrease 11.11%
Rate ol sakary incieass 6.00% 1.00% inciease 11.05%
Rate of sakary increase 4.00%  1.00% decrease -8.46%:

Az al December 31, 2018 and 2017, the weighted-average duration of the defined
benafdl obligation i 10.18 years and 11.31 years, respectivaly.

These deflined beneft plans expose the Company to acluaral nsks, such as
longevity risk, inferest rate risk, and market {investimeant) risk.

The Ralirement Committee reviews the level of funding required for the relirement
fund. Such a review includes the asset-labilty matching (ALM) strategy and
irvestment risk management policy. The Company's ALM objeciive is o match
maluriliess of the plan assels o the retiremenl benealil obligalion as thay Tall due. The
Company monilors how the duralion and expecled yield of the invesimenis are
matching the expected cash oulflows arising from the retirement benefit obligations,

The Company's expected contribution (o the plan for the year 2018 i P30 millicn.
Any future contribution 1o the plan is determined taking iMoo account the cash flow
and financial condition as at the dale of inlended coniribution, as well as other
faclors as the Company may consider ralavant.

The Company's funding policy &= lo confribute to the Plans fund as required under
actuarial principles to mantain the fund balance in sound condition. In addition, the
Company resenes the right to discontinee, suspend or change the rate and amount
of the contributions fo fhe fund at any time dwe to the business necessily or
economic condiions.

14. Share Capital

Capilal slock consists of:
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On January 21, 2008, the Company oblained a certificate of permit to offer securities
for sale iksued by the SEC congisting of 3,693,772,27T9 common shares with a
maximum offer price of P3.50 per share.

On February 1, 2008, the Company's inlial publc offering of 1,142,348 680 shares
at P3.50 per share culminated with the listing and trading of ils shares of stock under
the First Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Of the total shares offered,
380,782 893 shares pertain to the primary offering, which resulted in an increasa in
capital stock amounting to PS7.0 milkon and additional paid-in capital of P1.2 billion,
net of P138.0 milkon transaction cost thal is accounted for as a reduction in equiy.

The Company has approximately 597 and 584 holders of common equity securities
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respeclively, based on the number of accounts
registerad with the Stock Transfer Agenl. The PCD Mominee Corporalion (Filipina)
and (Mon-Filipino) were considered as hwo holders.,

The Company is compliant with the minimum puhbc float of 15% that = required by
the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. where the Company's shares are raded.

Capital Manadgemani

The Company's objecives whan managing capital are 1o increasa the value of
shareholders’ investment and mainlain reasonable growdh by applying free cash flow
to selective invesiments that would further the Company's product and geographic
diversificabion. The Company sels stralegies with the objective of eslablshing a
versalile and resourceful linancial managemenl and capital streclure,

The Chief Financial Officer has overall respensiblity for the monitoring of capital in
propordion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are sel in the lighl of changes in tha
Companys external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business
acperations and indusiny

The Company mainlains its use of capilal stiuclure using a debl-lo-equily ralio which
is gross debt divided by equity. The Company includes within gross debt all interest-
bearing loans and borrowings, while the Company defines equity as fotal equity
shown in the slatements of fmancial position,

There wvere no changes in the Company's approach fo capital management during
the year, The Company & subject fo debt covenants relating to iz long-term debl
{see Nole 11).

The Company's debl 1o equity ralio as al repording dales is as follows:

2018 2017
{a) Debt® P&,422,330 P4, 848532
(b Tolal equily P9,159,065 PS,445 456
Debt to equity ratio (a'b) 0.70:1 0.51:1

* Periains bo bank cebls

15. Retained Earnings

On Apeil 20, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved the declaralion of cash dividends
with the record date of May 10, 2016, and a payment date of June 3, 2016,
amounting to P243.8 milon or PO.OT per share for the year ended December 31,
2018,

On May 4, 2017, the Companys BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends
wilh the record dale of May 18, 2017, and a payment date of June 14, 2017,
amounting lo P254.9 milkon or PO.OT per share for the year ended December 31,
2017,

On April 16, 2018, the Company's BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends
with the record date of Apsil 30, 2018, and a payment date of May 25 2018,
amounting to P162.5 million or P0.044 per share for the year ended December 31,
2018,



Az at December 31, 2018, the Company has retained earnings of P7886.063
{@s adjusied per Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended), and share
capifal of P1,751,435. The Company has a dividend policy lo declare dividends to
slockholders of record, which are paid oul of #s unrestricted relained samings. Any
futwe dividends it pays will be al the discretion of the BOD after taking inlo account
the folowing: ihe Company's earnings; cash flows; financial position; loan covenanis;
capilal and operaling progress (see NMole 9), and oflher faclors as the BOD may
consiker relevant. Subject to the foregaing, the policy is to pay up to 509 of the
annual profit as dividends, In addition, the Company must oblain prior written
consanl from s lenders bafore it can daclare or pay any cash dvidends or redeam
o repurchase any oulslanding share or make any capilal or assel dislribulion lo s
gtockholders (see Mote 11). The Company cbiained the congents from iz lenders
prioe to declaring dividends in 2018, 2017 and 2016,

16. Cost of Goods Soald

Cost of goods sold consists of:

18. General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of;

Note 2018 2017 2016

Personnel expenses 13, 20 PT0G,558 PE42.803 PED1,185
Outside services 187,528 152,308 125,697
Rental and wilities 26 104,357 81,515 101,606
Dapreciation 8, 19 54196 54 850 82,480
Oilhers 137,544 117,991 99,254
P1,190,181 P1,0585,267 Pa70.232

The “Others™ account includes deprecialion and amodization of properly, planl and
equipment and other tems that are mdividually immaterial.

Note 2018 M7 2016

Materiaks and supplies
used, and taxes 6,23 P21,919,652 F16,204,904 P16,872.502

Depraciation and

amartization 8.9 19 2,129,808 2,291,184 2,081,372
Drelivery and freight 1,708,230 2,301,750 2,237,284
Rental and utibies 26 632,748 660,152 601,847
Personnel axpenses 13, 20 541,278 529,248 524,709
CHhers 951,751 1,045,374 1,108,429
P27,883,367 P23,032,590 P23,406,143

The “Cihers” account includes repairs and mainlenance, oulside services and other
various bems of manufacturing overhead which are individually insignificant.

17. Selling and Distribution

Saling and distribution expanses consist of:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Distribation P1,093 547 P1,474,158 P9E6 083
Delivery and freight 822,811 873,601 776,535
Personnel axpanses 13, 20 T01,071 658,009 615,281
Dweprecialion and
amortization &9 19 448,267 606,913 595,540
Taxes 209,993 123,906 111,815
Rental and utiMies 26 198,465 166,546 122,817
Sales commission 171,708 218,741 188,400
Chthers 5, & 252 632 204 713 300,924
P3,998494  P4,418587  P3,676,995

The "OCthars™ account includes mparment losses on recervables and unusable
containers, and various individually insignificant items.

19. Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amodization are distributed as follows:

Nofe 2018 207 2016
Cost of goods s0ld 16 P2,129,808 P2,281, 164 P2,061,372
Seling and distribution 17 448,267 506,913 595,540
General and administrative 18 54,196 24,650 G2.480
P2,632,2T1 P2,952,727 P2,739.392
20. Personnel Expenses
Parsonne expenses consist of:
Note 2018 2017 2016
Salaries and wages P1,825,028 P1.714,374 P1628,723
Retirement cost 13 123,879 116,684 112,462
P1,948 507 F1.831,053 P1,741,1858
The above amounts are distributed as follows:
Note 2018 2017 2016
Cost of goods sold 16 P541,2T8 P529 246 B524,709
Selling and distribution 17 T01,071 658, 0058 615,281
Ganeral and
adminisiralive 18 706,558 542 803 601,195
P1,948,%07 P1,831.058 P1.741.185
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21. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share {EPS)

Basic EPS is compuled as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Proffl {loss) for the year
altributable to equily holders
of the Company (a) (F198,540) P541,325 P853,122

Mumber of issued shares al
beginning and and of year 3683772278 2683,7T72,2789 3683772279

MNumber weighted average
number of shares

outstanding (&) 3.683,772,27T8 3693,772279 3693772279

Basic/diluted EPS (a/b) {P.05) P0.15 PO.23

As al December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company has no dilutive equity

instrumenis,

22. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exisis when one party has ability 1o conirol, direcily or
indirectly, thiough one of more intermediares, the other party of exercise significant
influence over the other party in making the firancial and operating decisions. Such
relationship also exisls bebtween andior among enlities which are under common
contral wilh the reporting enlerprisas, of between and/or among the reporting
enterprises and their key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders.,

Related party transactions are shovan under the appropriate accounts in the financial
stalements as Tollows:

Transactiong Balance of
Fawe of for the Cope fromm
Catmoary T [ Fariod  Rasishad Parties Tadma [=
g e PE1,500 L]
anE TR .
e TREM
Aavenrsten Advences 330, 33 MNE . 567,300 CoMectible  Unsecured;
ondemand o impairment
AT ’ Tl bibls Linsaecurad
1 on dewand  ngimpesmsnt
il -] - 585, 174  Colectids Linsepcard,
on dewand  noimpasmant
Wiy 22h mie Za.ET0
T 22648
e 25434
Mary Manasgamant  Shotbam 24 H1E 112830
Padwonn sl AP T 114,866
banadl A6 120,835
P 224 R EA L]
R T 3348
[y i) 2 70d
e PSET 00
T PEBDL T4
e PESRE 1 T4

"Eristy with signifcant nfleence oow the Sompeny

The above outstanding balances of due from related parties are unsecured and
expecied to be settled in cash. Mo impairment losses have been recognized in 2018
and 2017 in respect of amounts of due from related parles as lhese are considered
o be colleclible.

The Company has significant related parly transaclions which are summarized as
felowes:

a, The Company purchased finished goods from Lotte Chilsung Beverage Co., Lid.
a major stockholder. Total purchases for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2007 and 2016 amounled lo PS1.2 million, PT2.0 rmilkon and P72.5 milkon,

respaciivaly,

k. The Company keases parcels of land where some of itz bottling planis are
located. Rental expenses recognized under “Cost of Goods Sold” and “"Operating
Expensas” accounls in the slatemenls of profil or loss and olhar comprehansive
income amounted to P28.9 milion, P26.4 million and P28.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respeclively. The Company has
advances lo NRC amounling lo P35.0 million as al December 31, 2018 and
2017, which bear interest al a fxed rate of 10% per annum and which are
unsecured and collectible on demand. The relaled inlerest income amounting 1o
P3.8 milkon each for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 is
recognized as part of “Other income - net”™ under “Fnance and Other Income
(Expenses)” account in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
incomea. The Company ako has oulstanding nel receivables from NRC
amounling 1o P525.5 mllion and PS38.3 million as al December 31, 2018 and
2017, mespoctively, which are unsecured and collectible on demand. The
advances and recevables are included under “Due from related parties™ account
inthe statements of fmancial position.

¢. The Company has outstanding working capital advances o NHC, an associate,
amounling 1o P3.8 millon as al Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017, and which are
unsacured and colleclible on demand. The advances are included under “Due
from related parties” account in the statements of financial position.

d. In addiion to their salanes, the Company also provides non-cash benelits o key
management persannel and contributes 1o a deflined benefit plan on their behalf.
There are no agreements between the Company and any of its directors and key
officers providing for benefils upon lemination of employment, excapt lor such
benalits lor which they may be enlithed undar the Company’s reliremaend plan.

Transaciions with the Defined Eemnelit Flan
The Company's relremenl fund is being held in rest by trustee banks.

As al December 31, 2018 and 2017, the fair value of the retirement fund amounted
te P1032.0 millicn and P105.4 million, respeclively. The relirement fund consisis of
government and debt securities, equities and other items such as cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables, which accounted for 85%, 6%, 3%, and 6%
of plan assels, respacively in 2018 and 95%, 1%, and 4% of plan assels,
respecively, in 2017 (see Nole 13). The retwement plan has no investments in the
Company of any receivables from the Company.

The Company made comributions to the retirement fund amounting to P124.0 million
and P33.0 milion in 2018 and 2017, respectively.



23. Significant Agreements c. On Aprl 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Perfformance Agresment with
PepsiCo to meel certain marketing and investiment levels from 2007 fo 2017, as
required by the botlling agreement with PepsiCo. The agreement requires the
Company bo: (1) spend a specilied parcentage wilh a minemum amount for the

The Company has exchlusive bottling agreement and other transactions which are
summarized below;

a. The Company has Exclusive Botiling Agreements with PepsiCo, Inc. (PepsiCo),

the ullimate parent of Quaker Global Investments BV, a shareholder, up to year
2018 and Pepsi Liplon |nfermational Limited (Pepsi Lipton), a joint veniure of
PepsiCo and Unilever NV.. up to year 2019 (as renewed). Under the
agreements, the Company is authorzed to boltle, sell and distribute PepsiCo and
Pepsi Lipton beverage products in the Philippines. In addiion, PepsiCo and
Pepsi Liplon shall supply the Company wath the main raw matenals
(concentrates) in the production of these beverage products and share in the
funding of certain markeling pregrams. The agreements may be rencwed by
mulual agreamen bebween the paries. Under the agreements, PepsiCo and
Pepsi Liplon have the right to lerminate the conlracts under cerlain conditions,
including falure to comply with terms and conditions of the agreement subject to
written matice and reclification pericd, change of ownership control of the
Company, change of ownership conlrol of an enlity which controls the Company,
discontinuance of bottling boverages for 30 conseculive days, occurrence of
cerlain evenis leading lo the Company's insolvency or bankrupley, change in
managemeant and contral of tha business, among ofhers. Until August 2017,
purchases made from PepsiCo is made thru Pepsi-Cola Far East Trade
Development Co., Inc, (PCFET), a company incorporated under Philippines kws,
Starting Seplember 2017, purchases mada from PepsiCo s made mamly thru
Concentrate Manulaclwing (Singapore) PTE Lid. (CMSPL). Tolal nel purchases
from PCFET amounted to nil, P3.7 billion and PS.6 bilkon for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Total net purchases from
CMSPL amounted fo P2.4 billion for the year ended Decamber 31, 2018. The
Company's oulstanding payable to PCFET (incleded under “Accounts payable
and accreed expenses” account in the statements of inancial posilion) amounted
i PE.7 million and P825 million as al December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The Company's oulslanding payable lo CMSPL (incleded under
“Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account in the statemenis of financial
position) as at December 31, 2018 amounted to P1.2 billion. Total purchases
from Pepsi Liplon amounted o P201.7 milkon, P236.3 millien and P132.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2048, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The
Company's outstanding payable to Pepsi Lipton (included under “Accounts
payable and accruad expanses” account in the statements of financial position)
amounted 1o P54.8 million and P17.0 milion as al December 31, 2018 and 2017,

respectively,

The Company has cooperalive adverlising and markeling programs  wilh
PepsiCo and Pepsi Liplon thru PCFET that =els fordh the agreed adverizing and
marketing activities and paricipation arrangement during the years covered by
the boftling agreaments. In cerlain instances, the Company pays for the said
expenses and claims reimbursements from PepsiCo thru PCFET and CMSPL.
The Company incurred marketing expenses amounting to P628.3 million, PE17.8
milkon and PO37.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016, respecivaly. The Company’s oulslanding receivable from PCFET included
under “Recelables” accounl n the statements of financlal position, which are
unzecured and are payable on demand, amounted to P218.4 milion and P314.6
miillion P179.9 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respactivaly.

beverage products; (2) make cerain investments based on a minimum
percentage of the Company's sales to expand the Company's manufaciuring
capacity; (3} invest in a minimum oumber of coobers per year o supporl
distnibution expansion; and (4) expand the Company's distribution capabilties in
terms of the number of active rowles, the number of new routles and the number
of trucks used for dstribution support.

On December 20, 2014, the Company has Excleive Snacks Franchising
Appomtment with The Concenfrate Mamufacturing Company of [reland {(CMCI),
a company incorporabed m reland. Under the agreement, the Company s
auvlherized to manulacture, process, package, distribule and sell the products
within the territory in accordance with the agreement. In addition, CMCI shall
supply the Company with the main raw malerials in the production of thesa
snacks products and share in the funding of cerain marketing programs. The
agreemenis may be renewed by mutual agreement between the paries. Under
the agreements, CMCI has the right fo terminate the contracts under certain
condilions, including failere lo comply wilh lerms and condilions of Lhe
agreement subject to wrillen natice and rectification period, change of cvnership
control of the Company, change of ownership conirol of an entity which conirols
tha Company, discontinuance of manufaciuring products for 30 consecutiva
days, amang othars,

On December 20, 2014, the Company entered into a Business Development
Agreemenl wilh CMCI lo meel cedain sales volume objeclives through:
(1) growing distribution through aclive sales and distribution system; {2) ensuring
pack prica compelitive presence; and (3) growing sally share and volume. Tha
agreement sels forth the agreed advertising and marketing actwvities and
parlicipation and puwchase of seasonimg during the years coveded by the
agreamenis. The Company incumed markeling expenses amounting to P37.7T
million, P124_2 milkon and PEE.2 million for the years anded Decembar 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016, respeclively. Purchases Trom CMC| i made lhre Pepsi-Cola
Internatiomal Cork (Cork), a company incorporated under the laws of Ireland, Mo
marketing expense incurred under this agreement in 2014, Tolal net purchases
from Cork amounted 1o P34.9 milion, P24 milion and P130.1 million in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company's oulstanding payable to Cork
{included under “Accounis payable and accrued expenses” account in the
slatements of financial position) amounted o P14 milion and nil as al
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

78



24, Segment Information

Az dizcussed in Note 1 1o the financial slaternents, the Company is engaged in the
manufachure, sales and distribution of CSD, NCB and Snacks. The Company’s main
products wunder its CSD category include brands Pepsi-Cola, TUp, Mountain Dew,
Mirinda, and Mueg. The HNCB brand calegory includes Gatorade, TropicanaTwesster,
Lipton, Sting energy drink, Propel finess veater, Milkis, Let's be coffee and Premier and
Aqualing drinking water, while Snacks calegory includes Cheelos and Lays. The
Company operates under three (3) reportable operating segments, the CSD, NGB and
Snacks calegories. These calegories are managed separalely because they requie
different technology and markeling sirategy. Analyss of fnancal information by operling

segment i as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31, 2018

el Ended December 31, 2017

Armcunts. in Millions] C5D NCB Snacks Total
Mt Salas
External sales P& 262 P95 P38 Fa5 BEE
Sales returns and discounts {4193 (1.287) LEF] 15581
et Salas Pz 070 F7.868 P2ET F30, 305
Fesult
Segrnent result® BLEZE B 824 B30 BT 273
Unalocaled expenses (G416)
Irterast and financing s panses [137)
Equity in net earmings of

FsEocixles 12
Interest incomes -}
Other inoome - net k3l
Income tax expense (227)
Profit P51
Other Information®™
Sagrment assets P23 143
Irvesirmeant in assocmlas o6
Dt ed tax assets - net 125
Other noncurront assats piii]
Combined Total Assets F24,144
Segrment habilties B3840
Loans payabie 4 BaT7
Dederred tax l@biltes - net 870
Incarme tax payable 43
Combined Total Liabilities P14, 808
Capital expendituras P3.687
UI!'F‘EGIBUI!I‘I and armatzaton

of bottles and cases and

property, plant and equipmeant 2853
Koncash nems other than

deprecialion and armadization 37

{Amounts in Millions) [=Ts] HCEB Snacks Taotal
Mot Sales
External gales P28,670 PS5 508 P2e2 F3B 438
Sales refurrs and discounts 3,578 1,203 62 4 Bd3
Het Sales P25,092 PB,302 P200 P33,595
Rasult
Segment result* Pa, 254 P1.4185 P2 PETI1
nallocated expansas |5,855)
Interest and fnancing expenses (275)
Equity in net eamings of

BES0CIEESE 17
| ntarest incorme 5
Othed inooma - el 135
| noomne tax benefit 63
Profit (P158)
Qthar Information™™
Segrment assets 25,240
| meestmant in associales E13
Deferrad tax a55815 - net 116
Othed_nanhcurfent assets 204
Combined Total AsSels P26173
Sngn'umf |kl s P8 BBE
Loans payable 6,422
Defered tax liabilties - net BST
| come tax payable k-]
Combined Total Liabilties FiT.014
Capital expendiures P1.976
Depreciation and amartization

of bottles. and cases and

praperty. plant and equipment 2,832
Moenecash items other than

degreciation ard amortization B2

79



Yoar Ended December 31, 2016

Lmounts in Milliors) =] HCE Sncks Tctal

Nt Sales
External sales P28142 Pa 419 P80 P35, T51
Sales retens ard discounts (4,115 [1.285) [31) (5,431)
Net Sales p22.02F P8 1354 E158 P30,320
Reailt
Segpment resull* P3,061 P1.864 (Pat) PEE14
Unaliccated &x penses {5,652)
Interast and financing expenses [e1)
Equity in nel earnings of

associabes 14
Interest income 4
Cither inoorme - nel 3
Incorme tax Gxponss (S
Profit PBES3
Crher Informatson™
Spgment assels P21,234
Irvestment in assocEtes o4
Deferred tax assets - not 18
Ciher_noncwment assets 268
Combined Total Assats P22 205
Segment kabiites P8, 183
Loans payable 3,844
Deferrad tax Gabilities - net 200
Income tas payable B
Combined Total Liabilties P13042
Capilal expendilures P655
Depreciation and amartization

of bottles and cases and

property, plam and eguiprrent 2,738
Moncash iterms other than

depreciation and amatizaton [ 1]

*The Company presents it operating ssgmenls performance based on profit.  There were nd inbersegment
wales recapieed beteean the three repodng sagments.

“*The Company uses iLs assels and incurs kabiles to produce CED, HCB and snachs, hence, the assels and
kabidies are not direclly sslinbulable to & segment and cannol be allocated inlo each segment on &
TechSOnahe bass.

The Company derived operations within the Philippines. The Company does not
presant geographic information required by PFRS 8.

Major Customer
The Company does nol have any single external customer from which sales revenue
genarated amounted to 10% or mora of the nel sales.

Determining whelher an enlity is acting as a principal or as an agenl depends on
cerlan faclts and circumstances and requires judgment by managemenl. Fealures
lhal, individually or in combinalion, indicale thal an entily is acling as a principal
include:

* the entity has the primary responsibility for providing the goods or rendaring
BETVICES,

* the entity has nventory risk; and

*  {he entity has discretion in establishing prices.

An entity s acling as an agenl when il does not obtan control of the goods or right to
ihe services. The Company assessed is revenue arrangemenis and concluded that
il & acling as prncipal in all arrangements,

26. Financial Risk Management and Financial Instruments

Classifying Fi ial Ingtr
The Company exercises juwdgments in classifying a financial instrument, or s
component parts, on miteal recognition as either a financial asset, a financial labiity
or an equily instrument in accordance wilh the subslance of the contractual
arrangement and the definition of a financial assel, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its begal form,
govems s classification in the statements of financial position.

Fmancial Risk Man@gement

Overview

The Company has cexposure to the followdng risks from s use of financial
imstruments:

= Credit Risk
»  Liquidity Risk
= Markel Risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure 1o each of the above
risks, the Company's objeclives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risks.

The main purpose of the Company’s dealings in firancial instruments i to fund its
operations and capital expandifures.

Rizk Managemeant Framework

The BOD of the Company has overall responsibility for the establshment and
oversight of the Company’s rsk management framework. The Company's BOD has
establshed the Execulive Commitlee (EXCOM), which is responsible for developing
and monitoring the Company’s risk managemeant policies. The EXCOM identifies all
issues affeciing the operations of ihe Company and reports regularly fo the
Company's BOD on its activilies.

The Company's risk management policies are esiablshed 1o identify and analyze the
isks faced by the Company, to sel appropiale nsk brmds and controls, and lo
mamitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk management policies and systems ane
revieveed reqularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activiies. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procadures, aims o develop a disciplined and construclive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company has an Audil Committee, which performs oversight over financial
management and intermal control, specifically in the areas of managing credi,
liquidity, market and other risks of the Company. The Company's Audit Commiltee is
assisted in the oversight role by the Inlernal Audit (1A). The Companys A
undertakes both regular and ad hoo reviews of risk management condrols and
procedures, the results of vhich are reported fo the Audit Committes

There vare no changes in lhe Company's objeclives, policies and processes for
managing the risk and the methods wed to measure the risk from previous year.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit cuslomers
and countarparties lail to parform therr contractual obligations. The Company's cradit
rsk armes principally from the Company’s cash in banks, receivables and dee from
related parties.

Expasuire to Crodit Risk

The camying amounts of the firancial assels represent the Company's maximum
credit exposure before eflect of any collateral and any master netling agreements,
The maximum exposure to credl risk as at Dacember 31 is as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Cash in banks 4 P295,510 P151,228
Receivables - net 5 2,642,413 2,404 681
Due from relaled parties 22 567,309 580,174
Tolal credit exposwre P3,405,232 P3,136,083

The Company has Planl Credit Committea (PCC) for each of the plani. The PCC has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually
for ereditworthiness before standard credit terms and conditions are granted. The
PCC's review includes lhe requirements of updaled credit application documents,
credit verifications through confiomation that there are no credit vickations and that
the account is not included in the negative Bt (is! of blackisted customers), and
analyses of financial performance o ensure credit capacity. Credit limils are
eslablished for each cuslomer, which serve as the maximum open amounl al which
they are allowed to purchaze on credil, provided thal credit terms and conditions ane
obsarved.

The credit Emit and status of each customers account are first checked before
pocessing a credit ransaction. Cusfomers that fal o meel the Company's
conditions in ihe credil checking process may transact with the Company only on
cash basis.

Most of the Company's customers have been transacting with the Company for
several years, and losses have occurred from lime to time, Customer cradil risks are
monitored through annual credit reviews conducted on a per plant basis. Results of
credit reviews are grouped and summarized according to credit characteristics, such
as geographic location, aging profile and credit violalions. Hislorically, credi
violalions have been aliribulable to bounced checks, denied and absconded credi
accounis, Receivables from these cuslomers are considered by the Company to be
impaired.

It is the Company’s policy 1o enter info transactions with a diversity of credibworthy
parties 1o miligate any significant concentration of cradit risk.

Collaterals are required from cuslomers for credit limit applications that excead
certain thresholkds, The Company has policies for acceptable collateral securities that
may be presanted upon submission of credit applications. Collaterals include bank
guaraniees, lime deposits, surety bonds, real estate andior chatlel modgages. The
aggregate fair market value of these collateral securities amounted to P225.6 million
and P253.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Tolal amount of
recenrables that have collateral amounted to P194.8 million and P224.8 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

To pursue timaly realization of collateral in an orderly manner, the Company's policy
discourages the acceptance of chatlel and real estale collateral. For chattel and real
eslale collaterals, the Company crealed rules governing the acceplance of such
guaraniees. On inslances of cuslomer defaull, ihe PCC, with the suppord of the
corporate legal depariment, is responsible for the foreclosure of collalerals in the
form of real and movable personal proparies. Series of demand letters are sent ta
the defaulling customer lo command lor payment and to propose for debl repayment
agreaments. I the customer fails o cooperate, the case will be endorsed 1o the legal
department lo facilitate the foreclosure of the collateral, The Company generally
does not use non-cash collateral for its own oparations.

Az at December 31, the aging analysis per class of inancial agsels i as follows:

December 31, 2018
Helthes Past Dus bk pot bmpadred

Past Due nor 1w Mo B Morethan
Imnpaired Days Days &0 Days Impaired Taolal
Cash in banks P295,510 P P = P . P . P2as 510
Reoehables:
Trads 1,320,925 412471 B2 442 83,270 150,382 2,050,002
Others 481,056 9,312 7802 124,533 1541 14,344
Due from related
parties 0709 - - - - $B7, 309
2654 200 442788 5,344 207,801 1,513 3 E2F 16
Less aliowance Far
impaimnent losses = - - - 231,933 231,933
FIBE4. 800 P4427,28% P80, 344 [P20T, 803 P = PLA03 37
December 31, 2017
Meither Pras Duie but Aol bmpaaired
Pasi Dus nor 18030 o] Micxre than
Impained Days Days B0 Days _ Impaired Toial
Cash in banks P51,228 P - P - P - P - Pi51.228
Recehmbies
Tracs 1,412,708 318087 4 357 08 Ta4 155 521 1. 784 447
Others 453,411 2,081 BT 450 265773 55,434 ATS 185
Due from related
parties 580,174 = = . . 560174

2298521 350182 161,582 3T 214555 335038
Less aliowances Far
impairment |csses

- = = 214 555 F14.805%
P2 25511 P3IE0IE2 P1GIBE2 PR HIT P - P3136083

Az at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there was an impairment loss of P221.9 million
and P215.0 million, respactively, relating to trade and olher receivables.

The Company believes thal the unimpaired amounts that are past dee by more than
thirty (30) days are slill collectible, based on historic payment behavior and extensive
analysis of cuslomer credit risk. In addition, the Company believes that the amounts
ol financial assels thal are nedher pasl due nor impaired are collectible, based on
historic payment behavior and exlensive analyss of counterpares credit risk.

The Company's exposwe to credit risk arises from default of the counterparly, There
is no significant concanlration of credit risk within the Company.

The credit qualities of financial assets that were neither past due nor impaired are
delermined as lolows:

= Cash in banks are based on ihe credi standing or raling of the counlerparly.



v Total receivables and due from related parties are based on a combination of
credil standing or raling of the counterparly, historical experience and specilic
and collectiva credit risk assessmeant.

High grade cash in banks is deposited in local banks thal are considered as top ter
banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitabiity. Receivables and due
from related parties are considered to be high grade qualily fmancial assels, whone
the counterparies have a very remole kelihood of defaull and have consislently
aexhibiled good paying habilts, High grade quality financial assels are those assessed
as having minimal credit risk, otherwisa they ara of standard grade gquality. Standard
grade qualily linancial assets are lhose assessed as having minimal 1o regular
inztances of payment defaull due to ordinary'common collection issues. These
accounis are fypically nol mpaired as the counterpadies generally respond to credi
actions and updale their payments according ly.

Expacted Credit Loss Assessment as af December 31, 2018

Trade and Other Recelvalies

The Company allocales each exposwe to a credit risk based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of oss (ncleding bul not limited o exlernal
fatings, audited (nancial slalements, managemenl accounls and cash  fow
projections and available press informalion aboul customers) and applying expected
credit judgment. Credil risk grades are defined using qualiative and quantitative
factors thal are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are segmented by market or customer type
and an ECL rafe i calculafed for each segment based on delinquency stalus and
aclual credil loss experience.

The following labla provides information about the exposure to credit risk for frade
and other receivables as al December 31, 2018:

Gross Impairment
Carrying Loss Credit-
Amount Allowance impaired
Current (nol past due) P1,801,981 P - Mo
1 - 30 days pasl due 442 285 = Mo
31 - 60 days pasl due 90,344 - No
lMore than 80 days past due 428 736 221,933 Yes
Balance at December 31, 2018 P2, 764,346 P221,933

Loss rales aré based on aclual credit loss expérience over thrée years considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment 1o the loss rates for forecasts of
future economic condilions are not expecied o be material. The Company applies
the simplified approach in providing for expecled credil losses prescribed by PFRS 8,
which parmits the use of the Matime expected loss provision and applies a provision
matrix, The application of the expecled loss rates o the receivables of the Company
does not have a material impact on tha financial statemenis,

The maturity of the Company's trade and olber receivables i less than one year,
which implies that the lifelime expected credit losses and the 12-month expected
cradil losses are similar.

Cash in Banks

The Company held cash in banks amounting o P285.5 million and P151.2 milion as
al December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The cash in banks is deposited in
Iocal banks, which is raled as high grade.

Impairmeni on cash in banks has been measured on a 12-month expected koss basis
and reflects the short malurities of the exposures. The Company considers that ils
cash in banks have low credit ek based on the external credil ratings of the
counterparties and any ECL is expected to be immalerial,

Dwe from Related Paities

The Company has due from related parlies amouniing lo PSET.3 milion and
P580.1 million as al December 31, 2018 and 2017, respecively. Due from related
parlies consesls of receivables from counterparties thal have a very remole likelibood
of defaull because there s no known signilicant financial difficully of the
counterparties and no probabilty that the counterparties will enter bankruptey based
from the available financial information.

Impairment on due from related parlies has been measured on a 12-month expected
credit loss basis and reflects the short malurities of the exposures. The Company
consikers thal ils due from related parlies has low credil sk based on [he extemal
cradit ratings of the counterparties and any ECL is expected 1o be immaterial.

igquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will ancounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations as they fall due, The Company manages liquidily risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between comtinuily of funding and
flexibilly in operalions. Treaswy conliols and procedures are in place lo ensure thal
sufficient cash s maintained fo cover daily operational and working capital
requireamends, as well as capital expendilures and debl service payments.
Managemenl closely monitors the Gompany's fulure and contingent abligations and
selz up requred cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal
e uire ments,

In addilion, the Company mamtains the Tollowing credil facillies:

=  Tolal commitment as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 under the ling of credd is
P16.85 billion and P13.1 billion, respectively, of which the Company had drasm
PE.7 billion and P5.0 billion, respectively, under letlers of credit, shorl-term loans
and term loans. All faciliies under the omnibus lines and term koans bear
negotialed interest at floating rates consisting of a mangin over current Philippine
treasury rates; and

* P15 bilion domestic bills puchased line, which are available as al
December 31, 2018 and 2017,
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Exposure to Liguidily Risk

The table summarizes the matwity profile of the Company's financial liabilties based
on contraciual undiscounted amount, including estimaled inlerest paymenis and
axcluding the impact ol any netling armangemends:

As at December 31, 2018

Carrying  Contractual One Year Mare than
Amount Cash Flow or Less One Year
Financial Liabilities
Shont-tenm debt F1,000,000 1,004,833 1,004,833 F -
Accounts payable and accrued
B pENSES * 8,922,129 B.922129 8,922,129 -
Long-term debt 5,422 329 6,210,803 1,061,200 5,148,603

P15,244.458  PME13TTES  P10.988162 P5.145,602

* Excluchng stebstiory peyables, sccrual for cperating leasses and defned benedi lakdity amounbng lo
P25 3 milien

AL al Decosmbear 31 2017

Carryng  Conbractual One Year Mare than
AmoLnt Cash Fiow or Less One Year
Fanancial Liabidses
Short-term debt PE,100,000 P3113 352 P3 113,352 P -
Acoounts payable and accrued
CXpENSes * 7,730,833 7,730,833 7,730,833 -
Longdarm deb 1,748 532 2323108 BG6, 751 1,656 357

F12577 365 M13167 293 B11,590,936 1,656 357

* Exclucing stabtory payables. socrual for operaling leates and cefined bere® liabdity amounling 1o
P01 T rmilion

It is nol expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could ocour
significantly earlier, or at significantly differant amounts.

Financial Assels Used for Managing Liguidity Risk

The Company considers expecled cash oews from financial assels n assessing and
managing Bguidity risk. To manage is liguidity risk, the Company forecasts cash
flows from operations for the next six monihs which vill resull in addifional available
cash resources and enable the Company o meet ils expected cash oulflow
requirements.

Market Risk

Markel rsk is the rsk thal changes in market prices, such as commodily prces,
foreign exchange rales, interest rales and ofher markel prices, vill affect the
Company's profit or ihe value of iis holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and conirol market risk exposures within
acceptable paramaters, while optimizing the retum.

The Company is subject fo various markel risks, including risks from changes in
commaodily prices, infleres! rales and currency exchange rales.

Expasure o Commooly Prices

The risk from commodity price changes relates to the Company's abdity to recover
higher product costs throegh price increases to customers, which may be mited due
o the compelilive pricing environment ihal exists in the Philippine beverage market
and the willingness of consumers o purchase the same volume of beverages al
higher prices. The Company is exposed lo changes in Philippine sugar prices.

The Company minimizes #s exposwre o nzks in changes in commaodity prices by
entering inte contracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six months o one
yaar; with fixed volume commitrment for the contract duration; and wilh stipulation for
price adjustments depending on markel prices. The Company has oulslanding
purchase commiment amounling fo P9.7 billion and P9.2 bilion as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Because of these purchasa
commitments, the Company considers lhe exposure o commadity price msk lo boe
insignificant.

Exposure o Interest Rale Rick

The Company's exposure lo inleres! rales pertans lo its cash in banks, shorl-lerm
debt, long-lerm debt and finance lease cbligation. These financial instruments bear
fixed inlerest rates and accordingly, the Company = nol signilicantly exposed o
inleres! rate risk.

Exposure (o Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases thal are
denominated in currencies other than the Philppine peso, mostly in United States
(U.S.) dolar. In respect of monelary assets and liablties held in currencies other
than the Philippine peso, the Company ensures fhat s exposure B kepl 1o an
acceplable level, by buying foreign currencies al spol rales where necessary 1o
address shor-lemm imbalances. The Company considered the exposure to foreign
currency risk fo be insignificant. Further, the Company does nof hold any investmeani
in foreign securities as al December 31, 2018 and 2017,

LQifgetling

The following lable zefs out the carrying amounts of due from related parties that are
presented nel of due to relaled pares in the slalemenls of fnancial posilion as al
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Met Amount
December 31, 2018 Gross Amount  Amount Offset (see Nole 22)
Due from related parties P779,945 (P212,686) PSET, 308
December 31, 2017 Gross Amount Amount Offget et Amount
Dus from related parties PI73.436 (P193,262) P5a0,174
Fair Valves

Az al December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounis of the financial assats and
liabilies, which include cash, receivables, due from related parles, shord-lerm debl
and accounis payable and accrueed expenses, reasonably approximale fair values
due to the short-term nature of these fnancial insfruments.

The tabde below shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and
liabilties, including their level of the fair value hierarchy. The lable below does not
include the fair value informalion for nancial assels and liabilitles nol measured al
lair value d the carrying amounts are the reasonable approximalion of their Tar
values,

Sigrilllc ant
Waluation Unobssrrable Caamying
AR Tachnigque Ingais Armgunt Lol 1 Larval 2 Lol 3 Tl
Tywe
Lomg-immn debt Doscounted Mo sppliceble  PSAZZIG P - PRS00 P - PA, 13300

caih Aowrd




Sgnificant

Winduation Ll ek n Carying
T Techrigue Inpte Aot Lawal 1 Level 3 Leveld Tetal
Type
Fers:w heaie Do criled Mol mpplacelde PLTZ2E P - PABIE P - Figia
lkdity cash Newrs
Loregemme dabt Dz purit el Mot mpiplicable 1 748632 = 1,625,836 E 1,620,856
gmsh figey

P1, 750,280 P P1,529, 454 P . P1.520,454

There were no ranslers balwaen lavel 1, 2, 3 of the lar value hierarchy.

26. Commitments, Contingencies and Losses

a. Leases

The Company uses ils judgmenl in delemmining whelber an arrangerment
containg a lease, based on the substance of the arrangement af inceplion date
and makes assessment of whather the armangement & depandant on the use of
a specific assel or assets, the arrangement conveys a right 1o use the assel and
the arrangemenl transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the Company.

*  QOperafing Lease Commitments as Lessee
The Company leases certain warehouses, facilities and vehicles for a period
of ane to twanty-live years, renewable for anolher one to hwanty-five years.
The Company has delermined thal all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of theze properies remain with the lessors and the lease do not
provide for an option to purchase or franafer ovwnership of the property at the
end of tha lease.

Mone of these leases includes contingent rentals. Rental expense (included
under “Cost of Goods Sold” and "Operaling Expenses” accounts in lhe
slaternents of profil or loss and olher comprehensive incoma) pertaining o
these leased properties amounted lo P202.4 million, F193.3 million, and
P214.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respeciively (see Noles 16, 17 and 18).

Fulure minimum lease payments under such non-cancellable operaling
leasas ara as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Less than one year P169.471 P114,814 P116,188
Between one and five years 384,218 350,600 387 396
More than five years 28,364 26,364 148,353

P552,053 P43, 866 PEE1,938

=  Finance Lease Commimants as Lesses
The Company entered inte finance lease agreements covering pallels
{ze@ Nola 8). The Company has delermined, based en an evaluation of the
terms and condfions of the arrangements, that ® has substantially acquired
all tho significant risks and rewards incidental to ovmership of these pallets
and the provisions of the lease agreemenis effectively transfer cvmership of
the assets to the Company at the end of the lease term.

Future minimum lease payments and their presant value are as follows:

g 2017
Prasant Presenl
Futura Value Fullure Vil
Mindmum of Minimwsm MAinimiam of Minimum
Loxso Loasa Lease Lease
Payments  Inferest Paymends  Payments  Inlerest Pagrments
Less than
Ofve year P = P = P - PaS4T P& 219 FaT28
Bteveen one and
Ty e = - -
| P = P - [ 3811 PE219 Fa.Tas

The current portion of the obligation under finance lease, which is presented
as "Current portion of finance lease lability” wunder “Accounts payable and
accrued expenses” account in the statements of financial position, amounted
to nil and P3.¥ milllon as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respeciively, while
the noncurrent porion, which i included under “Other noncurrent liabilies"
account in the statements of financial position, amounted to nil as af
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respeclively.

Interest rates are fived at the contract date, The average effective interest
rate conltracled approximales 6.0% lo 6.5% per annum. There were no
unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance leaso
agreements as al December 31, 2018 and 2017. Interesl expense related fo
the obBgation under finance lease amounted to mil, P1.3 milion and P3.5
millian for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respactively.

b, The Company B curmently involved in various fax, kegal and administralive

proceedings. The eslimate of the probable costs for the resolulion of these
claims has been developed in consultalion with oulside legal counsels handling
the Company’s defense relaling to these malters and s based upon an analysis
of polential resulls. The Company received a Final Demand on Disputed
Aszzesement from the Bureau of Inhernal Revenue for tax assessments relating 1o
various taxes covering the taxable yvear June 30, 2010 and taxable period from
July 1 1o December 31, 2010 totaling P1.5 billion. Consaqueantly, the Company
filed a petition for review before the Court of Tax Appeals. As al the reporling
date, these proceedings are still ongoing. The Company does nol believe that
these proceedings will have malerial adverse effect on its financial staterments
based on the assesement of the management’s legal counsels, I is possible,
however, that fulure firancial performance could be alfected by changes in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of the sirategies relating to thesa proceedings.
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